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002 China Qinfa Group Limited

VISION

To become a leading international coal operator through
improvement in customer service and sustainable growth

MISSION

Quality: Provide the best products and services to our
customers

Innovation: Strive for sustainability and efficiency at
every turn

Integrity: Create trust through our ethical approach
towards our staff, customers, community and the natural
environment

Value: Strengthen our business prudently and cost-
effectively

Teamwork: Encourage teamwork throughout the whole

group

CORE VALUES

« Stakeholders’ interest

« Faithful customer services

« Innovation

« Teamwork

» Trust

- Diligence and energetic
Corporate social responsibility



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WENG Li

Mr. XU Da (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Mr. MA Baofeng (Appointed on 9 October 2014)
Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (Resigned on 9 October 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairperson)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr.XING Zhiying

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Chairperson)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. XING Zhiying

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Chairperson)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. XING Zhiying

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (Appointed on 31 August 2014)
Mr. WONG Chi Kin, FCPA (Resigned on 31 August 2014)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (Appointed on 31 August 2014)
Mr. WONG Chi Kin, FCPA (Resigned on 31 August 2014)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Turnover 6,488,279 10,830,133 11,085,285 9,971,106 6,455,805
Gross (loss)/profit (190,400) 1,063,016 1,513,379 1,088,408 757,617
Results from operating activities (641,619) 524,902 924,486 925,417 582,884
(Loss)/profit before taxation (1,177,656) (14,605) 452,268 697137 501,888
Income tax expense (114,657) (121,475) (119,118) (99,105) (125,236)
(Loss)/profit for the year (1,292,313) (136,080) 333,150 598,032 376,652
(Loss)/profit attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company (1,183,426) (247765) 257748 570,470 377,222
Non-controlling interests (108,887) 111,685 75,402 27,562 (570)
(1,292,313) (136,080) 333,150 598,032 376,652
Coal handling and trading volume
(000 tonnes) 15,935 24,034 22,093 15,927 10,918
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As at 31 December

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Total assets 14,881,169 18,546,277 18,186,687 13,079,089 6,421,676

Total liabilities (12,514,827) (14,855,639) (14,298,021)  (9,824,241)  (4,647,047)

Total equity 2,366,342 3,690,638 3,888,666 3,254,848 1,774,629
Note: Trading Limited (“HK Qinfa Trading”), a wholly owned

1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4
March 2008 and became the holding company of the Group
with effect from 12 June 2009 upon completion of certain
reorganisation steps as set forth in the prospectus of the
Company dated 19 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”).

In order to improve asset structure, the Company has
reorganised the trading business of Hong Kong Qinfa

subsidiary of the Group to Hong Kong Qinfa International
Trading Limited, another wholly owned subsidiary of

the Group, in December 2011. As at the dispatch date of
the annual report, the sole asset of HK Qinfa Trading is
holding interests in the port located at Zhuhai, PRC. Save
for holding such asset, HK Qinfa Trading is dormant as
at the dispatch date of the annual report. The audited
financial information of HK Qinfa Trading is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

UsD’000 UsD’000

Revenue - -
Gross profit - 67
Net (loss)/profit before tax (77) 54
Total assets 10,113 10,190
Net assets 10,113 10,190
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The professional and
efficient management team
aims for maximisation of
shareholder’s interests
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V
CHAIRMAN

'S

STATEMENT

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS

During the year, the pace of economic recovery in the
world remained sluggish. The Chinese economic growth
slowed further with the GDP growth hitting 24-year

low at 7.4%. Faced with challenges such as the energy
sector restructuring in China, the combat against air
pollution, and the overcapacity in coal production etc.
Coal enterprises were under immense pressure in their
operations and productions. As the economic benefits
continued to shrink, the whole industry is suffering from a
deteriorating losing streak.

Amid the difficulties in the coal market, all members of
China Qinfa has worked together to vigorously strive for
achievements. The Group has adhered to the practice of
low-cost exploration while giving priority to efficiency,
so as to overcome hardships in the market, expedite the
restructuring of the business layout, enhance business
management, strengthen cost control, optimize the

sales channels, ensure steady progress in our projects
despite the ailing industry, and endeavour to improve the
operating environment.

Difficult operating environment and performance
for coal trading

China’s GDP growth continued to decelerate in 2014,
leading to the fall in aggregate coal demand and coal
prices. In this challenging operating environment, the
Group’s revenue from coal handling and trading has
declined as compared to 2013. In the second half of the
year, with the diminishing trade volume and weakening
productivities in coal mines, the later caused by
construction works carried out in coal seams, the loss in
the period has worsened considerably when compared to
the first half of the year. As the coal prices continued to
fall and oversupply persisted, the number of profit-making
opportunities in coal trading has decreased significantly.

008 China Qinfa Group Limited



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Zhuhai terminal and Henggin Coal Exchange
Center projects progressing smoothly

The Group’s 100,000-tonne coal terminal of Zhuhai Qinfa
Port Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Port”) has successfully conducted
trial operation in 2014. It will officially commence
operation in the near term. This successful trial of

coal terminal has laid down a solid foundation for the
production and operation in the next stage.

In 2014, the Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange Center (the

“Center”) was established and has commenced operation.

The data analysis function of the Center is well received
by the industry, and the fee generation and profitability
goals of the Center are achieved. The Center has also
organized the first Henggin Coal Trader Fair and paid
trainings for coal import business. All these indicated
stronger influence of the Company.

Adjustment in the Group’s management structure
and strengthening internal controls

To improve the effectiveness of the decision-making
process and execution, and to adapt to the fast-changing
market situations, the Group has segregated the
management of its businesses into the Northern segment
and the Southern segment. It has also implemented a
new vertically-stratified management model. In 2014, an
internal audit division was established to enhance the
risk management of the Group. By performing internal
inspection and consultation activities, the audit division
facilitates the construction of a comprehensive auditing
system for the Group. With strengthenedinternal
control, the Group achieved.better operation with
enhanced effectiveness and efficiency.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a listed company, in addition to enhancing business
quality and improving its results, the Group has always
been dedicated to fulfilling its social responsibility. In
formulating policies, the Group takes into consideration
the impact on employees, the environment and the
community at large. The purpose is to maintain the
best balance between economic development and
environmental protection, as well as sustainable
development for the entire community.

The Group has been giving its employees environmental
protection information that they can put into action

in their working environment and thereby lower
environmental pollution. In addition, it has carried out

reclamation work on mining land. The Group will spare no

effort when it comes to environmental protection.

The Group has organised regular trainings for its

employees and provided them benefits, such as medical

subsidies, insurance and housing subsidies, for the
purpose of giving them job security in addition to their
normal remuneration packages. This has cultivated

stronger sense of belonging to the Group for its employees

and created a working environment of high spirit.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance. This has been
an important factor behind the Group’s achievement
of sound, stable and sustainable development. The

The Group also set up its internal auditing division to
strengthen its risk management. The auditing division is
active in playing its role to facilitate the Board and the
Audit Committee in fulfilling their responsibilities.

PROSPECTS

The coal market had a quiet and difficult in 2014. Looking
forward, in 2015, China Qinfa will spare no efforts in
overcoming difficulties to promote the transformation and
upgrading and to create maximum value for shareholders
with full confidence. The Group will focus on the following
tasks:

— Optimise the structure. First, to adjust and optimise
the organisational structure, to create a streamlined
and efficient, smooth operation with smooth
information exchange and proper risk control for
organisational effectiveness. Second, to adjust and
optimise the product structure, to change single-
product, single-channel business structure by
building multi-brand, multi-channel sales strategy,
to open a new business niche through integrating
internal marketing resources and expanding product
lines. Third is to adjust asset structure. The Company
will give full play to the advantageous assets and
explore new development opportunities. Meanwhile,
it will optimise or dispose non-performing assets so
as to reduce resource costs and maximise the overall
efficiency of resources.

- Business innovation. First, to revitalise existing
business and activate potential business with live

corporate governance principle of the Group is not merely
to emphasise accountability and transparency, but also to
balance the interests of the Group and the shareholders
by adopting the best solutions for both parties. In order

to meet the shareholders’ increasing expectations for

the Group, the Group conducts reviews and adjusts its
corporate governance practices on an on-going basis so
as to fulfil its commitment to being fully responsible to
the shareholders.

existing resources through business transformation,
effective collection and usage of current resources
and information;the second is to break the traditional
mode of thinking and new demands in a changing
environment to develop new customers. To continue
to establish new business models and to create new
business value chain; the third is to nurture wolf-style
sales team with strong market sensitivity in a bigger
market.
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- Cost efficiency. Further optimise organisational
structure with thoughtful management and position
duties arrangement in order to give full play to
the potential of human resources for improved
productivity. The Company will strengthen internal
control and budget control with streamlined internal
management processes to realise smooth and
efficient internal operations and high efficiency.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Effective from 9 October 2014, Ms. LIU Xiaomei (“Ms. LIU”)
has officially resigned from the position of Executive
Director under the Board. | would like to thank Ms. LIU for
her service and contributions rendered to the Group.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt gratitude to my colleagues on the
Board as well as all shareholders, the management staff,
each and every employee, and our business partners, for
supporting the development of the Group over the past
year!

Xu Jihua
Chairman
31 March 2015
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KEY BUSINESS
MILESTONES

2003

Established two coal
loading stations along
the Dagin Railway

1996

Commenced coal
trading business

COAL
OPERATION

Our coal operation business covers a wide
spectrum of the coal supply chain from the
purchase, filtering, blending, storage and
transportation, sales and shipping of coal.
Access to the unique, integrated and reliable
coal supply chain is the key to our success.
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KEY BUSINESS MILESTONES

2011
w Acquired 80% equity

interest in Huameiao
Annual coal trading Energy

Headquartered in
Guangzhou

carrier

SHIPPING

We started building our fleet in 2005. A sizable
fleet will enable us to continue offering
customers an integrated supply chain. And,
with energy resource requirements in China
continuing their upward trend, coal purchases
from overseas suppliers will generally gain
further momentum. The growing fleet will
allow the Group to increase the rate of coal
imports as needed.
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The Group is a leading non-Ste
owned thermal coal suppl

in China, and it operates
integrated coal supply che
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading non-State owned thermal coal
supplier in China, and it operates an integrated coal
supply chain, including coal mining, purchase and sales,
filtering, storage, blending, shipping transportation and
port business. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group continued to focus on these business activities
and expanded its integrated coal supply chain through
upward vertical integration.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Operating performance

China’s GDP growth continued to decelerate in 2014,
leading to the fall in aggregate coal demand and coal
prices. The Bohai-Rim Steam-Coal Price Index has
decreased from 610 at the start of the year to 525 at

the year-end, representing a drop of 13.9%. In this
challenging operating environment, the Group’s revenue
has declined significantly by 40% to approximately
RMB6,488,279,000 as compared to 2013, as a

result, the loss for the period has widened notably to
RMB1,292,318,000. In the second half of the year, with the
diminishing trade volume and weakening productivities in
coal mines, the later caused by construction works carried
out in coal seams, the loss in the period has worsened
considerably when compared to the first half of the year.
The increase in loss was also due to a one-off write-off of
deferred tax assets and the loss from disposal of Ruifeng
Coal.

Difficult operating environment for coal trading

In 2014, the coal handling and trading volume of the
Group was 15,935,000 tonnes, representing a decrease
of 33.7% as compared with 24,034,000 tonnes in 2013.
The monthly average selling prices of coal for the year
ended 31 December 2014 ranged between RMB263 per
tonne and RMB452 per tonne, which were lower than

the average selling prices ranged between RMB406 per
tonne and RMB489 per tonne in 2013. As the coal prices
continued to fall and oversupply persisted, the number of
profit-making opportunities in coal trading has decreased
significantly.

016 China Qinfa Group Limited

Disposal of Ruifeng Coal

The Group has disposed of the Ruifeng Coal in 2014 and
a loss was recorded at an amount of RMB162,585,000.
The Group has acquired the Ruifeng Coal in 2010 at a
consideration of RMB130,000,000 while Ruifeng Coal has
generated RMB440,053,000 attributable to the Group
since 2010, taking this into account, the Ruifeng Coal was
able to contribute profit to the Group.

Zhuhai terminal and Henggin Coal Exchange
Center projects progressing smoothly

The Group’s 100,000-tonne coal terminal of Zhuhai Qinfa
Port Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Port”) has successfully conducted
trial operation in 2014. It will officially commence
operation in the near term.In 2015, the natural depth of
the 150,000-tonne main channels in the Zhuhai Gaolan
Port project will reach 19m. By then, the project will
enable the navigation of 150,000-tonne bulk cargo ships,
and meet the unloading and navigation demands from
200,000-tonne bulk cargo ships.

In 2014, the Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange Center (the
“Center”) was established and has commenced operation.
The Center has already launched its portal website,
completed business registration, launched its exchange
system, and has a designated transaction business
model. The data analysis function of the Center is well
received by the industry, and the fee generation and
profitability goals of the Center are achieved.

Operation capabilities in shipping being
significantly enhanced

The overall operation capabilities of the shipping
division have been remarkably lifted in 2014. By
proactively predicting market trends and seizing contract
opportunities in a timely manner, the average net daily
rental of the fleets for the year has far surpassed

the market average. Due to the tightened control on
daily operating costs, the daily management cost was
restrained within the annual target, and the number of
major ship repairs was reduced to half of the annual
target, both had helped to conserve the liquid capital of
the Group, subsequently the Group has outperformed its
annual net cash inflow target for the year.



Adjustment in the Group’s management structure

To improve the effectiveness of the decision-making
process and execution, and to adapt to the fast-changing
market situations, the Group has segregated the
management of its businesses into the Northern segment
and the Southern segment. It has also implemented a new
vertically-stratified management model. Following the
adjustments of the management structure, the Northern
and Southern segments will be responsible for their own
profit and loss, and responsibilities will be assigned to
management staff of different levels, thereby maximizing
the incentives and responsibilities of the employees, as
well as the management staff of various levels.

Strengthening internal controls

In view of the fact that signs of inadequate internal
controls surfaced in the Group recently, an internal audit
division was established to enhance the risk management

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

of the Group. By performing internal inspection and
consultation activities, the audit division facilitates the
construction of a comprehensive auditing system for the
Group. It will improve and monitor the effectiveness of
the system’s operation on an on-going basis. The audit
division also assists the Board and the audit committee of
the Board to discharge their supervision responsibilities
regarding the internal control functions, for the sake of
guaranteeing the long-term effectiveness of the operation
management in the Group.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group owned and operated
five coal mines in the PRC (Ruifeng Coal was disposed
during the year 2014) and has equity interest in one
company listed in Australia engaging in the coal mining
business. The table sets forth certain information about
these coal mines.

Note Location Ownership Site area Operation status
(sq. km)

Huameiao Energy 1,2 Shuozhou 80% 4.3 Under operation
- Xingtao Coal Shanxi

Huameiao Energy 1,3 Shuozhou 80% 2.4 Under operation
- Fengxi Coal Shanxi

Huameiao Energy 1,4 Shuozhou 80% 2.9 Under operation
- Chongsheng Coal Shanxi

Ruifeng Coal 5 Datong - 2.7 Disposed during 2014

Shanxi  (2013:87.88%)

Xinglong Coal 6,7 Xinzhou 100% 4.0 Under development
Shanxi

Hongyuan Coal 6,8 Xinzhou 100% 4 Under operation
Shanxi

Tiaro Coal Australia 26.31% n.a. Under exploration

(2013:19.88%)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes:

(1) The Group engaged an independent mineral industry
consultant to estimate the total coal reserves and
resources as of 30 September 2011 in accordance with
the JORC Code. For the period from 1 October 2011 to 31
December 2014, there was no material change in total
coal reserves and resources. The total coal reserves and
resources as of 31 December 2014 were derived from the
estimated figures after deducting the raw coal production
for the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2014.

(2) The production capacity for Xingtao coal mine of Huameiao

Energy is 1.5 million tonnes per annum, with a total
investment budget (excluding coal washing plant) of
RMB380 million. The construction was commenced in
October 2011. As of 31 December 2014, the accumulated
actual investment was RMB378 million. The mine has

started joint trial operation since 30 June 2014, and is now

subject to testing and inspection.

(8) The production capacity for Fengxi coal mine of Huameiao

Energy is 0.9 million tonnes per annum, with a total

investment budget of RMB400 million. The construction was

commenced in September 2011. As of 31 December 2014,
the accumulated actual investment was RMB397 million.
The construction of Fengxi coal mine and coal washing
plant was completed on 21 January 2014 and delivered a
capacity of 0.9 million tonnes per annum.

(4) The production capacity for Chongsheng coal mine
of Huameiao Energy is 0.9 million tonnes per annum,
with a total investment budget of RMB391 million. The

construction was commenced in September 2011. As of 31

December 2014, the accumulated actual investment was

RMB392 million. The construction of the coal mine and coal

washing plant was completed, delivering a capacity of 0.9

million tonnes per annum. It has commenced operation on

21 January 2014.

(5)

@)

On 16 December 2014, Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading
and Transportation Co., Ltd, the holding company of Ruifeng
Coal, disposed 87.88% equity interest of Ruifeng Coal at

a total consideration of RMB80 million. The disposal is
completed on 29 December 2014.

The Group completed the establishment of two companies,
Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal, both wholly-owned by
Shenchi Shenda Energy Investment Co., Ltd. during the first
half year of 2013.

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry
consultant to estimate the total coal reserves and
resources as at 31 May 2013 in accordance with the JORC
Code.

Pursuant to the estimation, the coal reserves and resources
of two coal mines were 66.8 million tonnes and 96.5 million
tonnes as of 31 December 2014 (after deduction of the raw
coal production volume for the period from 1 June 2013 to
31 December 2014) respectively.

The production capacity for Hongyuan coal mine is 0.9
million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget
of RMB446 million. The construction was commenced in
March 2013. As of 31 December 2014, the accumulated
actual investment was RMB254 million.

The production capacity for Xinglong coal mine is 0.9
million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget
of RMBB348 million. The construction was commenced in
December 2012. As of 31 December 2014, the accumulated
actual investment was RMB203 million. The mine
construction, civil engineering and installation works are in
progress.

COAL CHARACTERISTICS
Characteristics of the commercial coal produced by the Group’s operating mines are as follows:
Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao
Energy - Energy — Energy -
Xingtao Fengxi Chongsheng Ruifeng Hongyuan
Coal Quality Characteristic Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal
Seam 47 4 4 2-3 2
Moisture (%) 10.86-13.09% 2.26-2.86% 1.85-4.20% 3.12-5.26% 0.50-8.57%
Ash (%) 15.834-23.31%  20.65-29.29%  16.58-30.74%  20.90-26.00%  21.80-33.60%
Sulfur (%) 0.92-0.93% 0.63-0.87% 0.38-0.52% 0.50-0.95% 0.26-1.41%
Volatile Matter (%) 26.17-28.64%  24.25-2796%  38.92-41.51%  21.30-27.40%  34.11-53.54%
Energy Content (MJ/kg) 19.80-21.96 17.64-21.04 20.58-22.25 20.62-22.00 19.27-20.78
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATING DATA
Reserves and Resources

Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao
Energy - Energy - Energy -
Xingtao Fengxi  Chongsheng Ruifeng Xinglong Hongyuan
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal Total
Reserves
Reserves as of
31 December 2013 (Mt)
- Proven reserves 63.73 19.42 28.90 n.a. 22.49 18.53 153.07
- Probable reserves 13.86 27.26 18.22 n.a. 9.53 16.46 85.33
Total reserves as of
31 December 2013 (Mt) 7759 46.68 4712 n.a. 32.02 34.99 238.40
Less: Total raw coal production
during 2014 (Mt) (1.31) (2.21) (1.34) n.a. n.a. 017) (5.03)
Reserves as of
31 December 2014 (Mt) 76.28 44,47 45,78 n.a. 32.02 34.82 233.37
Resources
Resources as of
31 December 2013 (Mt) 115.93 73.97 76.87 £6.65 45.96 50.72 43010
Less: Total raw coal production
during 2014 (Mt) (1.31) (2.21) (1.34) (019 n.a. (017) (6.22)
Resources as of
31 December 2014 (Mt) 114.62 71.76 75.53 66.46" 45,96 50.55 424,88

*  Ruifeng Coal was disposed during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at the abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

Year ended 31 December

2014 20183
Raw coal production volume (’000 tonnes) ('000 tonnes)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal 1,313 2,134
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal 2,212 1,871
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal 1,342 1,708
Ruifeng Coal 191 1,091
Hongyuan Coal 172 1,404
Total 5,230 8,208

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013
Commercial coal production volume (’000 tonnes) ('000 tonnes)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal 854+ 1,387*
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal 1,438* 1,216*
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal 873+ 1,110°
Ruifeng Coal 191" 1,091"
Hongyuan Coal 136* 1,109*
Total 3,492 5,913
N No washing process is applied to the coal produced by Ruifeng Coal.
+ Per the competent person’s report issued on 30 September 2011 and 31 May 2013, the volume of commercial coal produced

by Huameiao Energy and Hongyuan Coal is calculated by a yield rate of 65% and 79% of raw coal respectively.

Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses

The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses consist of the following amounts:

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

Materials and consumables 66,614 40,037
Staff cost 120,142 40,232
Other direct cost 59,244 152,692
Overhead and others 248,574 156,944
Evaluation fee 16,869 10,468
Total 511,443 400,373
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year ended 31 December

Revenue 2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000
Coal business 6,292,314 10,698,908
Shipping transportation 157,132 131,225
Port service income 38,833 -

Year ended 31 December

Handling and Trading volume 2014 2013
’000 tonnes ’000 tonnes
Coal Handling and Trading 15,935 24,034

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the volume of
the Group’s coal handling and trading recorded a 33.7%
decrease as compared with 2013. The monthly average
coal selling prices during the year ended 31 December
2014 were in range between RMB263 per tonne and
RMB452 per tonne, which were lower than the average
selling prices between RMB406 per tonne and RMB489

per tonne in 2013. The decrease in coal handling and
trading and monthly average coal selling price were
principally because of the slow down in the growth of
the overall demand for coal in China during 2014, which
was a result of the uncertainties in the global economic
development and the slow growth in the manufacturing
sector in the PRC.

The average coal selling price and the coal handling and trading volume for each of the three years ended 31 December

2014 are set forth in the table below:

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013 2012
Average selling price
(RMB per tonne) 395 445 494
Average monthly handling and
trading volume (000 tonnes) 1,328 2,003 1,841
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced from both overseas and the PRC domestic markets to customers,
including power plants, cement plants and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in the coastal
regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for use in the combustion processes to produce steam for power and heat.
Cement plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production process. The following table sets forth information
regarding the Group’s coal sales by industry segment during 2014 and 2013:

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Percentage of Percentage of

Net sales Net sales Net sales Net sales

RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total

Power plants 1,152,187 18.3 2,928,056 27.4
Coal traders 1,844,004 29.3 2,592,693 24.2
Cement plants and others* 3,296,123 52.4 5,178,159 48.4
Total 6,292,314 100.0 10,698,908 100.0

*  Others mainly represented large State-owned coal suppliers.

The segment turnover for shipping transportation from
external customers for the year ended 31 December 2014
was RMB157.1 million, representing an increase of 25.9
million or 19.7% from RMB131.2 million for the same
period in 2013. The increase in turnover was primarily due
to the continuous increases in freight rates and increase
in chartering vessels to external customers.

Gross Loss/Profit and Gross Loss/Profit Margin

The Group’s gross loss was RMB190.4 million during the
year ended 31 December 2014 as compared with gross
profit of RMB1,063.0 million during the same period in
2013.The Group’s gross loss margin was 2.9% during
the year ended 31 December 2014, as compared with
gross profit margin of 9.8% in the same period in 2013.
The Group recorded gross loss and gross loss margin in
2014 principally because of the significant decreases

in average selling prices of thermal coal by more than
10% in 2014 as compared with 2013, which was higher
than the reduction in cost of material and other costs of
production.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
other income, gains and losses amounted to -RMB46.8
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million, as compared with RMB172.0 million in the same
period in 2013. The decrease in other income gains and
losses was mainly due to the one-off loss arising from the
loss on disposal of Ruifeng Coal of RMB162.6 million in
2014.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group in 2014 amounted to
RMB6,678.7 million, representing a decrease of 31.6%
compared with RMB9,767.1 million in 2013. The decrease
was due to the fall in coal trading and handling volume
during the year of 2014.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business segment:

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

RMB million RMB million

Cost of coal purchased 5,735.8 8,634.2
Cost of coal transportation* 211.5 647.2
Cost of self-produced coal 523.6 330.2
Materials, fuel, power 104.2 143.3
Staff costs 12041 37.4
Transportation 2.9 8.9
Depreciation and amortisation 146.3 110.6
Others 150.1 30.0
Other costs 45.7 18.6
Total cost of sales of coal business segment 6,516.6 9,630.2

*  Cost of coal transportation refers to the transportation cost before elimination on consolidation.

The Group purchases coal from both overseas and the PRC market. The following table sets forth information regarding
the Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and net sales in 2014 and 2013:

Year ended 31 December

2014 2013

Sales volume Net sales Sales volume Net sales
Origins of coal ’000 tonnes RMB’000 ’000 tonnes RMB’000
China 14,735 5,751,675 21,223 9,370,345
Indonesia 625 260,122 1,185 533,828
South Africa 4 1,604 654 306,947
Australia 376 179,776 566 273,979
Canada 153 75,734 135 79,212
Vietnam - - 17 9127
Others 42 23,403 254 125,470
Total 15,935 6,292,314 24,034 10,698,908
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The Group keeps expanding the network of suppliers to
ensure a supply of coal with reliable and stable quantity
and quality.

The Group has established stable cooperative
relationships with its key overseas and PRC domestic coal
suppliers and has developed business relationships with
the majority of them over a period of not less than three
years. The Group has also been undergoing upstream
expansion through acquisition of companies holding coal
mines. This enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply
of quality coal.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to RMB229.4

million, representing a decrease of 32.6% compared by
the RMB340.6 million in the same period in 2013.The
decrease was mainly due to the fact that Group has
launched a series of cost saving controls during the year
to lower the administrative costs and the absence of
impairment losses on trade and other receivables in 2013
in the total amount of RMB59.8 million.
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Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses decreased by 41.9% to RMB88.4

million for the year ended 31 December 2014, compared
by the RMB152.1 million in the same period in 2013. The
decrease was in line with the decrease in coal handling

and trading volume in 2014.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2014 amounted to
RMB524.8 million, representing a decrease of RMB11.6
million or 2.2% from RMB536.4 million in 2018.

Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB1,183.4
million as compared with RMB247.8 million in the same
period in 2013. The increase in loss was principally due

to the one-off and predominately non-cash loss arising
from the loss on disposal of Ruifeng Coal amounted to
RMB162.6 million, the reduction of deferred tax assets
amounted to RMB130.0 million and impairment losses

on interest in Tiaro Coal Limited, property, plant and



equipment and prepayments and other receivables with
an aggregate amount of RMB80.1 million. The increase

in loss attributable to equity shareholders during the
year ended 31 December 2014 was also attributable to
the continuous decreases in the average selling prices of
thermal coal in China in 2014.

Trade and Bill Receivables

As of 31 December 2014, trade and bill receivables of the
group were RMB1,269.0 million (as of 31 December 2013:
RMB2,699.3 million). The decrease was mainly due to the
disposal of Ruifeng Coal in 2014 and was in line with the
decrease in the coal handling and trading volume in 2014.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management
policies and strives to maintain a healthy financial
condition. The Group funds its business operations and
general working capital by internally generated financial
resources and bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of RMB5,278.3 million which were mainly due to
the payment for the construction of Zhuhai Port and the
capital expenditure of property, plant and equipment of
the Group’s coal mines in 2014.

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial
flexibility by diversifying the funding bases and obtain
medium term loans to replace short term loans. The
Group is currently in the process of negotiating with
certain banks in the PRC to raise new medium to long
term interest-bearing bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2014, the cash and bank balances
of the Group amounted to RMB53.9 million (as at 31
December 2013: RMB483.3 million), representing a
decrease of 88.8%. The decrease in cash and bank
balances was mainly due to the combined effect of
payment for the construction of Zhuhai port and other
capital expenditure and the repayment of short term
borrowings.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2014, the total bank and other
borrowings of the Group were RMB7,651.9 million (as at
31 December 2013: RMB9,058.1 million), RMB4,734.1
million of which were repayable within one year (as at

31 December 2013: RMB6,483.2 million) and carried
interest at market rates ranging from 2.09% to 9.00% (31
December 2013: 1.30% to 9.50%) per annum.

Non-current bank loans as at 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013 carried at variable interest rates.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had total banking
facilities of RMB8,314.6 million (as of 31 December 2013:
RMB9,951.4 million), of which RMB6,842.6 million (as at
31 December 2013: RMB7,770.9 million) were utilised.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, except amounts of RMB0.12 million and
RMB12.5 million in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United
States dollars ("USD”), respectively, were held in RMB. All
the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings were made
in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as interest-bearing bank
borrowings netted off sum of cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits divided by total assets) of the Group
as at 31 December 2014 was 47.7% (as of 31 December
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2013:37.9%). The increase in gearing ratio was mainly
due to decrease of total assets as a result of disposal of
Ruifeng Coal and non-cash loss arising from reduction
of deferred tax assets and impairment losses on interest
in an associate, property, plant and equipment and
prepayments and other receivables.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held
predominately in RMB, HKD and USD. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB while overseas purchases are
usually denominated in USD. The Group’s subsidiaries
usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence, the Directors do
not consider that the Group faces significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s assets in an
aggregate amount of RMB9,782.4 million (as at 31
December 2013: RMB9,053.2 million) in forms of property,
plant and equipment, coal mining rights, inventories,
trade and bill receivables and bank deposits were pledged
to banks for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2014

In light of the anticipated capital expenditure and
investments of the Group, the Directors consider that

it would be more appropriate to deploy the financial
resources of the Group to further strengthen the business
development of the Group. On this basis, the Directors
have decided not to declare any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Hence, there will not be
any resolution for the final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014 to be tabled at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company (the “Annual General
Meeting”).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2014, the Group employed 1,557
employees. The Group has adopted a performance-
based reward system to motivate its staff and such
system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the
basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to staff
members with outstanding performance.

Members of the Group established in the PRC are also
subject to social insurance contribution plans organised
by the PRC government. In accordance with the relevant
national and local labour and social welfare laws and
regulations, members of the Group established in the PRC
are required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly
social insurance premium covering pension insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other
relevant insurance. Members of the Group incorporated in
Hong Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund
scheme, if applicable, in accordance with the applicable
Hong Kong laws and regulations.

In addition, a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share
Option Scheme were adopted in June 2009 to retain staff
members who have made contribution to the success of
the Group. As at the date of this announcement, the total
number of share options outstanding is 20,893,369. The
Directors believe that the compensation packages offered
by the Group to its staff members are competitive in
comparing with market standards and practices.



The year 2014 is the most challenging one for the Group
since its establishment. The Group expects that the coal
market will stabilise in 2015 as the worst has already
happened for the market. Although the Group expects
that the trade volume of coal will continue its downward
trend during the first half of 2015, the gross profit margin
is anticipated to rebound, mainly due to the concentration
of trades in the high gross profit margin areas, while the
trade volume in areas associated with low gross profit
margins is reduced.

In 2015, the output volume of coal will resume growth
after bottoming in 2014. The Group is exerting every effort
to obtain approval from relevant government departments
to increase the annual output for the Huameiao coal mine
from 3.3 million tonnes to 4.5 million tonnes, so as to
improve the business performance of the Group.

On the other hand, the Group will continue to facilitate the
operation of the 100,000-tonne coal terminal of Zhuhai
Port, the Center and the shipping business, so these
segments will be able to contribute profit for the Group as
quickly as possible.

Since 2014, the Group has reduced the amount of
acceptance bills to save related finance costs. As the
Chinese benchmark interest rates were lowered and

the Group continues to control its finance costs, one

of the major cost items in the Group’s profit and loss
account, the finance costs in 2015 is expected to trend
downward. The Group does not rule out the possibility of
asset restructuring or asset disposal if and when suitable
opportunities arise. Through realising profit from capital
appreciation, maximizing the efficiency of competitive
assets, and continuously exploring new fronts for future
development, the Group will further cut down its liabilities
and related finance costs.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Group will strive to rejuvenate existing businesses
while giving life to potential new businesses through
business transformation, utilising existing resources,
consolidating competitive assets and making use of
information advantages. It will also advance beyond the
traditional mode of thinking, confront the challenging
market environment, explore new problems, broaden the
corporate’s mindset, create new demands, nurture new
customers, persistently establish new business models
and form new commercial value chains; build up a sales
force with strong team spirit, and be more sensitive
towards the sales market while making an impact on it.

By planting the vertically-stratified model in its structural
reform, the Group will optimise its organization structure
and build a streamlined management structure that is
effective, smooth in operation. Also, with active share of
information and controllable risks within, a highly efficient
operation can be achieved. The Group will also establish
and carefully implement the internal audit programme to
control the Group’s risk at a reasonable level.

Last but not least, the management would like to take
this opportunity to express their heartfelt gratitude to
the Board, and our shareholders, all staff members and
business partners for supporting the development of the
Group over the years. The management believes that the
high quality assets of the Group will be able to turnin
considerable returns for the Group and its shareholders
when the Group emerges out of this difficult period. In
2015, all staff members of the Group will work as one
team, remain trustworthy and prudent, be willing to
bear responsibilities and explore new frontiers so that
maximum value can be delivered to our investors.
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We create trust through
our ethical approach towards
our staff, customers, community
and natural environment




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board presents this annual report, together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The Group is principally engaged in the coal
operation business involving coal mining, purchase
and sales, filtering, storage, blending, shipping and
transportation of coal. The activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 20 to the Financial
Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 105 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the
Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year under review are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 109 and 110 and note 30(a) to the Financial
Statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in share premium account are distributable to
Shareholders, subject to the condition that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend
is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 was RMB249.4 million
(2013: RMB259.9 million).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under

the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years
ended 31 December 2014 and the Group’s assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and
2014 are set out on page 4 of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2014 and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WENG Li

Mr. XU Da (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Mr. MA Baofeng (Appointed on 9 October 2014)
Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (Resigned on 9 October 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time

to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Any Director appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the
Articles shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation.



Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company, Mr. XU Da, Mr. MA Baofeng and Mr. BAl Tao will
retire by rotation in accordance with Article 83(3) of the
Articles. All retiring Directors, being eligible, would offer

themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the
Prospectus), the details of which are set forth in

the paragraphs under “Connected Transactions”

below, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company and any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director is or was
materially interested or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

1. Interests in the Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on page 39 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or its associated corporations (within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SF0”)), which were required (a) to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Approximate percentage of
issued share capital of the

Number of shares Company (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
Mr. XU Jihua* Corporate 1,318,229,610 Nil 63.4 Nil
(Note 1)
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 4.8 Nil
Mr. WENG Li Beneficial Owner 6,000,000 Nil 0.3 Nil
Mr. XU Da Beneficial Owner 160,000,000 Nil 7.7 Nil
Mr. MA Baofeng Beneficial Owner 1,200,000 Nil 0.1 Nil
)

(Note 2

Note:

1. 1,186,000,000 Shares and 118,000,000 Shares to
be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the
perpetual subordinated convertible securities are
held directly by Fortune Pearl International Limited
(“Fortune Pearl”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xu
Jihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is deemed to have
interests in the Shares so held by Fortune Pearl. The
remaining Shares are held directly by Mr. Xu.

2. The beneficial interest represents Shares that may
be issued pursuant to the full exercise of the options
granted to Mr. MA under the Share Option Scheme on
17 January 2012.

*  Mr.XUJihua, being a Director, is also acting as the
Chairman of the Board.
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2. Interests in associated corporations

Name of Name of associated Number of Percentage of
Director corporations Capacity shares issued shares (%)
Mr. XU Jihua Fortune Pearl Beneficial owner 1 100

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (a) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions
of the persons, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Approximate percentage of
issued share capital of the

Number of shares Company (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholder positions positions positions positions
Fortune Pearl (Note 1) 1,304,000,000 Nil 62.7 Nil

Note:

1. The 1,304,000,000 Shares include the interests in Shares by virtue of the 118,000,000 Shares to be allotted and issued to
Fortune Pearl upon full conversion of the perpetual subordinated convertible securities. Fortune Pearl is wholly-owned by Mr. Xu

Jihua, a Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other
than Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than in pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme detailed in note 31
to the Financial Statements, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2014 was the Company or any of its
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subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its
employees is based on their performance, duties and
responsibilities, qualifications and competence displayed.
The Group has adopted a performance-based rewarding
system to motivate its employees and such system is
reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the basic
salaries, year-end bonuses will be offered to those staff
members with outstanding performance.



Emoluments payable to the senior management of the
Group are decided by the remuneration committee of the
Board, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual experience, performance and responsibility,
and the compensation levels adopted by companies of
comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to

the compensation levels adopted by companies of similar

size engaging in similar business.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

DIRECTORS'REPORT

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out
in notes 10 and 11 to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers were as

follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier
- five largest suppliers in aggregate

Sales
- the largest customer
- five largest customers in aggregate

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected
transactions that are exempted under Rule 14A.76(1) of
the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December
2014:

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, each member of the China Qinfa Group (as
defined in the Prospectus), and their respective equity
interest holders (which include Mr. XU Jihua, an executive
director and the chairman of the Board, Mr. XU Da, Mr.
LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being controlling
shareholders of the Company) entered into the Structure

31.4%
66.8%

14.3%
52.4%

Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a term of 10
years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to pay an
annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation
of the coal operation business and the inland shipping
transportation business of the China Qinfa Group, and all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of
the China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Further details of the Structure Contracts are set forth

in the section headed “Reorganisation and the Structure
Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver
pursuant to the Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to

the Company for all transactions under the Structure
Contracts from strict compliance with the applicable
announcement and independent Shareholders approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,

the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform procedures on the above continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has confirmed that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

b. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group; and

c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions for the Company were entered into: (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transactions on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole; and (iii) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
those available to or from independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have
conducted an annual review on the Structure Contracts
and have confirmed that (i) the transactions carried out
during 2014 have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions
carried out during 2014 have been entered into in
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accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structure
Contracts and so that all revenue generated by China
Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa Logistics; and

(i) any new contracts or renewed contracts have been
entered into on the same terms as the existing Structure
Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group
is concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a
whole.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions with Qinfa Industry, Mr. XU and Mr. XU’s
close family members as disclosed in note 37(a) and (b) to
the consolidated financial statements constituted exempt
continuing connected transaction and exempt connected
transaction, respectively, under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and accordingly, are exempted from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions as disclosed in note 37(c) to
the consolidated financial statements are not regarded as
connected transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The perpetual subordinated convertible securities
(“PSCS”) was approved by the independent shareholders
on 31 December 2012 and the Company paid interest

of HKD5,841,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014
pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and a Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The
principal terms of the two schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions
passed on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme whereby one executive Director
and 25 employees of the Group were granted the rights to
subscribe for Shares.



The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognise the contribution by certain employees towards
the growth of the Group and/or the listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange. The principal terms of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are substantially the same as the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i) the exercise price per share; and
(i) the total number of Shares which may be issued

pursuant to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.
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Save for the options which have been granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, no further options will

be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, as the right to do so has been terminated upon
the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. The total
number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is 13,600,000 Shares, representing
0.65% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2014.

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at

the date of this report:

Number of options

Approximate

percentage
Outstanding of issued
Outstanding at Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat share capital
1January during during during 31 December of the
Name 2014 the period the period the period 2014 Company
(%)
Director
LIU Xiaomei 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.06
(Resigned on 9 October 2014)
MA Baofeng 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.06
(Appointed on 9 October 2014)
Employees 11,200,000 - 1,600,000 - 9,600,000 0.46
13,600,000 - 1,600,000 - 12,000,000 0.58
Notes: (b) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry

1. The exercise price per share is HK$1.26 per share.

2. Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has a vesting period of one to three years
commencing from 3 July 2009, being the listing date of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Company has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the option
in cash.

3. Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to
exercise:

(@) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry
of the first anniversary of the Listing Date;

of the second anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(c)  40% of the total number of the options can be
exercised from the expiry of the third anniversary of
the Listing Date.

The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme was determined using the “Binomial Option

Pricing Model”.

The significant inputs into the model were:

. risk-free rate of return — 3.029% per annum;

«  forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and

«  forecast dividend yield - 1.50% per annum.
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Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing
Model’, the total fair value of the outstanding options as at
the grant date (i.e. 12 June 2009) was HK$7,650,000.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess
the fair value of options and is a common choice among
various option pricing models for assessing the fair value of
options. The value of the options depends on the valuation
arrived at based on certain subjective assumptions on
variables. Any changes in the variables used may cause a
substantial effect on the assessment of the fair value of the
options.

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons (including full
time or part time employees, executive, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of our
Group) for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Company and to enable the
Company and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme to an employee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of this limit shall be
subject to the approval of shareholders in a general
meeting. The total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 8,893,369 Shares,
representing 0.43% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2015.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has further granted
share options (the “Options”) to subscribe for a total of
20,751,196 new ordinary shares of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme to 15 eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme (the “Grantees”). None of the
Grantees is a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or an associate (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of any of them. The closing price of
Shares immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was HK$1.39 per Share.
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The principal terms of the Options granted are as follows:

(i) the exercise price per share is HK$1.50 per share
(which represents the highest of (i) the closing
price of HK$1.50 per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price of HK$1.392 per Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HK$0.10
per Share);

(i) The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from
17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 (the “Option
Period”); and

(iii) The Options may be exercisable at any time during the
Option Period, provided that the maximum number of
Options which each Grantee is entitled to exercise at
the below period shall not exceed:

(a) inrespect of the period from 17 January 2012
to 16 January 2013, 40% of the total number of
Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013
to 16 January 2014, 30% of the total number of
Options granted to him; and

(c) inrespect of the period from 17 January 2014
to 16 January 2015, 30% of the total number of
Options granted to him.
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Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted under the Share Option Scheme as at the date

of this report:

Number of options

Approximate

percentage
Outstanding of issued
Outstanding at Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat share capital
1January during during during 31 December of the
Name 2014 the period the period the period 2014 Company
(%)
Director

MA Baofeng 2,964,457 - - - 2,964,457 0.14

(Appointed on 9 October 2014)
Employees 11,857,826 - 5,928,914 - 5,928,912 0.29
14,822,283 - 5,928,914 - 8,893,369 0.43

As at the 31 December 2014, the total number of share options outstanding is 20,893,369.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2014 amounted to approximately
RMB7,651.9 million (2013: RMB9,058.1 million).
Particulars of the bank loans and other borrowings are
set out in note 28 to the Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float with at
least 25% of the Shares held by the public as required by
the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely
to compete (either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s
business at any time during the year ended 31 December
2014 and up to the date of this report, save for Mr. XU
Jihua’s legal ownership in the equity interest in members
of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus).

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) and the
executive Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12 June
2009 in favour of the Company. The Covenantors have
provided the Group with written confirmations that they
and their associates (other than members of the Group)
have fully complied with the deed of non-competition
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Covenantors’compliance with
the deed of non-competition, the options, pre-emptive
rights or first rights of refusals provided by the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) on their
existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Covenantors and their respective close associates did

not direct any Business Opportunity (as defined in the
Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the independent
non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on the
decision made in relation to Business Opportunity.
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TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in
the Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members
will be subject to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current
rate charged on each of the purchaser and seller (or
transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the consideration or,
if greater, the fair value of the shares being bought/sold
or transferred (rounded up to the nearest HK$'000). In
addition, a fixed duty of HK$5.00 is currently payable on
an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived
from Hong Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits
tax.

Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and
other dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt
from Cayman Islands stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares
are recommended to consult their professional advisers
if they are in any doubt as to the taxation implications
(including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasised
that none of the Company or its Directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities
of, holders of shares in the Company resulting from their
subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing
in such shares.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 were audited by KPMG. KPMG
did not seek re-appointment as the auditors of the
Company at the Company's annual general meeting held
on 30 June 2014. An ordinary resolution was passed at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 30
June 2014 to adopt Moore Stephens as the auditors of
the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The financial statements in this report have been audited
by Moore Stephens who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,
XuJihua
Chairman

Guangzhou, 31 March 2015
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (R 5 %), aged 58, is the chairman of the
Group and an executive Director. Mr. XU is principally
responsible for the Group’s overall business strategic
development. Mr. XU has more than 20 years of
management and operation experience in the logistics
and coal operation industries. In 1996, Mr. XU acquired
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., a
member of the Group, and has led the Group to become
one of the leading non-state-owned coal operation
companies in China in terms of annual coal trading
volume. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. XU was

a manager in the Trading Department of Qinhuangdao
Goods Exchange Center from 1992 to 1994. During the
period from 1989 to 1991, Mr. XU was the deputy head

of Materials Bureau of Haigang District, Qinhuangdao
City, the PRC. Mr. XU did not hold any directorship in any
listed companies during the last three years. Mr. XU was
appointed as a Director on 4 March 2008 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 6 May 2008. Mr. XU
is the sole beneficial owner and Director of Fortune Pearl,
a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. WANG Jianfei (£ &%), aged 44, is the chief
executive officer of the Group and an executive Director.
Ms. WANG is principally responsible for the Group’s
overall management and operation. Ms. WANG is also a
member of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. Before her appointment as the
chief executive officer, Ms. WANG was in charge of the
finance department, human resources department,
international trading department, investment
management department and shipping transportation
department of the Group. Ms. WANG obtained an
associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles
University Foundation in consortium with Hebei Business
College in 1995. Ms. WANG completed an Executive MBA
Programme sponsored by the B A R K2R\ & A 2
M4 LT FS A 0 (Risk Capital and Network Economy
Research Center of China Renmin University) and A Bl
EEEEIF L (China Enterprise Management Training
Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG has more than 14 years of
enterprise management and operation experience. Before
joining the Group in 2000, Ms. WANG worked in fF 42 41
2EH(EE28)ER A7 (COFCO Industry (Qinhuangdao)

Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from 1995 to 2000. Ms. WANG has been
a director of Tiaro Coal Limited, a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange, since 30 November 2009.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years. Ms. WANG was appointed as an executive Director
on 6 May 2008.

Mr. WENG Li (§37), aged 39, is the vice president of the
Group and an executive Director. Mr. WENG is principally
responsible for investment management of the Group. Mr.
WENG graduated with a bachelor degree in economics
major in international finance from & A2 (Wuhan
University) in June 1998. Mr. WENG subsequently studied
a graduate programme in finance from && KX E2 8 58
A2t (Graduate School of Wuhan University) during

the period from May 2004 to December 2005. Mr. WENG
further obtained a master degree in economics from &%
KE (Wuhan University) in December 2008. Mr. WENG has
been granted the PRC Securities Practising Certificate
(PEEHFERNEFEE) since 2004. Mr. WENG has more
than 12 years of assets management and investment
experience. Mr. WENG joined the Group in November
2005, and worked as deputy general manager and general
manager of the investment management department,
and president assistant. Before joining the Group, Mr.
WENG worked as an investment assistant and later

as an investment manager in the assets management
department of Changjiang Securities Company Limited
(RIIEHD BBRAA]), a company listed in the PRC with
the stock code: 000783, during the period from June 1998
to October 2005. Mr. WENG did not hold any directorship
in any listed companies during the last three years. Mr.
WENG was appointed as an executive Director on 21 April
2009.

Mr. XU Da (##3), aged 29, achieved a bachelor degree in
2008. Mr. XU is currently a vice president and the director
of procurement of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”). Mr. XU has more than & years

of working experience in thermal coal procurement
operation from overseas. He joined the Group as import
and export manager in 2009. Mr. XU is the son of Mr.

XU Jihua, the chairman, an executive director and the
controlling shareholder of the company. Mr. XU did not
hold any directorship in any listed companies during the
last three years.
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Mr. MA Baofeng (55 {R1£), aged 38, graduated from Taiyuan
University of Technology in Shanxi with a bachelor degree.
Mr. MA is currently a vice president of the Group and the
chairman of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Company
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. MA is principally responsible for coal purchasing in
the PRC and supervision of coal mines of the Group. Mr.
MA has more than 15 years of working experience in coal
trading and mining industry. Mr. MA joined the Group in
1999, and worked as the deputy general manager of the
sales and purchase department and purchasing manager
of the mining zone. Mr. MA did not hold any directorship in
any listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. BAl Tao (H #H), aged 31, graduated from Cardiff
University with a bachelor and master degree in civil
engineering. Mr. BAl is currently a vice president of the
Group and the general manager of Zhuhau Henggin Coal
Exchange Centre. Mr. BAl has more than 5 years of working
experience in construction project management. He joined
the Group as general manager of Zhuhau Henggin Coal

Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior to joining the Group in 2012,

Mr. BAl worked as a manager of engineering management
department in a company listed in the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. BAI did not hold any directorship in any listed
companies during the last three years.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (BRI ), aged 72, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12

June 2009. Mr. HUANG is also a member of the audit
committee and the chairperson of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Board. Mr.
HUANG graduated from 1 F5 K2 (Zhong Nan University),
formerly known as &2 #3882 6x (Chang Sha Railway
College), majoring in railway transportation in 1965. Mr.
HUANG served as the head of BN &7/ (Guangzhou
Port Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed as a
visiting professor by Ei&/8% K2 (Shanghai Maritime
University), formerly known as /8/838 & (Shanghai
Maritime Transportation College), in 1996. Mr. HUANG is
also a senior engineer in railway transportation and has
enjoyed a special government allowance granted by the
State Council since 1992 for his outstanding contribution
in engineering technology for the nation. Mr. HUANG did
not hold any directorship in any listed companies during
the last three years.
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Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (285)%), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009.
Mr. LAU is also the chairman of the audit committee of
the Board. Mr. LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of
science in Business Administration from Oregon State
University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Xinyi Glass
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, since April 2003. Prior to joining Xinyi
Glass Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the financial
controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board, for over three years
and had worked with an international accounting firm

in Hong Kong for five years. Mr. LAU was appointed

as an independent non-executive director of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (“Dragon Crown”) on 30
November 2010. Dragon Crown was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 June 2011. Mr. LAU
was also appointed as an Independent non-executive
Directors of SDM Group Holdings Limited (*SDM Group”)
on 26 September 2014, SDM Group was listed on GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014. From
3 September 2013 to 29 December 2014, Mr. LAU was
also a non-executive director of ZMFY Automobile Glass
Services Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. LAU did not hold any directorship in any listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. XING Zhiying (Jf % &), aged 64, was appointed as

an independent non-executive Director on 22 January
2013. Mr. XING received a Bachelor of Arts from Sun Yat-
sen University (1K E2) in Guangzhou, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. XING served in

various managerial roles, including the vice president

of the Guangdong Branch, the president of the Hainan
Branch and the senior expert in the Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China from 1996 to 2011. Mr. XING
is currently a senior economist (= 4% 487 Af), the chief of
Supervisory Committee of the Finance Arbitration Center
in Guangzhou (BN & @A EEZ B ), the vice
president of Finance Expert Association in Guangdong



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

province, the PRC (BER £ B A EZEXRHE) and a member
of the China Society for Finance and Banking (1 Bl &

BEhE =) Mr. XING has been appointed the independent
director of China Mercantile Bank GEE#R7T) in Shenzhen,
the PRC since 2011. Mr. XING did not hold any directorship
in any listed companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (18 5), aged 45, graduated from
University of London and The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with bachelor degree in banking and finance
and MBA in finance respectively. He is an associate
member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants with over 18 years experience in finance,
auditing and accounting fields. Prior to joining the Group
in 2014, he was the chief financial officer of a private
group since June 2010. He was the qualified accountant
and company secretary of Ko Yo Chemical (Group) Limited
(previous stock code: 8042, current stock code: 827) from
February 2002 to December 2005. Mr. Fung was also the
independent non-executive director of TLT Lottotainment
Group Limited (stock code: 8022) from 12 August 2008 to
11 July 2012.

Mr. LI Yong (Z28), aged 41, is the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., a member of
the Group, and is principally responsible for the domestic
shipping transportation business of the Group. Mr. LI
graduated with a bachelor degree in timber processing
from Nanjing Forestry University (G R E A 2) in June
1997 and obtained a master degree in management from
Tianjin Normal University (KR & A 28) in June 2004.
Mr. LI has more than 12 years of working experience.

Mr. LI was appointed as the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., in February
2008. During the period from June 2004 to February 2008,
Mr. LI worked as a project manager in Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Industry Group Co. Ltd., a connected person of the Group.
Mr. LI worked as a business manager in Qinhuangdao
Huasheng Trading Co., Ltd. (REEEXKZ HER A A))
during the period from August 1997 to April 2004.

Mr. YU Tao (F38), aged 42, is the vice president of

the Group. Mr. Yu is responsible for both domestic

and international shipping business of the Group. Mr.

Yu has a Master degree of Maritime Law of Dalian
Maritime University, is a professional manager with

rich experiences in international shipping practice and
management. Mr. Yu has worked on board of vessel and
then engaged in shipping practice and management for
over 16 years. Mr. Yu joined the group in 2008 and worked
as shipping manager, deputy shipping general manager,
and was appointed as shipping general manager in 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance practices.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise on accountability and transparency and are
adopted in the best interest of the Company and its
Shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of Shareholders and to fulfil its commitment
to excellence in corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in full

compliance with the applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Board
takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of the
Group’s overall objectives and strategies, internal control
and risk management systems, monitoring its operating
and financial performance, performing the corporate
governance duties and evaluating the performance of
the senior management. The Directors, individually and
collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management

of the Group and the company secretary. Management
information is provided to enable them to participate at
the meetings or as and when requested. The company
secretary provides secretarial support to the Board

and ensures adherence to Board procedures and the
relevant rules and regulations which are applicable to the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters

of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
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transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are managed by the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board
has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these
officers for the implementation of Board decisions.

The Board periodically reviews the delegated functions
and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant
transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain Board
approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of nine Directors, six of
whom are executive Directors and three are independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WENG Li

Mr. XU Da (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Mr. MA Baofeng (Appointed on 9 October 2014)
Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (Resigned on 9 October 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. XING Zhiying

All six executive Directors are responsible for
implementing the business strategies and managing the
business of the Group in accordance with all applicable
rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the
Listing Rules. All Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all
major and material matters of the Group. The Company
maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance.



The number of independent non-executive Directors has
met the requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen has appropriate accounting professional
qualifications. The independent non-executive Directors
bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out on page 40 of this annual
report. Each of the independent non-executive Director
has confirmed in writing of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Name of directors
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All the appointments of Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are available for inspection
by the Directors and auditors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held
five meetings, all of which were convened in accordance
with the Articles, and the individual attendance of each
Director is set out below:

Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Mr. XU Jihua

Ms. WANG Jianfei

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (Resigned on 9 October 2014)
Mr. WENG Li

Mr. XU Da (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Mr. MA Baofeng (Appointed on 9 October 2014)
Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 9 October 2014)

Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. XING Zhiying

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. XU Jihua is the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director, responsible for providing advice for
the overall management and strategic development
and overseeing the operation of the Board. The other
executive Director Ms. WANG Jianfei acts as the Group’s
chief executive officer who is responsible for the Group’s
overall management, corporate development, strategic
planning and the supervision of day-to-day operation.
The segregation of duties and responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a
balance of power and authority.

5/5
5/5
4/4
5/5
2/2
2/2
2/2
5/5
5/5
5/5

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on

12 June 2009 with specific written terms of reference.
The remuneration committee consists of an executive
Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei, and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng and

Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson
of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee

of the Board are to review and determine the terms

of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent
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procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The remuneration committee held two meetings during
2014 to assess performance of executive Directors

and certain senior management and review their
remuneration. The duties of the remuneration committee
include determining, with delegated responsibility,

the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. All the members attended the meeting.

Number of attendance/

Number of meetings

Name of directors entitled to attend
Ms. WANG Jianfei 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12
June 2009 with specific written terms of reference. The
nomination committee consists of an executive Director,
Ms. WANG Jianfei, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng and Mr. XING
Zhiying. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of the
nomination committee.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the
Board include determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors,
and assessing of the independence of the independent

non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending
candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The nomination committee held two meetings during
2014 to ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet
the requirements of the business of the Company. The
nomination committee also evaluated the effectiveness
of the board diversity policy. All the members attended
the meeting.

Number of attendance/
Number of meetings

Name of directors entitled to attend
Ms. WANG Jianfei 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying 2/2

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing on 12 June 2012. All the independent
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non-executive Directors entered into renewed
appointment letters with the Company in 2012 for a

term of three year. Such term is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.



BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which
set out the requirements for diversity in Board members
and the principles for the selection of Directors.

(1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increased diversity at the

Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In planning the Board’s
composition, board diversity needs to be considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of
the Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates of the Company will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee
reviewed the composition of the Board and concluded
that the Company had met the diversification
requirements with regard to age, cultural and educational
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background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. When making the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors in the future, the nomination
committee will nominate new Directors pursuant to the
requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the
objective of diversity in Board members.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code

of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
Model Code on a regular basis. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2014 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The audit
committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson
of the audit committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and approve the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal control system. The audit committee had
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including accounting practices and
principles adopted by the Group.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and all the members attended the meetings.

Number of attendance/

Number of meetings

Name of directors entitled to attend
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying 2/2
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During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed
and recommended the Company’s results announcements
and annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014
and interim report for the six months ended 30 June

2014 to the Board for approval. The audit committee also
reviewed the accounting issues raised by the independent
auditor of the Company in respect of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and are
in the process of reviewing the relevant issues as described
in the paragraphs under “Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive
induction package which includes introduction on the
business operations, internal procedures and general
policy of the Company and a summary of statutory and
regulatory obligations of directors under the Listing

Rules and other relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, the Directors are provided with regular updates on
the Group’s business, operations, risk management and
corporate governance matters to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. The
Directors are also encouraged to attend both in-house
training and training provided by independent service
providers. During the year, all Directors participated in
various trainings organised by the Company, including the
“Introduction on obligations of Director of Hong Kong Listed
Companies”. According to the training records provided by
the Directors to the Company, each Director has confirmed
that he/she has obtained reading and training materials
during the year under review and has attended the
trainings in relation to various aspects, including but not
limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has clearly defined the responsibility and
authority of the Board and its senior management.

The Group has adopted certain internal control policies to
manage and minimise financial and other risks, to ensure
timely and accurate preparation and reporting of financial
information, and to monitor compliance with laws by the

046 China Qinfa Group Limited

senior management of the Group in the performance of
their duties.

The Group has also established an audit committee
under the Board, which has the functions of monitoring
compliance with laws by the Group’s senior management
and in its daily operations, and of carrying out
investigations for suspected breaches of law. The
Company convened meetings with the audit committee
periodically to discuss financial, operational and risk
management control. During the year, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group and the Directors are of the view that

the existing system of internal control is effective and
adequate to the Group.

The Company has appointed SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited as the independent consultant to review the
matters referred to in the report of the auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
findings were set forth in the announcement of the
Company date 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, and of results and cash flow for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently,
adopted appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, and made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates, and have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors also warrant that the Group’s financial
statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the auditors of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Group is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on page 101 of this report.



AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration to the Group’s external auditors in respect of audit and non-

audit services provided to the Group is set forth below:

RMB’000
Audit services 2,000
Non-audit services” 950
Total 2,950

* Non audit services related to review of interim financial statements and other agreed-upon procedures.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the
Listing Rules to disclose discloseable information on a
true, accurate, complete and timely basis and all other
information that might have significant impact on the
decisions of shareholders and other concerned parties
in an active and timely manner. Also, the Company takes
effort in ensuring all shareholders have equal access to
information.

The management believes that effective communication
with the investment community is essential. The
executive Directors and the chief financial officer of the
Company hold regular briefings and results presentation,
attend investor forums and respond to investors’ call-

in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional
investors and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong

Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast

of the Company’s business and development as well

as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering
information to investors, the Company also listens to
their advice and collects the feedback from them, in

the interests of developing an interactive and mutually
beneficial relationship with the Company’s investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings, including the
election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company can make a written
requisition to the Board or the Company secretary to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to
article 58 of the Company’s articles of association. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company, which is
presently situated at Room 1303, 13th Floor, MassMutual
Tower, No. 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled
at shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders.

The Board will review shareholders’ enquires on a regular
basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders
can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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The Group is a long-time, continuous supporter of
corporate social responsibility, dedicated to contributing
to society through nature preservation and helping the
underprivileged. To maintain its sustainable development
momentum and become a leading international coal
operator, the Group treats its employees, customers, the
society and the natural environment ethically.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has been working tirelessly to build green
communities. Besides promoting a green lifestyle, the
Group strives to minimise damage to the environment
while increasing production efficiency, creating win-win
outcomes for the Group and the society.

Land reclamation

Consistent with the “those who destroys shall reclaim”
guidance issued by the State Council, three coal mines

of the Group (namely Fengxi Coal Mine, Chongsheng Coal
Mine and Xingtao Coal Mine) carried out reclamation
activities for all parcels of land compromised during

the course of mine construction and production. The
reclamation project focuses on agricultural production
and forest restoration according to the principle of

“using for agriculture, forestry or animal husbandry

as appropriate.” The Group will spend approximately
RMB157 million on reclamation projects for the three coal
mines over periods of 22, 27 and 31 years respectively.
Throughout the process, the Group will provide
streamlined management and land protection services,
thereby allowing the land to maximise its economic, social
and ecological benefits.

Office 4R

The Group actively encourages its employees to apply “4R”
(reduce, reuse, recycle and replace) rules in the office.
Under the 4R policy, the Group’s employees replace direct
paper printing with electronic scanning and use email to
transmit documents in order to reduce the use of paper,
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and avoid the use of disposable products. From time to
time, the Group reminds its employees to reuse single-
side printed waste paper for printing internal documents.
The Group’s office drinking fountains also use recyclable
plastic bottles. In the future, the Group will continue

to pursue the 4R policy and maintain a green working
environment.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group considers its employees to be essential for the
business success. Therefore, the Group attaches great
importance to its employees’ physical and mental health
and working environment, as well as their continuous
skill development to enhance competitiveness. Thus, the
Group has formulated occupational safety guidelines and
policies for the working environment, along with related
requirements for different employees, and provides
regular safety training.

Communication channels

The Group believes that work performance and learning
attitudes are affected by internal factors such as the
working environment, attitudes of co-workers and
company policies. The Group therefore adopts an open
approach which encourages employees to report their
opinions to the management and provide the Group with
ways to improve our operations.

Employee benefits

The Group’s employees are an important part of its assets.
This is why employees are covered by insurance policies
taken out by the Group and receive medical benefits in
addition to wages and bonuses. The Group also holds

an annual year-end party to express its gratitude for the
efforts made by the employees throughout the year and
grants outstanding performance awards to employees
with especially excellent performance.



Employee training

The Group’s ability to maintain continuous development
amid severe competition depends on each employee
performing their role well. Towards this end, the Group
regularly invites professionals to organise training
seminars on management, law, accounting, finance

and other corporate fields for its employees, allowing
employees to keep abreast of the latest information and
making sure they have the knowledge and skills they need
to handle the demands of their jobs.

Housing allowance

In addition to general and basic benefits, the Group also
offers housing allowances to coal miners to help limit

the inconvenience they may encounter in getting to and
from the workplace. This arrangement allows them to
relocate to locations near the coal mine at lower cost to
themselves, thereby saving commuting time and expense.

Safety code

As a coal operator, the Group attaches great importance
to the safety of coal miners at work. Workers are therefore
required to comply with the Group’s strict safety code and
wear appropriate safety equipment before entering coal
mines. The Group is particularly proud that the Xingtao
coal mine operated by Huameiao Energy was designated
a Grade 1 Safety Demonstration Mine by the China
National Coal Association.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 105 to 232,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as explained below, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement. Because of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion.

By X BETRE

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2

30 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui )‘;ﬁ

Kowloon
Hong Kong =
=
Tel : (852) 2375 3180 56y

Fax : (852) 2375 3828 AN

E-mail : ms @ms.com.hk w5t
www.ms.com.hk Bt i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
B HEN RS

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Limitation of scope in respect of certain consolidated
statement of financial position items in prior year

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013 were audited by another auditor
whose report dated 31 March 2014 expressed a disclaimer of
opinion in respect of the matters as described below.

The predecessor auditor was unable to obtain sufficient audit
evidence to ascertain the following matters:

(a) the actual originating source or the payees and the nature
of the bank receipts of RMB471,567,000 into the Group’s
bank account during the year ended 31 December 2013 in
relation to settlement of trade receivable balances due from
several customers of Shanxi Hun Yuan Ruifeng Coal Co.,

Ltd. (‘Ruifeng”) and the accuracy and recoverability of the
outstanding trade receivable balances of RMB264,029,000
due from these customers as at 31 December 2013;

(b) validity of the leasing income of RMB137,500,000 from
certain tenants of Ruifeng for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the related outstanding trade receivable balance
of RMB68,750,000 as at 31 December 2013;

(c) the actual originating source or the payees or the nature of
the bank receipts of RMB132,270,000 and RMB463,819,000
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and the period
from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2014 respectively in
relation to settlement of trade receivable balances due
from several customers of the Group and the accuracy and
recoverability of the outstanding trade receivable balances
of RMB752,933,000 due from these customers as at 31
December 2013 (the “Trade Receivables”);

(d) the recoverability of an outstanding balance of
RMB622,327,000 due from non-controlling shareholders
(the “Amount Due from NCI”) as at 31 December 2013; and

(e) the nature and recoverability of prepayments of
RMB161,460,000 as at 31 December 2013 which was
purported to be prepayments to certain suppliers for
purchase of goods (the “Prepayments”).
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(a)

REE T =6+"A=1+—BItFE
A& R LA EREEEEEGREM
NAl((HEKE]) ETEFEWE S K
REBMEA ESEERTEFHNARE
471,567,000 R 17 W 3k 89 B B8 2R 5 W 3k
AREME  URR-_ZE—=F+-A=+
—HRWZERFHNREEZERKE ZERERLE
A R #264,029,0007T By E #E M K 7] We @)
:

REBE-_ZE—=+-A=+—HILFEAH
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RBE-_Z—=F+-A=1+—HILEFEX
—E-NE—AF—H#EE-_ZT-—NE=/f=
+—BIEHEARSEERK BE£EEETE
FRKE 5 RR&E#K ARK132,270,000
TN AR¥463,819,0007T 88 17 W R B IR
TREMAAREYE  UER T —=
+ A=+ BRURZEZTFHNAEERE
WE SRR EH ([EREZERR]) AR
752,933,0007T By ZERE 1 K AT g B 14

RZB—=F+ZA=+—HEWFEZERK
ROREERES ([ERFERESRR]) A
K#622,327,0007TRI AT B 5 %

R-E—=F+-_A=+—H=E®ARET
HERREEYNEMER ([AAERR]) A
R¥161,460,0007CHY 1 E K A Y [B] 14 o



BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (conrinuep)

Limitation of scope in respect of certain consolidated
statement of financial position items in prior year

(continued)

In relation to above matters (a) and (b), as described in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements, the Company disposed
of its entire equity interest in Ruifeng on 29 December 2014

and recognised a loss of RMB162,585,000 (the “Loss of Ruifeng
Disposal”).

In relation to above matter (c), the Trade Receivables were
settled during the year ended 31 December 2014.

In relation to above matter (d), during the year and subsequent to
the year ended 31 December 2014, non-controlling shareholders
have made settlements amounting to RMB285,226,000.

In relation to above matter (e), the Prepayments of
RMB135,171,000 were utilised during the year ended 31
December 2014. A provision for impairment of the remaining
Prepayments of RMB26,289,000 was made during the year (the
“Loss of Prepayments”).

Because of the unavailability of reliable financial information,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
and were unable to carry out alternative audit procedures to
satisfy ourselves about the balances as of 31 December 2013
mentioned in matters (a) to (e) above. Any adjustments to these
balances as of 31 December 2013 would have a consequential
effect on the Loss of Ruifeng Disposal and Loss of Prepayments,
if any, for the year ended 31 December 2014, and the related
elements making up the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related
disclosures in the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B ZHEN RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
B HEN RS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion as to whether the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and as to whether
the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1.2(c)
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a consolidated net loss of RMB1,292,313,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014 and, as of that date,
the Group had net current liabilities of RMB5,278,281,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1.2(c) to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a disclaimer of opinion as described above, on those
statements on 31 March 2014.

Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE _—ZT—MF+_A=1+—HItFE

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Notes (Restated)
(= (&&E7)
Revenue & 5 6,488,279 10,830,133
Cost of sales SHE AR (6,678,679) (9,767.117)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8H), ER (190,400) 1,063,016
Other income, gains and losses HAn A ~ Yz REsHE 6 (46,798) 171,981
Distribution expenses Saki=15 53 (88,350) (152,115)
Administrative expenses THHEX (229,398) (340,619)
Other expenses HAtnpZ (86,673) (217,361)
Results from operating activities RS EE (641,619) 524,902
Finance income EURGION 50,519 37,348
Finance costs BAFS R AR (575,287) (573,762)
Net finance costs WIS A R 7 (524,768) (536,414)
Share of loss of associates D EEEE N B8 18 (11,269) (3,093)
Loss before taxation MBS 18 8 (1,177,656) (14,605)
Income tax expense TSRz 9 (114,657) (121,475)
Loss for the year FREE (1,292,313) (136,080)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mEmUWA S (EE)
ltems that will be reclassified EkgessmoBEEn
subsequently to profit or loss: #IE A -
Foreign currency translation BINETEEE 2 INEMRE
differences for foreign operations =5 263 (15,561)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEREMEEBA
for the year, net of tax (F58) » BREiE 13 263 (15,561)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZHEEIEHASE (1,292,050) (151,641)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEazEBAX
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE=—ZF—MF+=-A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#T T AREFIT
Notes (Restated)
(= (&&E7)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE1E (EE1R),aFl
Equity shareholders of the Company ARARIEREFAE A (1,183,426) (247765)
Non-controlling interests PR = (108,887) 111,685
Loss for the year FREE (1,292,313) (136,080)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EaEzm (BE), WA
attributable to: FCY I
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFEA (1,183,163) (263,326)
Non-controlling interests eI i (108,887) 111,685
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZEEEHAS (1,292,050) (151,641)
Loss per share for loss attributableto FRZARATAERIEE AENL
the equity shareholders of BREE
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted loss per share SRER R EEE 14 (RMB57 cents) (RMB12 cents)
(ARM®577) (AR%129)

Details of dividends payable are set out in Note 30(f).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MIARR R

At 31 December 2014 R=—Z—W&E+—_A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARBT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B MR 15 7,028,164 6,108,676
Coal mining rights B R R TR 16 4,633,632 4,971,400
Lease prepayments HEBE RN 17 112,921 129,448
Interests in associates A RN W - e 18 77,267 92,267
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIAE B 19(a) 19,384 151,409
11,871,368 11,453,200
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 326,355 400,430
Trade and bill receivables JEUE R R R IR AR 22 1,268,992 2,699,343
Prepayments and other receivables TE - BR 3 N B A FE M BR 5K 23 863,461 1,626,390
Pledged deposits EEBER 24 497,129 1,983,604
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEEY 25 53,864 483,310
3,009,801 7,093,077
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bill payables BN E SRR S IEMNRE 26 (1,048,131) (1,589,768)
Other payables H fth FE A BR X 27 (2,258,701) (2,386,687)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIRITEE 28 (4,734,105) (6,483,197)
Tax payable FEfH R I (247,145) (468,337)
(8,288,082) (10,927,989)
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (5,278,281) (3,834,912)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 6,593,087 7,618,288
Non-current liabilities FREEEF
Other payables E AR 27 (95,782) (131,549)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITEE 28 (2,917,796) (2,574,906)
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIREZRE 29 (74,693) (81,869)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEAE 19(b) (1,138,474) (1,139,326)
(4,226,745) (3,927,650)
Net assets HERE 2,366,342 3,690,638
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

At 31 December 2014 A=—Z—MNFE+—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR® T AREET T
Capital and reserves AR f#
Share capital [N 30(b) 176,531 176,531
Perpetual subordinated convertible KA IR AR AT R R 78 25
securities 30(c) 156,931 156,931
Reserves 1 30(d) 781,592 1,968,900
Total equity attributable to equity KATEREE AENL
shareholders of the Company TELSAEEE 1,115,054 2,302,362
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS 1,251,288 1,388,276
Total equity S 2,366,342 3,690,638

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of RZEBE—RAF=ZA=+—HEFRZEEEER

China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March 2015. NAIEESIERTETE -
Director Director
EF EF
XU Jihua WANG Jianfei
wE#E Bk
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEER®BHR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F—MF+-A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRAERRE AR
Perpetual
subordinated Share-based Non
Share Share  convertible Merger Exchange  compensation Retained controlling Total
Capital premium  securities Teserve Reserves Teserve Teserve earnings Total interests equity
KARE: R BER
RE RARE  TRRER  AURR B EXRGR  ZMeRB  RERA @ FnRER  BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Notes  Note30(o) Note30(d)i)  Note30(c) Note30(d)i) Note30(d)ii) Note30(d)iv)  Note 30(d)iv)
B W0k MES0Q)) WS HEES0C)) R S0 HE 30 S0
At1January 2013 W-8-Z£-f-B 176,266 376,260 156,931 127442 448,080 (123,744) 11,890 1,458,950 2,632,075 1,256,591 3,888,666
Total comprehensive income EREERALR
for the year
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (E8)/ &7 = = = = = = = (247768)  (247768) 111685 (136,080)
Other comprehensive loss A 2AEE
Foreign currency translation ENEBEE MG
differences for foreign operations ~ AEZ%E 30(d)iv) - - - - - (15,561) - - (15,561) - (15,561)
Totalother comprehensiveloss  Eft2 AEEAE = = = = = (15,561) = = (15,561) = (15,561)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 278 (E518) /WA 258 = = = = = (15,561) = (247765)  (263,326) 111685 (151,641)
Transactions with equity HERREAZRS
shareholders, and non-controlling &2 B&% -
interests, recorded directly RERERSIER
in equity
Shares ssued in respect of SEMARA B B 17H
scrip dividends i3 30()vii) 265 1757 = = = = = = 2,022 = 2,022
Dividends declared and paid AEEBERR
in respect of the current year ERRE 30(a)i)() - (16,439) - - - - - - (16,439) - (16,439)
Dividends declared and paid BEEERERR
inrespectof the previousyear ~ JEfHRE 30 - (49,566) - - - - - - (49,566) - (49,566)
Distribution relating to perpetual  EAARBAARK
subordinated convertible securities 58 HHA K 30(c) = (4,634) - - - - - - (4,634) - (4,634)
Capital contribution received from  E—fi3ERRREAT
anon-controlling shareholder BAILE = = = = = - - - - 20000 20000
Appropriation of maintenanceand  HEAERLERS
production funds 30(a)ii) - - - - 281,507 - - (281,507) - - -
Utllisation of maintenanceand ~ BR%EREEES
production funds 30(a)ii) - - - - (49,525) - - 49525 - - -
Appropriation to reserves REAR 30(d)ti) - - - - 4,505 - - (4,508) - - -
Equity-settled share-based EREENRAA
payments AN 300 = S s S S - 2230 - 2130 - 2130
Totaltransactions withequity ~ EHEREAARGELR
shareholders and non-controlling &7 R HEE
interests 265 (68,882) - = 236,487 - 2,230 (236,487) (66,387) 20,000 (46,387)
At31 December 2013 RZ%-Z%F
+=A=t+-8 176,531 307378* 156,931 127 442* 684,567* (139,309 14,120 974,698* 2,302,362 1,388,276 3,690,638
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BARRBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—Z &+ _—_A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARRRREEARE
Perpetual Retained
subordinated Share-based ~ earnings/ Non
Share Share  convertible Merger Exchange compensation ~ (Accumulated controlling Total
Capital premium  securities reserve Reserves reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
AARK NRhAEE REEF/

i KOEE TARES At R Eifie ZMeRE  (ZRER) &t FERER REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®Tn AR®Tn AR®Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR®Tn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn
Notes  Note30(o) Note30(d)i)  Note30(c) Note30(d)i) Note30(d)ii) Note30(d)iv)  Note 30(d)iv)
B WES0k)  MEES0Q)) WS HEE0()) MR S0 HiE 30 MR S0

At1January 2014 W=%-mE-A-R 176,531 307378 156,331 127442 684,567 (139,305) 14,120 974,698 2,302,362 1,388,276 3,690,638
Total comprehensive income EREERALE

for the year

Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (1183426)  (1183,426)  (108,887) (1,202,313

Other comprehensive income Efr2ERA
Foreign currency translation ENEHEE MG

differences for foreign operations ~ AEZE 30(a)v) - - - - - 263 - - 263 - 263
Total other comprehensiveincome b 2ERALE - - - - - 263 - - 263 - 263
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  2EUA /(BE) 8 - - - - - 263 - (1183426)  (1183163)  (108,887)  (1,292,050)

Transactions with equity HERREAZRS
shareholders, and non-controlling &2 BR% -
interests, recorded directly RERERSIER

in equity
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR - - - - - - - - - (31436)  (31434)
Distrioution relating to perpetual ~ EXARRTERES

subordinated convertible securities & B34)% & 30() - (4,628) - - - - - - (4,628) - (4,628)
Capital contribution received from  E—fi R RREAT

anon-controlling shareholder ~~ ZAHE - - - - - - - - - 3333 3,333
Appropriation of maintenanceand  AR&#ERLERS

production funds 30(a)ii) - - - - 103,661 - - (103,661) - - -
Utilisation of maintenanceand ~ HFBEREERS

production funds 30(al)i) - - - - (70,157) - - 70,157 - - -
Appropriation to reserves BREAE 30(c)ii) - - - - 2,644 - - (2,644) - - -
Release of maintenance and RiLE-FHEAR

production funds upon disposal 4RI EERAE

of asubsidiary i 30l - - - - (59,778) - - 59,778 - - -
Release of reserves upon disposal  REE—EHBAT

of a subsidiary Tahple 2 G 30(d)ti) - - - - (15,434) - - 15,434 - - -
Equity-settled share-based REREENER A

payments AR 300)) - - - - - - 483 - 483 - 483
Share options lapsed BRMZERE 30(d)v) - - - - - - (6,334) 6,334 - - -

Total transactions with equity HERREALR SR
shareholders and non-controlling ~ FFIARIEREE

interests - (4,628) - - (39,064) - (5,851) 45,398 (4145) (28,101) (32,246)
At 31 December 2014 RZB-ME
+=A=t+-A 176,531 302,750% 156,931 127,442 645,503* (139,042)* 8,260* (163,330 1,115,054 1,251,288 2,366,362
*  These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBEERES E7f ﬂ"‘z MR AAR
RMB781,592,000 (2013: RMB1,968,900,000) in the consolidated #781,592,0007T (= ? & ¢ R ¥
statement of financial position. 1,968,900,0007T) TEAE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE=—F—MF+-A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
Notes (Restated)
B 5T (&E5)
Operating activities RETER
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &4 E & 1§ (Fr )
H4 25(b) 1,347,618 (435,337)
Interest paid ERFE (770,223) (551,327)
PRC Corporate Income Tax refund/(paid) E[El /(1)
h B AR 14,180 (78,064)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESTE TS,
operating activities (FrH) B F8E 591,575 (1,064,728)
Investing activities REEE
Interest received 2 RFE 50,519 37,348
Proceeds from sale of property, HEE - BE K&
plant and equipment F8 k18 - 120
Acquisition of property, WHEYZE - M5B R &1
plant and equipment (1,218,464) (885,044)
Acquisition of coal mining rights Wit s B R BB A - (105,270)
Net proceeds from disposal of & —EHB A RS
a subsidiary TIEEE 32 79,992 -
Capital injection in subsidiaries EEMB AR - (68,995)
Acquisition in associates g /NG| (9,698) (39,200)
Net cash used in investing activities =~ REZEBFMARSFHE (1,097,651) (1,061,041)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE—Z &+ _—_A=+—HI-FE

2014 2013
—E-HmF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
Notes (Restated)
B aE €7D
Financing activities RIEER
Distribution relating to perpetual ERSK A R 8% AT A AR 75 5
subordinated convertible securities BEMNDIK 30(c) (4,628) (4,634)
Proceeds from interest-bearing T EIRITIBEE TS AUR
bank borrowings 6,781,000 10,834,905
Repayment of interest-bearing BBt ERTEE
bank borrowings (8,189,980) (9,037,073)
Change in pledged deposits EERTERE 1,486,475 (342,360)
Capital contribution received from B—HIEERBRRGE TER
a non-controlling shareholder HE 3,333 20,000
Dividends paid to equity shareholders MEZEE AENEE 30(f) - (63,983)
Net cash generated from financing BMETEERSTFHE
activities 76,200 1,406,855
Net decrease in cash and RERBESEEWRD
cash equivalents o] (429,876) (718,914)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1January R—F—B2ZREREE
&Y 25(a) 483,310 1,190,541
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE & 430 11,683
Cash and cash equivalents at RT+ZA=+—HzHE2
31 December RESEEY 25(a) 53,864 483,310
Significant non-cash transaction BEAFRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired RBE-Z—=F+-"A=+—HIEFE K&
property, plant and equipment of RMB339,800,000 from non- BREERBREREDE  BERIKEBEARK
controlling shareholders to settle part of the amount due from 339,800,0007T * LA#AE FE M IEFE IRAR R H9 2B 5
non-controlling shareholders. FRIE ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B ISR R

At 31 December 2014 R=—Z—W&E+—_A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(=2 AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIRE 20 658,807 658,807
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i N NG 23 534,049 1,304,088
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEEY 25 1 67
534,050 1,304,155
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H th FE - BR X 27 (5,212) (761,013)
Net current assets REBEEFHE 528,838 543,142
Net assets BEEFE 1,187,645 1,201,949
Capital and reserves R R s
Share capital A&z 30(b) 176,531 176,531
Perpetual subordinated convertible VNGRS &
securities 30(c) 156,931 156,931
Reserves s 30(d) 854,183 868,487
Total equity R 1,187,645 1,201,949

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of

China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March 2015.

Director

EF

XU Jihua

wEE

RIZB-AF=A=1THAEPERZEEAR

NEEFSHERIRETE -

Director
BF
WANG Jianfei
F IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1

IS RAR ML

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

General information

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008 as

an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 3 July 2009 (the “Listing Date”). The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and the principal place of business of the Company is 22nd
Floor, South Tower, Poly International Plaza, No. 1 Pazhou
East Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong, People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending
of coal, shipping transportation and port business in the
PRC.

1.2 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IAS”) and related Interpretations, promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1 RABERBREE @

PREPARATION (conTiNuED)
1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

1.2RBEXE ()

(b) Basis of measurement (b) sTEEE

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand,
except when otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a consolidated net loss of approximately
RMB1,292,313,000 (2013: RMB136,080,000) for the

year ended 31 December 2014 and, as of that date, the
Group recorded a net current liabilities of approximately
RMB5,278,281,000 (2013: RMB3,834,912,000). These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the assumptions that the Group will continue to
operate as a going concern notwithstanding the conditions
prevailing as at 31 December 2014 and subsequently
thereto up to the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements. In order to improve the Group’s
financial positions, immediate liquidity and cash flows,
and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern, the
directors of the Company have adopted several measures
together with other measures in progress at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements which
include, but not limited to, the followings:

(i) Apply cost control measures in cost of sales and
administrative expenses;

(i) The Group is currently in the process of negotiating
with certain banks to renew its existing interest-
bearing bank borrowings and banking facilities with
an aggregate amount of RMB1,363,500,000 and
RMB300,000,000 respectively;

BRIERBIER  AHBEHRERUAARE (TAR
) REMIR  MAESEYNRAIAER
B TR BGTE -

WAV BEBRRAA T EEERE LKA
A e

(c) FEREHEE

AEEREE-_T—NF+-_A=+—81
FEHRBHARK,292,313,0007T (ZZE—
=% : AR%¥136,080,0007T) 2R A& FE
B mMRER REEZRBEEFEHA
R¥5,278,281,0007T (ZE— =4 : AR¥
3,834,912,0007T) ° ZF B/ AKPFE—IE
ERTHBARZR  SASBHERBFEL
BRI NIFEE A RRM o

BEN_T—NF+-_A=+—HRHEZE
HWESAEBMBHRREBLR LABER - &8
MBBRRIDBRAEESEBAFELEE
EMimEL - BNENEEZ TR ~ ATR
R zRBESMAER  UREAKHE
MENARSBEREEEZE  NRREFER
METHEERZEREGS M BHRKRE R
EEBITEMIER - B85 (BTRR) A TH
g

(i) BR AR B2 22 il 46 it 128 5l 5 8 X AN AT IR
FX

(i) AEBFHEZERITER  UEEEB
D alAANE®E1,363,500,0007T KA R
300,000,000 BT ERITEE RIR
TEE
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COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) Going concern basis (continued)

(iii) Subsequent to 31 December 2014, the Group has
renewed or obtained new interest-bearing bank
borrowings and banking facilities of RMB606,490,000
and RMB600,000,000 respectively. The renewed
interest-bearing bank borrowings and banking facilities
would be repayable after 31 December 2015 except an
interest-bearing bank borrowing of RMB71,540,000
would be due in August 2015; and

(iv) Forinterest-bearing bank borrowings which will be
mature before 31 December 2015, the Group will
actively negotiate with the banks when they fall due
to secure necessary fund to meet the Group’s working
capital and financial requirements in the future.

The directors of the Company, have evaluated all the
relevant facts available to them, are of the opinion that
the Group would be able to renew such interest-bearing
bank borrowings upon maturity.

In addition to the above measures, the directors of the
Company have prepared a cash flow forecast for the next
twelve months and are of the opinion that the Group would
generate positive cash inflows from its operations.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the
measures described above and after assessing the Group’s
current and forecasted cash positions, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
their financial obligations in full in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 on a going
concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their estimated recoverable
amounts, to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively, and to provide
for any further liabilities which may arise. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other resources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised

if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application

of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
described as follows:

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables are
assessed and provided based on management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. Any
increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the profit or loss in future years.
At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group’s
trade and bill receivables was RMB1,268,992,000 (2013:
RMB2,699,343,000). Further details are disclosed in Note
22.

1

RAEERFEHEE @

1.2RBE%E (4)
(d) FTRZ2 #E & b5t

B ERERENT A BT RS ERIM R
MR E L HE - At RBR - ZFH
B Bt RBRREFESTERNERNE
E-Af BABRIHN2HREE - 25
AAREEERRERBAEERMNEERE
MTITRREEMNZREMEAREL - B
BRRBEECEMEECERSANNEESRS
ERREEREH B A ERE - BRARA R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Use of judgements and estimates (continued)
Depreciation

Other than the mining structures, property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual values. The management periodically
reviews changes in technology and industry conditions,
asset retirement activity and residual values to determine
adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives and
depreciation rates. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation expenses in future periods. At 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, other than the mining structure, was
RMB5,410,913,000 (2013: RMB4,853,026,000). Further
details are disclosed in Note 15.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of distributing and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of competitor’s actions in response to severe industry
cycles or other changes in market condition. Management
will reassess the estimations at each reporting date. At

31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group’s

inventories was RMB326,355,000 (2013: RMB400,430,000).

Further details are disclosed in Note 21.

Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate
amounts because of the subjective judgements involved
in developing such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that have to
be met before estimated coal reserves can be designated
as “proved” and “probable”. Proved and probable coal
reserve estimates are updated on a regular basis and
have taken into account recent production and technical
information about each mine. In addition, as prices and
cost levels change from year to year, the estimate of
proved and probable coal reserves also changes. This
change is considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in related
depreciation and amortisation rates.
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1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) Use of judgements and estimates (continued)

(iv) Coal reserves (continued)

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
depreciation and amortisation expenses and impairment
loss. Depreciation and amortisation rates are determined
based on estimated proved and probable coal reserve
quantity (the denominator) and capitalised costs of mining
structures and coal mining rights (the numerator). The
capitalised cost of mining structures are depreciated and
coal mining rights are amortised based on the units of coal
produced. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts

of the Group’s mining structure recognised in property,
plant and equipment and the Group’s coal mining rights
were RMB1,617,251,000 (2013: RMB1,255,650,000) and
RMB4,633,632,000 (2013: RMB4,971,400,000) respectively.
Further details are disclosed in Notes 15 and 16
respectively.

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation and
mine closure involves the estimates of the amount and
timing for the future cash spending as well as the discount
rate used for reflecting current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
Group considers various factors, including future production
volume and development plan, the geological structure

of the mining regions and reserve volume, to determine

the scope, amount and timing of reclamation and mine
closure works to be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from the Group and
the estimated liabilities may turn out to be different from
the actual expenditure incurred. The discount rate used

by the Group may also be altered to reflect the changes in
the market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability, such as changes of the
borrowing rate and inflation rate in the market. As changes
in estimates occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in
estimated costs, or changes in timing of the performance
of reclamation activities), revisions to the obligations will

be recognised. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount
of the Group’s accrued reclamation obligations was
RMB74,693,000 (2013: RMB81,869,000). Further details are
disclosed in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R B 5

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1 REAESEREREE @w
PREPARATION (conTiNuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued) 1.25HEEE @)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates (continued) (d) PR 2 HIER Rt ()

(vi) Impairment of non-financial assets (vi) EFEBMEERE
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there REE NG ER S AT G EREF A IE
is any indication that non-financial assets with definite CREESAGFETMAREDRR - MFEE
lives may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the MZETR  AEBGREBEHMT2KAMMZ
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the assets in FHBRGFTEEZ T KREI SRR o sFEEM
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2(k). FEeMEERGHBRETRE  AEEE
In assessing whether there is any indication that non- BRE A RINFERRRZ TR - FIIAE
financial assets may be impaired, the Group considers ERENL BN NELBBARTSIBER
indications from both internal and external sources of REBERFE2EE - ZEFTHBEEME
information such as evidence of obsolescence or decline EEIREED A R hE o

in economic performance of the assets, changes in market
conditions and economic environment. These assessments
are subjective and require management’s judgements and

estimations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

2 BAEFBE
(a) B DB RIFERES

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests

that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of

the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that

do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (Note 2(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate (Note
2(b)) or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2(k)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under

the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (Note 2(k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in

the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ERETEER @w

(CONTINUED)

(b) Associates (continued) (b) B¢ AT (@)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting

gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2(k)), unless classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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2

(c)

(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets

and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups
of CGU, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (Note
2(k)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in RMB
(the “presentation currency”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Foreign currency (continued)
Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated

at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the financial year. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

(iii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to RMB at exchange rates at the reporting
date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to RMB at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve, except to the extent that the translation difference
is allocated to non-controlling interests.

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely
to occur in the foreseeable future, then foreign currency
differences arising from such item form part of the net
investment in the foreign operation. Accordingly, such
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve.
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2

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the
date that they are originated. All other financial assets are
recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control
over the transferred assets. Any interest in such transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset
the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets:
loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses (Note 2(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables (continued)

Loans and receivables comprise pledged deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and bill receivables, and
prepayments and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into know amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the
trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities

into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise interest-bearing bank
borrowings, trade and bill payables, and other payables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Share capital

(f)

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of
any tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued by

the Group gives the right to the holder to convert these
securities into a fixed number of the Company’s shares

at any time at a fixed exercise price per share. Perpetual
subordinated convertible securities with no contracted
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any distribution
are classified as equity. Respective distributions if and when
declared are treated as equity dividends.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of buildings, vessels, plant and equipment and
other properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs
(Note 2(s)) and changes in the measurement of existing
liabilities recognised for these costs resulting from changes
in the timing or outflow of resources required to settle the
obligation or from changes in the discount rate. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i) Recognition and measurement (continued)

When proved and probable coal reserves have been
determined, costs incurred to develop coal mines are
capitalised as part of the cost of the mining structures. All
other expenditures, including the costs of removing waste
materials, the cost of repairs and maintenance and major
overhaul, are expensed as they are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the
item) is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its

cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of

the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Significant components of individual assets
are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is
different from the remainder of the asset, that component is
depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of
an item of property, plant and equipment, other than mining
structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
years of significant items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years
Electronic and other equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years
Port 30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-
production method, utilising only proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for intended use. Assets under construction are
transferred to the relevant categories of property, plant
and equipment upon the completion of their respective
construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB AR

2 BEXEFHBE @

(f) ¥  WERRE®
(i) 3786

FEDREERATRERSREEE - @5l
BENEZMN & T UM ﬂﬂ:’%ﬂﬂi )
AfERFREEEMNEMIS TR - RIFZE
DEEBTUFE -

WEDZRYME  BMERZHER (RERE
MBRIN) FE D EEE R A FE U ERE
E’r%ﬁgﬁ/\\%ﬁmqjﬁﬁm\ °

ME - BB EREEAEBR B AT MR F

EREEIAIEAFEIT

BEREF 102304
W 2s 3&E304F
BT REMEZE 3E1045
RE 5Z& 154
=4 10Z=304F
&0 304

REZEMERBEEHFRARETHERES
UARERhELER A B A A BRI TINE -

R EE TR A EREE AR AT AR IT
E-REZEERBETKE  BAY
% BB M&EOE AR -

WEE AERAFHEEEERERER
#EiTie s kR (Em) -

Annual Report 2014 —Z—MEFH 131



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(g) Coal mining rights
Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights acquired
from the government or through a business combination.

Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-

production method, utilising only proved and probable coal

reserves in the depletion base.

(h) Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights
and sea use rights paid to PRC government authorities.
Lease prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the rights except
that the amortisation is included as part of assets under
construction when the amortisation can be directly
attributable to the cost of relevant assets during the
construction period.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their

existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured

inventories and work in progress, cost includes an

appropriate share of production overheads based on normal

operating capacity.
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(i)

@

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of spending
estimates at both surface and underground mines in
accordance with the PRC rules and regulations. The Group
estimates its liabilities for final reclamation and mine
closure based upon detailed calculations of the amount
and timing of the future cash spending to perform the
required work. Spending estimates are escalated for
inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability such that the amount
of provision reflects the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The Group
records a corresponding asset associated with the liability
for final reclamation and mine closure. The obligation

and corresponding asset are recognised in the period in
which the liability is incurred. The asset is depreciated on
the units-of-production method over its expected life and
the liability is accreted to the projected spending date. As
changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan revisions,
changes in estimated costs, or changes in timing of the
performance of reclamation activities), the revisions to the
obligation and the corresponding asset are recognised at
the appropriate discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

(k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of assets
Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, including interests in associates, are assessed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition

of the asset, and that the loss event(s) had an impact on

the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor

or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers, the disappearance
of an active market for a security, or observable data
indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected
cash flows from a group of financial assets. In addition, for
an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of
impairment includes a significant or prolonged decline in its
fair value below its cost.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for financial
assets measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables)
at both an individual asset and a collective level. All
individually significant assets are individually assessed

for impairment. Those found not to be impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that

are not individually significant are collectively assessed

for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by
grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.
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(k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical
information on the timing of recoveries and the amount of
loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are
likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical
trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between
its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables. When the Group considers that there are no
realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss
subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets,
other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill that
have indefinite useful lives or coal mining rights that are not
yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent

of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an
operating segment ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which
impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash
inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate
assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent
basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of the
CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

136 China Qinfa Group Limited FE&#E@EMERA 7

2 BEXEFHBE @

(k) EERE @
(i) EEMEE @)

BEIRSELEUNATRESEEEER
BEREAARBEREEXNAMEFHNRS
o EMEERERR  BAARKRERE
SRAURREEMSHEERBEREE
3R & B A B E BB Y RS RO A AT RE 3R
R HREHRE- - BUMEANANS - BE
SEREBEZR/NER  BFEERTEL
BenE ERFAMOBUNEMEENK
ReELRUZRERE - RIFHEEDH
FRARAZ % REETRENANERIR
RANBHREENEBHELETERNRER
Bl EESEKRENREELENUS TIAE
B REBAHTESHNEESOEERN
AtatnmRREERNREeEEEMA
Al e

AEENCEEEYBELERREREL
HER—EREELEMER - BEREEMN
EEMN-—HNERIEERSELSEN - I
ETRENFHAMER AL XEEEDBH
ReELEMN—D -

MEBENIEETHER - IREeEEFLE
ROBEBRETUADE  BXBRENET
ReELEN CREELEMAR) OEFARE
BHREE  ERELIREZRSELE
fr CReELBMARN) PEMEENKRE
o

EEBENREBETSRE - iEMEE
mE - BERESRENEENETEBT
BaHEEDREERRAETNRESER
(BB ERHEE) RIR



2

(v

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund

Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong

Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage

of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group

which operate in the PRC are required to participate

in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are

required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs

to the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group
to reduce existing level of contributions for each of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
() Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value

is measured at grant date using the Binomial Model and
Binomial Lattice Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment

to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate

to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result

of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one

or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course of ordinary
activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and
value added tax. Revenue is recognised when persuasive
evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there

is no continuing management involvement with the goods,
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is
probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can
be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a
reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Revenue (continued)
Income from charter hire

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in
nature, is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised on a percentage-
of-completion basis, which is determined on the time
proportion method of each individual voyage.

(iii) Lease income from operating leases

Lease income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over

the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent leases are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement

of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.

(p) Finance income and costs

Finance income comprise interest income. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective
interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings

and bank charges. Borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

(g) Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

(a)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Income tax expense (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purpose and their tax bases.

Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that

it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition

of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax assets can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2

(a)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Income tax expense (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

Dividends payable

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which
they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2

(s)

(t)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Where funds have been
borrowed generally, and used for the purpose of obtaining
qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate at 10.87% has been
applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost

of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks and financial institutions on behalf of subsidiaries to
secure interest-bearing bank borrowings and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the initial amount, less amortization of fees recognised

in accordance with IAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These estimates
are determined based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by management’s
judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(t) Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank
borrowings of subsidiaries or associates are provided for
no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.

(u) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated

for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide

the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may

be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties

(@) Aperson,or aclose member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2

(x)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 BIBERSH

In the preparation of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following revised standards and a new
interpretation issued by the IASB.

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Investment entities

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

IFRIC 21 Levies

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

None of these amendments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR i o
4 SEGMENT REPORTING 4 RS
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DHEP¥E - EERAE
The Group has three reportable segments — coal business, REBAE=ERREDH — KERER - 18

shipping transportation and port business — which are the
Group’s strategic business units. These strategic business
units offer different products and services, and are managed
separately because they require different technology and
marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business
units, the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews internal
management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CEO monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
adjusted profit before net finance costs and income tax
expense. ltems not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as unallocated head office and corporate
administration costs are further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, coal mining
rights, lease prepayments, interests in associates and
current assets with the exception of other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and bill payables and
other payables attributable to activities of the individual
segments, accrued reclamation obligations and interest-
bearing bank borrowings managed directly by the segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinueD) 4 DEWHRE @

(a) PEPEME - EEREE )
WAREHIRBEZEDPEELEZHERE
RSB TR FRE D ED

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.

Coal business Shipping transportation Port business Total
RRER MEER BOER @
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=f ZB-MF —T-=F ZB-MF —T-=Ff ZE-MOF -T-=
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®Tr ARBTT AR®Tn ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(55) (&=5) (f==5)
Revenue from external shabas P laa
customers 6,292,314 10,698,908 157,132 131,225 38,833 - 6,488,279 10,830,133
Inter-segment revenue A EE MR - - 75,354 123,699 1,647 - 77,001 123,699
Reportable segmentrevenue ~ REBELLEK 2
from continuing operation AHEIBRE 6,292,314 10,698,908 232,486 254,924 40,480 - 6,565,280 10,953,832
Reportable segment (loss)/ W& 2 HEBAT
profit before taxation (&8),/ &7 (503,639) 766,341 18,568  (236,346) 9,492 - (475579) 529,995
Loss on disposal of vessels REERMMEE
under construction - - - 116,014 - - - 116,014
Depreciation and amortisation AT & K4
for the year 159,350 161,900 55,163 75,723 5,637 = 220,150 237623
Impairment losses on property, %1% « BE R/
plant and equipment REEE 18,674 - - 84,500 - - 18,674 84,500
Impairment loss on interest ~ R—FEIBA A RIER
in an associate ZREER 19,333 - - - - - 19,333 -
Impairment losses on R R RE MK
prepayments and R REES
other receivables 42,136 7838 - - - - 42,136 7838
Reportable segment assets HREFDEE 12,399,005 16,542,694 896,359 1,140,770 1,998,886 1,687,059 15,294,250 19,370,523
(including interests in (BERBENT
associates) 1) 77,267 92,267 - - - - 77,267 92,267
Reportable segment liabilities "% 2 HBEE (9,818,480) (12,463,809 (933,003)  (1,185,296)  (1,458,739)  (1,118,059) (12,210,222) (14,767164)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,loss  (b) AR &5 BHIW S ~ BRBIAIEE - BE
before taxation, assets and liabilities REaEHER
Revenue U &=
2014 2013
—E-—MEF -=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
Reportable segment revenue Al 2R o Ep i s 6,565,280 10,953,832
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 9 ZPRIUL 25 2 144 (77,001) (123,699)
Consolidated revenue fra e 6,488,279 10,830,133
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4 SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinueD)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, loss

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4
(b) ATERE D EHIUER - BRFLAIEE - BE

DEIRE @

BB AR

before taxation, assets and liabilities (continued) REEHER @
Loss before taxation BRTE AT B 18
2014 2013
—E-NEF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&&E=75)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A& D ERBIAT (E51R), & A
before taxation (475,579) 529,995
Elimination of inter-segment profit 7 EB R Fl 2 55 491 4,104
Unallocated head office and AOBRRATMARIFRY
corporate expenses (15,215) (12,290)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary s B AR 2 EiE (162,585) -
Net finance costs BT K A R (524,768) (636,414)
Consolidated loss before taxation A BRTBLATEE (1,177,656) (14,605)
Assets BE
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Reportable segment assets AREDEPEE 15,294,250 19,370,523
Elimination of inter-segment D EPE R ER R R 17 & 2 H 85
receivables and inventories (434,207) (215,434)
Elimination of receivables from JE W48 N B BR AR 2 $1 85
head office - (760,924)
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIAE B 19,384 151,409
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 1,742 703
Consolidated total assets SCAEBERE 14,881,169 18,546,277
Liabilities =R
2014 2013
=F-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Reportable segment liabilities AlFRESEE 12,210,222 14,767,164
Elimination of inter-segment payables 42 & & < BR 2 1 85 (1,086,257) (215,200)
Elimination of payables to head office ~ FET42 A BIBRFk 2 44 - (1,304,077)
Tax payable FESBETE 247,145 468,337
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBEE 1,138,474 1,139,326
Unallocated liabilities AABLEE 5,243 89
Consolidated total liabilities mEAEes 12,514,827 14,855,639
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

4
(c)

(d)

SEGMENT REPORTING (continuep)
Geographic information

The Group’s total assets are primarily dominated by

assets handling its coal business, shipping transportation
and port business. The coal is sold primarily to the PRC
domestic customers and investments in most of the coal
mines are physically located in the PRC. Also, the port is
physically located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets and
liabilities are almost all located in the PRC. The vessels

are primarily deployed across geographical markets for
shipping transportation throughout the world. As a result,

4

DEIRE @

(c) BHESH

AEENREETER/REERRES Ml
BEREBHOMNBEORKEE KREBE
THEBEARTS KO RBREEED H

R E o s - BAGIRPEIRA - Fitt

HENEEMBEAT2MUNTE - G
TEREHRBEANNMENET SR ° 8
o ARBEEFRRRARMERD EE DA
Eléﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁzﬁﬁﬂilﬁﬁ% S

- RREFRAEMBLEAENKZE 2T

the directors of the Company consider that it will not be iﬂl@”*ﬁéﬁﬂ
meaningful to allocate the Group’s assets and their related
capital expenditure to specific geographical segments.
Accordingly, geographical segment information is only
presented for revenue, which is based on the geographical
location of customers.
Revenue from external customers SRR U as
2014 2013
—F-mF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETE
The PRC A 6,376,090 10,700,050
Other countries HEIR 112,189 130,083
Total =L 6,488,279 10,830,133
Information about major customers d) EBEEEEF2ER

During the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue derived
only from the following customers in coal business segment
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue are as follows:

WBE-T—ME+=A=+—BILFE
H 32 516725 B S B8 1 0% 2 T 31 i

BomEFaWaEnT

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Customer A ZEA 925,420 N/A N3 A
Customer B =FB 742,843 N/A “ig
Customer C =FC 680,572 N/A 73

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no single
customer with whom transactions had exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

5 REVENUE 5 Wz
AEWEEREHERERBARBEEKA -

Revenue for the year mainly represents the sales of goods
and charter hire income.

The amount of each significant category of revenue RENSEEZRFNKRSEHINWT
recognised during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—E—F —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Sales of coal BERSHE 6,292,314 10,698,908
Charter hire income He WA 157,132 131,225
Port service income & O RIS YR A 38,833 =
6,488,279 10,830,133
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6 HilA - WERKEE
2014 2013
—E—mE —_F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Notes (Restated)
(ks (5&E5)
Leasing income MEWRA (i) 103,125 137,500
Government subsidies BB & (ii) 7111 12,019
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net BN (&8),/ W
HEE (16,975) 19,107
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary tE—HHBARZ
g (162,585) -
Others Ht 22,526 3,355
(46,798) 171,981
(i) The Group leased out an area with coal mine of Shanxi () AEEZLAEREREEERETA

A ([WEKR]) FoBEMEL - AR
ElE FHKA -

Hun Yuan Ruifeng Coal Co., Ltd. (“Ruifeng Coal”) for
fixed leasing income on an annual basis.

(ii) The Group received unconditional subsidies from (i) 7N E A E RS S HD BT B8 S
local government during the years as recognition of e EREXBASBEHEMKEER
the Group’s contribution to the development of local FTEE L ©
economy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

7 NET FINANCE COSTS

7 I AFE

2014 2013
—E—0F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETIT
(Restated)
€:==))
Interest income rMekA (50,519) (37,348)
Interest on interest-bearing bank TFERNEBHEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable 5T B ER1T
within five years & 630,675 563,995
Interest on interest-bearing bank RERBHREEZ
borrowings repayable over five years FTERTT B 77,997 52,447
Interest charge on unwinding of FEFTR 2 M SR (FiFE29)
discounts (Note 29) 5,224 5,141
Less: interest capitalised into property, & : W3 - BERZETE
plant and equipment* B B+ (200,160) (123,859)
513,736 497724
Bank charges RITEA 61,551 76,038
Finance costs EUp DN 575,287 573,762
Net finance costs R I 524,768 536,414

*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.97%-

10.87% per annum (2013:6.98%-9.15%).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR i o
8 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8 BRBiATE A
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREIATEIBE R (FTA) LATEIR ¢
2014 2013
—E-nFE —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Cost of inventories (Note (i) FERA (BFEG)) 6,542,537 9,502,388
Write-down of inventories to FEMORZE A &35 FE
net realisable value 35,650 8,012
Minimum lease payments under KEHERY 2 REHRENR
operating lease:
— properties — % 6,374 6,155
- vessels — ffa 46,139 120,394
Depreciation for the property, plant VI - BB MEEITE
and equipment 176,603 178,231
Amortisation of lease prepayments MHETE IR E S (MEE17)
(Note 17) 140 140
Amortisation of coal mining rights B PR a (PR EE16(1)
(Note 16(ii)) 43,407 59,252
Auditors’ remuneration 2 il
— audit services — BAZRTE 2,000 3,547
- non-audit services — IEEAZARTE 950 477
(Reversal of)/Impairment losses on (BMm),/ EWRE S ERIUREEE
trade receivable (9,011) 51,947
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERHMHAY (TEEEER
directors’ and chief executive’s E=THRASME (FFE10))
remuneration (Note 10))
Wages, salaries and other benefits Iéf e REMER] 263,168 270,818
Contribution to defined contribution plan éfm%ﬁf,ﬁy\ﬁ'iﬂ 23,891 10,948
Equity-settled share-based payment TR B AR AEER
expenses ﬁ%’ffﬂfi 443 2,230
287,502 283,996
Other expenses HthF
~ loss on disposal of property, plant —REVE  WEL&EER
and equipment (Note 15) (B¥5%15) - 116,059
- impairment losses on property, plant  — ¥1% - R kX EHREEE
and equipment (Note 15) (FtzE15) 18,674 84,500
- impairment loss on interest in — R A& R Al 2 R EEE
an associate (Note 18) (Bfz¥18) 19,333 =
— impairment losses on prepayments — TR BR SR B H b FE W BR SR 2 (B
and other receivables (Note 23) B8 (Bd7E23) 42,136 7,838
- property, plant and equipment — W% - BB R
written-off 48 =
(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB376,269,000 (2013: () FERABREEETKRA - FTEKREH
RMB224,913,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation P HBIM AR ®376,269,0007T (=%
and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also —=%: AR%¥224,913,0007T) - B
included in the respective total amounts disclosed ﬁ BB ARSZERTERINEX
separately above for each of these types of expenses. EBRRBENEBESE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a) Income tax expense in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents:

9 FBBMAx

(a) MEZHEBWARANFFIEHBEXE

2014 2013
—ZE—NF —TE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT
Current tax expense BVAR# T8 7 &2

- PRC Corporate Income Tax — RE PR EME 29,410 296,096

— Overprovision of PRC Corporate — BAEFEFRRPEMEHERE
Income Tax in prior years (Note (vi)) B (BIsE(vi)) (86,990) (60,567)
Deferred tax (Note 19) EIERIA (PFE19) 172,237 (114,054)
114,657 121,475

(ii)

(iii

=

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as these
subsidiaries did not have assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year (2013: Nil).

No provision for income tax has been made for the
subsidiary located in Macau as the subsidiary did not
have assessable profits subject to income tax in Macau
during the year (2013: Nil).

The provision for the PRC corporate income tax was
based on the statutory rate of 256% (2013: 25%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries which carried on
businesses in the PRC.
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e -
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9 [INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTinuED)

(a) Income tax expense in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(V)

(vi)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and loss

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC,

10% (2013: 10%) withholding tax is levied on the foreign
investor in respect of dividend distributions arising from

a foreign investment enterprise’s profits earned after

1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2014, temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits of PRC
subsidiaries amounted to approximately RMB30,000
(2013: RMB762,476,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB3,000 (2013: RMB76,248,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the withholding tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company determined that it is probable that
undistributed profits of these PRC subsidiaries will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group made provisions

for PRC corporate income tax of RMB86,990,000
(2013: RMB60,567,000) in previous years. The

Group implemented a business plan to enhance

the subsidiaries operations and the directors of the
Company believed that the likelihood of utilisation of
such PRC corporate income tax provision had become
remote and therefore had decided to release it to profit
or loss.

before taxation at applicable tax rates:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

9 FIEFHEX w
(a) ZKEZEWRARANFAERBEXE @

(v) BREFRCEMSE  INREEEA
MIMNECER—_ZTENFE—HA—HEHR
BERMmEENREDRIEHE10%
(ZZ—=F :10%) BfEHNFHE - R=
T—NF+-_A=+—H8 BEPBEK
BRANTA 5k a MG EBENA
ARBI0,000C (ZE—=F: ARK
762,476,0007T) - HRAARR A EBER
ARARTEDEZETRHMBRAN
ROERF - W EH A D IRZFR
B m A AS TE IR B ERIELER
HEBAREK3000T (ZE—=4F: A
R#76,248,0007T) °

Vi) REBETHBRRANRBEEERFTEH
1 % AT 13 8 E B A R %#86,990,0007T
(ZE2—=%F: AR%60,567,0007T) &Y
Bl AEBE BEHESTEIAKRESH
BARMKE  BEARBEEZRADH
EETECEMSHBEENAEEEE
o MERTEASEERIE -

(b) B RAB R E 2 FriS B X RERBLAT
BiRZHR

2014 2013
—E-0mF —z—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Loss before taxation BrEL AR (1,177,656) (14,605)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, KABERAMRETERNRTRATEIER
calculated at the applicable tax rates HFERIIE (198,918) 68,262
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ ABAHEBE BHGEE
recognised (Note 19(a)) (MizE19(a)) 218,179 162,754
Recognition of unused tax losses not BRBEFEARERZ A ARIE
recognised in prior years [E518 - (54,648)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIFF % 2 T 76 52 & 40,217 5,674
Reversal of tax loss recognised B[R 2 mRIAEE
(Note 19(a)) (Mf3E19(a)) 142,169 =
Overprovision of PRC corporate BEFEPRPEMESHRBREEE
income tax in prior years (86,990) (60,567)
Income tax expense FriS %t > 114,657 121,475
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 EERESTTRAEME
REMUNERATION
Details of directors and chief executive’s remuneration are EEREERTTHRAEBME Z2FBEOT
as follows:
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit Discretionary Share-based 2014
Director’s fee in kind schemes bonuses Sub-total payment Total
e 2ER BRI Wkths —B-MF
Yok ENEF TR Mgt U\ -V A @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name of directors ESpg ARBTR AR¥TRE AR%Tr ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARET:R
Executive directors UTES
Mr. Xu Jihua (‘Mr. Xu’) REERE (%)) 670 1,001 9 - 1,680 - 1,680
Ms. Wang Jianfei (Note ()~ E&IFZ L (BizH() 670 635 2 - 1,307 - 1,307
Ms. Liu Xiaomei (resigned on 2B &+
9 October 2014) (RZZ-—mF
TANAE) 231 114 2 - 347 - 347
Mr.Weng Li SURE 516 463 3 - 982 - 982
Mr. Ma Baofeng (appointed on B {RIE £ 4
9 October 2014) (R=Z—ImF
TANAEZA) 104 245 - - 349 40 389
Mr. Xu Da (appointed on rELE
9 October 2014) (R=Z-—mE
TANBEZE) 52 98 1 - 151 - 151
Mr. Bai Tao (appointedon ~ F3854
9 October 2014) (R-Z-m%F
TANBEZT) 52 11 1 - 164 - 164
Independent non-executive BY FH{TES
directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng BEERE 286 - - - 286 - 286
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen GRS 286 - - - 286 - 286
Mr. Xing Zhiying RERELE 286 - - - 286 - 286
3,153 2,667 18 - 5,838 40 5,878
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

10 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10 EEREETHRAEME @

REMUNERATION (conTinuED)

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefit  Discretionary Share-based 2013
Director’s fee in kind schemes bonuses Sub-total payment Total
e 2R RINER NG E —F-=4%
BENS ENiEH sl FB1Ea Nt BB @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors By ARETT  ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors BITEE
Mr.Xu ¥ 659 1,003 9 1,430 3,101 - 3,101
Ms. Wang Jianfei (Note (i)~ E&IFR &L (Hiz) 659 634 3 915 2,211 - 2,211
Ms. Liu Xiaomei AEte L 308 142 3 = 453 = 453
Mr. Weng Li SukE 514 465 3 761 1743 - 1743
Independent non-executive BY FHTES
directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng BEGLE 286 - - - 286 - 286
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen HHREE 277 - - - 277 - 277
Mr. Qian Pingfan (resigned on .54
22 January 2013) (R=B-=F
—AZTZHEfE) = = = = = = =
Mr. Xing Zhiying (appointed on 52 %%
22 January 2013) (R=8—=
-A-t+-H
EZ{) 286 - - - 286 - 286
2,989 2,064 18 3106 8,357 . 8,357
(i) Ms.Wang Jianfei, an executive director of the Company, is also (i) ARRRATESTTRRZEINDAELRRR RS
the chief executive of the Company. TAR °
Ms. Liu Xiaomei was appointed as an executive director of AR ITR T NFRANAEZER
the Company on 6 May 2008 and resigned on 9 October AKARIZHTES R-_ZE—NF+ANH
2014. BF(E ©

Mr. Xu Da, Mr. Ma Baofeng and Mr. Bai Tao were appointed
as executive directors of the Company on 9 October 2014.

Mr. Qian Pingfan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 20 September 2010
and resigned on 22 January 2013. He agreed to waive any
directors’ fee throughout the term of his appointment.

There were no amounts paid during the year (2013: Nil)
to the directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

RESE  BREEERAHEEER
ME+ANLEBEEZERERR TZﬁfTi%

BYAERER-_T-TFNA_THEZE
BARBZBIIFRITESE  R_FT—=F
— A+ ZBHEHE - RASMEHEEETH
NZERNESHE -

FR - ARALEREEINENERES

REERER B 2 SRR AT N8R 28R (—
T—=F:8)o
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BRI M AT

MESEHEMAL
FRAEERASESEMZ ALBERR
ACME (CE——F MR EE BEY
EMAL EHIT 2 - AAEEESSSE

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
include two (2013: two) directors of the Company, whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above.

Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid ATtz MeFIBmT -
individuals of the Group are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-0F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥& -~ 285 & EYEF] 4,743 2,284
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFET IR
schemes 3 81
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 420 5,430
Share-based payment LARR 1 BERE 2 95K - 348
5,166 8,143
The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals with R (CE—Z=ZF: Z8) RoFMALTZH
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: Bian T -
2014 2013
—E—0mF —E—=F
Number of Number of
Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD”) individuals individuals
it ([Bx]) N AH
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 -
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 - 2

4,000,001 - 4,500,000

1

There were no amounts paid during the year (2013: Nil) to
the five highest paid employees in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group, or inducement
to join.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B G R R B 5
12 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 KPR AIEREEAELMER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders AR FEARGREBEBREERNAE
of the Company includes a loss of RMB12,276,000 (2013: NEMBHRREE 2 EEARK12,276,000
RMB8,704,000) which has been dealt with in the financial T (ZE—=%F : AR¥S8,704,0007T) °

statements of the Company.

13 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) 13 H2EW A (EE)

Tax effects relating to each component of other Hith2EWARNSEXI DG LE
comprehensive income:

2014 2013

—E-E —T-=F

Tax Tax
Before-tax (Expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax  (Expense)/  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount

BE fiiE]

(X)), (ZH)/
BAat® kE  BkEE  HAed W BiReHE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMBO000  RMBO00
ARBTRE ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETRT

Foreign currency translation BINEBEEZ

differences for foreign INEBEEE

operations 263 - 263 (15,561) - (15,561)
Other comprehensive HEth2EMA /(E8)

income/(loss) 263 - 263 (15,561) = (15,561)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

14 LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the

loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately RMB1,188,054,000 (2013:
RMB252,399,000) and the weighted average number of
approximately 2,078,413,985 (2013: 2,076,609,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

14 BREE

BREARREBEHE
FEEREAEBEDIUNFEFRKAQ G
TRARERFTEAEABERLGEBEEARE
1,188,054,000c (Z & —=ZF: AR ¥
252,399,0007T) K& B B 17 & MK hnAE F
B84 52,078,413,985 (= T — = £ ¢
2,076,609,0008%) Ak « IRFTELWT :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EEROMEFHIH
2014 2013
—2-mEF =
Number of Number of
shares shares
R #E aar 14
Ordinary shares issued at 1 January M—A—RETEER 2,078,413,985  2,075,120,000
Weighted average number of MR B MEEITH
ordinary shares issued in respect of T AR ke 9 2 (FsE30(b)(viii))
scrip dividends (Note 30(b)(viii)) - 1,489,000
Weighted average number of R+t—RA=+—B&E@ER
ordinary shares at 31 December DN 15 2k 2,078,413,985 2,076,609,000

Loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company

RAREBRESEAARGER

2014 2013
—E-MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&=E5)
Loss attributable to equity shareholders A aliEziEH A E(EEIE
of the Company (1,183,426) (247765)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual & : BN B AR Z K AR A #
subordinated convertibles f&FEH 2 Dk (FiEE30(c))
securities classified as equity
(Note 30(c)) (4,628) (4,634)
Loss attributable to ordinary equity RARIEREREA AEGER
shareholders of the Company (1,188,054) (252,399)

No diluted loss per share is presented as the effect of all
potential ordinary share is anti-dilutive for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR i o
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y12 - BERRE
The Group RE
Electronic Assets
Plant and and other Motor Mining under
buildings  Machinery equipment vehicles Vessels  structures Port construction Total
ETRAM
BERET HeE R RE B REREN B0 EREE L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%Tn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Cost A&
At 1January 2013 WZZ—=%
—A-H 267,590 421,489 27915 120,922 1,268,850 1,084,601 - 179,423 4,986,790
Additions NE 19,683 191,940 10,501 21,254 1,412 199,632 - 1,485,742 1,930,064
Transferred from assetsunder EBERAE
construction 301,187 5,315 749 - - - - (307,251) -
Disposals HE - (1,360) < (139) = = - (201,280) (202,773)
Exchange differences EHEH = = = (40)  (19,352) - - (2,646)  (22,038)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F
1January 2014 +-A=1+-H
RZZ-NE
—-A-AH 588,460 617,384 39,165 142,003 1,250,910 1,284,133 - 2769988 6,692,043
Additions nE 1,050 93,686 1,629 5,321 5,126 - - 1328299 1,435,011
Transferred from assets under EEAREE
construction 456,470 720,082 4,848 20,700 = 619,816 1,333,384  (3,155,300) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHHBAR
(Note 32) (H3E32) (5,496) (10,720) (303) (883) - (253,019) - (71,805) (342,226)
Written-off ik = = (230) - - - - - (230)
Exchange differences ERzE - - = 6 2,948 - - - 2,954
At 31 December 2014 RZE-IE
+ZA=t—8 1040484 1420432 45,009 167147 1,268,984 1,660,930 1,333,384 871,182 7781552
Accumulated depreciationand B3HTER
impairment losses HEFE
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-=F
—A-H (27,549) (64,009) (7.049) (32,449) (178,693) (14,329) - - (324,078)
Charge for the year FRNE (15,364) (54,222) (4,000) (14,839) (75,652) (14,154) = = (178,231)
Impairment losses REER = = = = (84,500) = = = (84,500)
Written back on disposals HERE - 1,240 - 88 - - - - 1328
Exchange differences EXEE - - - 5 2109 - - - 2114
At 31 December 2013 and RZZ-=%
1January 2014 +-A=1+-H
R=T-—RE
—A—H (42,913)  (116,991) (11,049) (47195)  (336,736) (28,483) - - (583,367)
Charge for the year ERNE (15,884) (60,251) (2,662) (22,454) (55,339) (16,309) (3,704) - (176,603)
Impairment losses MEERE (10161) (853) (7,660) - - - - - (18,674)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENBAT
(Note 32) (M3E32) 317 6,827 300 878 - 11113 - - 19,435
Written-off s - - 182 - - - - - 182
Exchange differences R ER = = - - (361) - - - (361)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—ME
+-A=t-H (68,641) (171,268) (20,889) (68,771) (392,436) (33,679) (3,704) - (759,388)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2013 W=B—=%
+-A=t-H 545,547 500,393 28116 94,808 914,174 1,255,650 - 2769988 6,108,676
At 31 December 2014 RZE—RE
+-A=t-H 971,843 1,249,164 24120 98,376 866,548 1,617,251 1,329,680 871,182 7,028,164

Annual Report 2014 —Z—[UFF 3R

163



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continveny 15 13 ~ BB R R @0

The Group (continued)

The Group was in the process of applying for the title
certificates for certain items of plant and buildings with

an aggregate carrying amounts of RMB937,995,000 (2013:
RMB55,123,000) as at 31 December 2014 which mainly
related to the acquired properties from the business
combination in 2011. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly
occupy or use the abovementioned properties.

Through negotiation with a vessel constructor, the Group
entered into final agreements with the counter-party

to terminate the construction of two vessels on 1 July
20183. As a result, the construction costs of these two
vessels of RMB201,280,000 and corresponding vessels
construction payables of RMB85,266,000 waived by the
vessels constructor were written off and the net amount
of RMB116,014,000 was recognised as a loss on disposal
of assets under construction during the year ended 31
December 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, as the result of the unexpected
poor performance of coal business segment, the Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of the property, plant
and equipment of coal business segment and as a result
the carrying amount of plant and buildings, machinery and
electronic and other equipment was written down to their
recoverable amount of RMB971,843,000, RMB1,249,164,000
and RMB24,120,000 respectively. An impairment loss

of RMB18,674,000 was recognised in other expenses.

The recoverable amount of the relevant assets had been
determined on the basis of their value in use. The discount
rate used in measuring value in use was 4.2% per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of the vessels and as a result the
carrying amount of the vessels was written down to their
recoverable amount of RMB914,174,000. An impairment loss
of RMB84,500,000 was recognised in other expenses. The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on the vessels’
fair value less costs to disposal, using market comparison
approach by reference to recent market prices of second-
hand vessels of similar tonnage and usage, adjusted for
differences in remaining useful lives. The fair value on which
the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a level
3 measurement.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of RMB4,395,220,000
(2013: RMB2,303,929,000) were pledged for interest-bearing
bank borrowings (Note: 28).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR i o
16 COAL MINING RIGHTS 16 &k PRIERE
The Group AEE
RMB’000
AR® TR
Cost RS
At 1 January 2013 RN-ZE—=F—H—H 4,532,508
Additions NE 551,038
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZE—=F+-A=+—8K
—Z2-mE—f—H 5,083,546
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—RKHBAR (H:E32) (306,674)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—ME+-_A=+—H 4,776,872
Accumulated amortisation HotEes
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—HF—H (52,894)
Charge for the year (Note (ii) FREE (HEEG)) (59,252)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-ZE—=F+-A=+—HK
—E-mHE—-H—H (112,146)
Charge for the year (Note (i) FRBEH (MEEG)) (43,407)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—EKBA R (M:E32) 12,313
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MF+-_A=+—H (143,240)
Carrying amounts fREE
At 31 December 2013 N-—E—=F+=-HA=+—H 4,971,400
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MF+-_A=+—H 4,633,632

(i)

As at 31 December 2014, the balances represent

coal mining rights of Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District
Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., Ltd. (“Xingtao Coal”), Shanxi
Shuozhou Pinglu District Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co.,
Ltd. (“Fengxi Coal”), Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal Co., Ltd. (“Chongsheng
Coal”), Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Xinglong Coal Co.,

Ltd. ("Xinglong Coal”) and Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi
Hongyuan Coal Co., Ltd. (‘Hongyuan Coal”). During the
year, the Group disposed the entire of its equity interest
in Ruifeng Coal, including the coal mining rights of
RMB294,361,000 (Note 32). The amortisation of the
coal mining rights is based on the units-of-production
method, utilising only proved coal reserves in the
depletion base.

(i) Amortisation expenses of RMB43,407,000 (2013:

RMB59,252,000) have been charged in costs of sales.

(iii) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s coal mining rights

with carrying amount of RMB4,633,632,000 (2013:
RMB4,676,147,000) were pledged for interest-bearing
bank borrowings (Note 28).

() RZEBE—NWE+-_A=+—H - %818
IWFAEMNFEEEXREEEEERA
A ([HMEE]  LAPMNTFEREREE
BSTREXER AR (EEEE]) - 1L
ARMNFEEEERSAREFBR AR
([EFEZE]) L Ta TN 1 EEE R
EREMTAR ([EEREE]) RIUAIN
Mgt mREXEREELA ([BRE
¥ MERKEEE - RFAR - AFEEE
HEREKEER IR AR (BREKE KK
TERE A R#294,361,0007T) (fisE32) o
HREEEEFRAEFRAEXRGEE - A
FERRELAER A A FE BB AR T LASESH -

(i) AR®43,407,000L (ZE—=F: A
R #59,252,0007T) < #ERA T E&T A

(i RZFE—WF+_A=+—H " &~&£H
BREE A ARE4,633,632,0007T (==&
—=4F: AR¥4,676,147,0007T) 2 &
IRERTEEE BLET BRI TIE B R IF (M5E
28) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

17 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 HEFAFERX
The Group AEE
Sea Land use
use rights rights Total
BEFERAE L ERAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFTT AREBTT
Cost A
At 1 January 2013 and RZE—=F—A—8K
31 December 2013, —E—=F+—_A=+—H -
1 January 2014 and —T-WF-A—BRK
31 December 2014 —E-NFE+ZA=+—H 45,971 84,982 130,953
Accumulated amortisation REt#sy
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—HF—H = (1,365) (1,365)
Charge for the year (Note (ii) FAEE (MEEiD)) = (140) (140)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2014 ;E—T—NFE—H—H = (1,505) (1,505)
Charge for the year (Note (ii)) FREHE (D)) = (140) (140)
Amortisation capitalised in assets ~ EE&AED BAL S
under construction (Note (ii)) (B5EGi) (3,905) (12,482) (16,387)
At 31 December 20714 RZZE—NE+_HA=+—H (3,905) (14,127) (18,032)
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+="H=1+—~H 45,971 83,477 129,448
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WHE+=_HA=+—H 42,066 70,855 112,921

(i)

Lease prepayments represent cost of sea use rights and
land use rights, both with a medium term lease period
of 50 years at the date of grant.

(i) Amortisation expenses of RMB16,387,000 (2013: Nil)

and RMB140,000 (2013: RMB140,000) have been
capitalised into assets under construction and charged
in administrative expenses respectively.

(iii) The Group was in the process of applying for the title

certificates for certain land use rights with carrying
amounts of RMB65,502,000 (2013: RMB77,984,000) as
at 31 December 2014. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and
validly occupy or use the above mentioned land.

(iv) Asat 31 December 2014, the Group’s lease prepayments

with carrying amount of RMB5,353,000 (2013: Nil) were
pledged for interest-bearing bank borrowings (Note 28).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R R Y =
18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REEE N T 2=
The Group AEE
2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Listed investments: EHEE
Listed shares, at cost EmlEG - ERAE 52,444 49,947
Share of losses FEAE 5 (27,279) (15,539)
Impairment loss (Note (i) WEEE () (19,333) -
Exchange differences PE X =58 (4,179) (4,340)
1,653 30,068
Unlisted investments: JELETIRE -
Unlisted shares, at cost MRS - REAE 71,806 58,877
Share of profits FE(E & F 4,089 3,618
Exchange differences PEH =58 (281) (296)
75,614 62,199
77,267 92,267

As at 31 December 2074, the fair value of the above
listed shares was equivalent to RMB2,079,000 (2013:
RMB8,592,000), which was based on the quoted price of

Australian Securities Exchange.

RZZE—ME+-_A=+—8 " ALk LT
MBZARERERARE?2,079,000T (=ZF
—=4: ARK#¥8,592,0007T) * L JhERR
MEHFZ D ETHRE -
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The Group (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of associates,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinueD)

18 REEENT 2R
AEE @)
TREFN ETBZEREBEENEENH S

which principally affected the results or assets of the Group:

NCIES R

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEREELH
Place of Listed/ Group’s Held by
establishment/ unlisted effective the Held by Principal
Name of associate incorporation company interest Company  asubsidiary activities
B/ wE ks r£E
BENREM BRI B FETAH BER#ER A20RFE MWEARES TEXK
Tiaro Coal Limited Australia Listed 26.31% = 26.31% Coal
(“Tiaro Coal’) (Note (i)) BN company (2013: (2013: exploration,
Tiaro Coal Limited EmRA 19.88%) 19.88%) evaluation and
([Tiaro Coal ) 26.31% 26.31% development
(B=EG)) (ZE—=F: (Z2—=%: BRREE -
19.88%) 19.88%) BREDGES
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) PRC Unlisted 49% = 49% Sales of coal
Holdings Co., Ltd. i company BRIRHE
(“Tongmei Qinfa’) FEMAA
RHERE (5K8) 2R
ARAA ([FERE])
Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. Australia Unlisted 33.63% = 33.63%  Coal exploration
(“Paragon Coal’) BN company (2013: (2013:  and development
Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. I ETRA 16.67%) 16.67%)  HREERNFAE
([ Paragon Coal |) 33.63% 33.63%
(ZF—Z=F: (ZF—=F:
16.67%) 16.67%)

(i) Asat 31 December 2014, as the result of decrease in
quote price of shares of interest in Tiaro Coal, the Group

assessed the recoverable amounts of the interests

in associates and as a result the carrying amount

of the interest in Tiaro Coal was written down to its
recoverable amount of RMB1,653,000. An impairment
loss of RMB19,333,000 was recognised in other
expenses. The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on interest in Tiaro Coal’s fair value less costs
to disposal from quoted price of Australian Securities
Exchange subsequent to the reporting date. The fair
value on which the recoverable amount is based on is
categorised as a level 2 measurement.
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinueD)

The GI’OUp (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summarised financial information of the material
associates, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below.
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

BB AR

18 REEE N T 2w )

AEE (4)
FEBENT B ERBZELEMSEIR
RERFAENBZEE UK RENREEL R
BEEWT - TAEZEHS QA AEREA
RN Z ER A TSR -

Tongmei Qinfa B =5
2014 2013
—E-MEF —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETT
Non-current assets EMENEE 12 28
Current assets MENEE 1,230,985 1,263,259
Current liabilities mERE 1,122,977 1,156,229
Equity 1% 108,020 107,058
Revenue W as 2,174,712 2,021,708
Profit for the year F R 962 7,057
Total comprehensive income FRNEAEWALRE
for the year 962 7,057
Reconciled to the Group’s B EF R AR EFHZ
interest in Tongmei Qinfa s EAR
Net assets of Tongmei Qinfa RERE 2 EEFE 108,020 107,058
Group’s effective interest AEE L BERER 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEERERE 2
Tongmei Qinfa BESE 52,930 52,459
Goodwill Bl 159 159
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERRABEREZ
interest in Tongmei Qinfa R REE 53,089 52,618
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

18 REEENT 2R
AEE (40)

Paragon Coal

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (conTinuep)
The Group (continued)
Paragon Coal

2014 2013
—E-—mEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
Non-current assets ERBNE E 63,959 48,525
Current assets MBNE E 18 1,899
Current liabilities mEAE 11,506 5,406
Equity T 52,471 45,019
Revenue U %5 129 41
(Loss)/profit for the year FA (F518),/ = F (584) 288
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FAZE (B18),/ WAL
for the year (584) 288
Reconciled to the Group’s interest 1K B B Paragon CoalZ
in Paragon Coal i)
Net assets of Paragon Coal Paragon Coalz &= A 52,471 45,019
Group’s effective interest REE 2 BRF#ES 33.63% 16.67%
Group’s share of net assets of A& B fE(EParagon CoalZ
Paragon Coal BEFE 17,646 7,505
Goodwill EES 4,879 2,076
Carrying amount of the Group’s REE R Paragon CoalZ
interest in Paragon Coal AR E A 22,525 9,581
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR i o
19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19 EEFRBEEERAES
The Group AEE
(a) Deferred tax assets (a) IEELEBIIRE E
Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements REBEZE_ZT-—MOFR-_ZT-—=F+_AH
of the deferred tax assets during the years ended 31 =+—HLEFE EBRANELEHIEE
December 2014 and 2013: EREED:
(Charged)/
credited
to consolidated
At1 statement of At 31
January comprehensive December
2014 income 2014

R-E-ME  (NK) A RZE-R0EF
—-B—0 @#&e2EWAX +t=A=+-H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARET T

Deferred tax assets arising from: EXATHREN
BEHEEE

Tax losses carried forward EEMHIEER 147,117 (142,815) 4,302
Deferred tax assets recognised for SR AR

inventory provision EETREEE 2,003 6,910 8,913
Deferred tax assets recognised for TR R RRHERMN

bad and doubtful debts BEHREE 1,959 3,361 5,320
Unrealised profit arising from intra-group HEEERNRRRERZM

transactions elimination EERAREREF 330 519 849

151,409 (132,025) 19,384
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R AR P

19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)
The Group (continued)
(a) Deferred tax assets (continued)

19 EEREBEEEREE w

AER )
(a) BELERIEEE (2
Credited/
(charged)
to consolidated
At 1 statement of At 31
January comprehensive December
2013 income 2013
RZTB—ZF FHA/(R) RZIT-=F
—A—H HAZEKAR TZHA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AR®TT

Deferred tax assets arising from: EXBATHIREN
BEREEE
Tax losses carried forward FETIEER 39,862 107,255 147117
Deferred tax assets recognised for HEERERR
inventory provision EERBREE 3,492 (1,489) 2,003
Deferred tax assets recognised for TERERERERN
bad and doubtful debts BRERIEEE = 1,959 1,959
Deferred tax assets recognised for BRBAEEREEES
maintenance and production funds ERANRLERBEE
not yet used 10,689 (10,689) -
Unrealised profit arising from intra-group F ¥ #HEBR A RER Z M
transactions elimination EERARER T 2,330 (2,000) 330
56,373 95,036 151,409

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB2,020,880,000
(2013: RMB644,630,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which these losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction

and entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

19 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19EZEHEEERER w

(CONTINUED)

The Group (continued) Z‘K% (&)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (b) EEFIBEE

BE-_Z-—NEKR-_ZET—=F+-"A=
+—HBIEFE ERANELHIEAG

Deferred tax liabilities recognised and the movements
of the deferred tax liabilities during the years ended 31

December 2014 and 2013: REE ) -
Charged
to consolidated
At1  statement of Disposal At 31
January comprehensive ofa December
2014 income subsidiary 2014
R-E-m%E NGRS HE-B RKR-E-—DmF
—HA-H 2ERAR WBAR +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR®T T AR®T R AR%T R
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: EE£BTHIREN
EEHESE
Revaluation surplus arising from ERAHEENER
business combinations Bk 1,076,558 16,616 (41,064) 1,052,110
Depreciation allowances in excess BB E KR
of the related depreciation and nERE
amortisation 62,768 23,596 - 86,364
1,139,326 40,212 (41,064) 1,138,474
(Credited)/
charged
to consolidated
At1 statement of At 31
January  comprehensive December
2013 income 2013
RZZ-=F A/ RZB-=%
—A—B ZAzEKAR TZH=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: EXATHREN
EEHEAE
Revaluation surplus arising from EBAHEENELRH
business combinations 1,124,340 (47782) 1,076,558
Depreciation allowances in excess of BRI E RE
the related depreciation and NERE
amortisation 34,004 28,764 62,768
1,168,344 (19,018) 1,139,326
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R R MY T
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 B AR ZIRE
The Company b N
2014 2013
—E2-MmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMRD - MERAE 658,807 658,807
As at 31 December 2014, the Company has direct and RZZE—NFE+=ZA=+—8 " ' KX28RT
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which FIMfE AR AEEE LEEER - MENE
are private companies. The particulars of these subsidiaries REYIRIART - ZEMBARINFIER
are set out below: T
Proportion of ownership interest
BEEERLY
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
B/ i XxEE HANR HWEAR ERTR
AEEM B33t B BERER =2 52 BR/aMEXR TEXK
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% = United States dollars Investment
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands (“UsD”) USD4,801/ holding
REREABRATF RERLEE USD50,000 REZR
(IRBRE]) 4801 ([ER])/
50,000%7T
Bright Rock Holdings Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
Bright Rock Holdings Limited Islands 121/ holding
RBRAHE 50,000%7T RERK
Yuen Hoi Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
RABRDA Islands 1%/ holding
RERUES 50,000%7T REER
Hong Kong Qinfa Coal British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Sales of coal
Trading Limited Islands 1%/ RRIAE
BERERRESERAR RERUES 50,000%7T
Glory Explore International British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
Limited Islands %%/ holding
BEERERAF REBRAHE 50,000%7T RERK
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BA R AR MY E
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 AB AR ZIRE @
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEELA

Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities

R/ A5 HARE HWERR BRTR
DNEER B 3t % BERER BR =20) B2/ EMER FEXK
New Far Trading Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD100/USD50,000 Investment
New Far Trading Limited Islands 100%7T,/ holding
RBRUES 50,000%7T REER
More Star Development British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
Limited Islands 121/ holding
AEERERAA RERAHE 50,000%7T RERK
Billion Base Enterprises British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
Limited Islands 1%/ holding
(EESTE 25 YN RERUES 50,000%7T REER
Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD30,000,000/ Sales of coal
Limited 00 HKD30,000,000 and Investment
BAEREESERRA 30,000,000t/ holding
30,000,000 RIRHE R
REHER
Hong Kong Qinfa International Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD689,635,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Limited BE HKD900,000,000 RRHE

BERZERESERAA 689,635,000%7% /

900,000,000/%7T
Lead Far Development Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Investment
NEERER AR B HKD10,000 holding
10,0007t/ RERR

10,000%7T
World Victory (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Investment
2 (M) BRAF BE HKD10,000 holding
10,0007,/ REER

10,000%7T
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B IR R M T

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuEeD) 20 RV B AR ZIRE w0
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))

Proportion of ownership interest

BREEELA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
R/ A5H HALE HWEAR BRTR
RNEER B 3t % BERER ®R =20) AR/ SRELR FEXK
World Success (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Investment
#3 (M) BRAF BE HKD10,000 holding
10,0008 7T,/ REER
10,000%7T
Gerrards Agents (Macao Macau 100% = 100% MOP100,000/ Dormant
Commercial Offshore) el MOP100,000 TEEK
Limited 100,000:2F97T,/
Gerrards Agents (Macao 100,000 7T
Commercial Offshore)
Limited
Qinhuangdao Development The PRC 100% = 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Zone Qinfa Trading H RMB68,000,000 BIREE
Co, Ltd. " AR¥68,000,0007C /
REE AR #68,000,0007C
RERFEEHRERAA
Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading and Transportation o RMB20,000,000 RIS
Co., Ltd. 0 AR#20,000,0007T,/
ARBERA AR #20,000,0007C
BREHARAA
Yangyuan Guotong Coal The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading and Transportation I RMB10,000,000 BiRiHE
Co, Ltd. " AK%10,000,0007 /
5 R ElR AE#10,000,0007C
RREHBRARO
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
Co., Ltd.? th RMB5,000,000 RIRHE
SIS AR%5,000,0007T,/
B5ERAA AR™5,000,0007T

176 China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZE@EER AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA R AR MY E
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 AB AR ZIRE @
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEELA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
R/ A5H HALE HWEAR BRTR
RNEER B 3t % BERER ®R =20) AR/ SRELR FEXK
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics The PRC 100% = 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. @ i HKD315,000,000 RRIRHE
HERE 315,000,000 7T,/
NRBRRRD 315,000,000%7T
Zhuhai Qinfa Resource The PRC 100% = 100% RMB1,000,000/ Dormant
Development Co., Ltd. © e RMB1,000,000 TR
HERE AR¥1,000,0007 /
REREBRAF" AR%1,000,0007T
Baotou Danghui Materials The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Co., Ltd.? H RMB10,000,000 RRHE
BEMER AR#¥10,000,0007 /
NEEHERRA AK#10,000,0007T
Ordos Dongsheng Yifa The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Investment
Materials Co., Ltd. " H RMB5,000,000 holding
FASHTREE AR#35,000,0007T,/ REER
FENBRRRF AR¥5,000,0007T
Ordos Jinfa Materials The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd." H RMB10,000,000 holding
S EZ R AR#%10,000,0007T,/ REEK
NEBRRAN AE#10,000,0007C
Shuozhou Guangfa Energy The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Investment Co., Ltd. © H RMB10,000,000 holding
(“Shuozhou Guangfa’) AK#10,000,0007T / REFER
W TR AR #10,000,0007C
RRRERRAAN
([MmER )
Shenchi Shenda Energy The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Investment Co., Ltd. © H RMB10,000,000 holding
e AR#%10,000,0007 / RERK
RERREBRAFN AK#10,000,0007C
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B IR R M T

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuEeD) 20 RV B AR ZIRE w0
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERERLL
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
B/ & PiS-- | mAAE  HWEAR BEIR

AR LB Lt B BN w8 5E Br/EmELR TEXH

Shenchi Shenfa Coal Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMB30,700,000/ Dormant
and Transportation o RMB30,700,000 LR
Co., Ltd. AR¥30,700,0007 /

WS ERK AR #30,700,0007
EHARARD

Huairen Shunfa Materials The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Dormant
Co., Ltd.? th RMB20,000,000 TEE

B IR AR#20,000,00007T /
MEESBERAF AR#%20,000,0007T

Ruifeng Coal ! The PRC 0% (2013: = 0% (2013: RMB17,000,000/ Coal mining

T 20 e 87.88%) - 87.88%) RMB17,000,000  and operation

0% 0% AR%17,000,0007,/ RRARR
(ZT—=F: (Z3—=%: AR#17,000,0007 2iE
87.88%) 87.88%)

Shanxi Huameiao Energy The PRC 80% = 80% RMB300,000,000/ Coal mining
Group Co., Ltd. H RMB300,000,000  and operation
(‘Huameiao Energy’) AR #300,000,0007C / BRARR

IFmEXREREFFRAFD AR 300,000,000 2E
([EXRER])

Xingtao Coal ! The PRC 80% = 80% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining

g A 20 3 RMB129,590,000  and operation

AR #129,590,0007 BRERR

AR#129,590,0007T 2E

Fengxi Coal @ The PRC 80% = 80% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining
il H RMB32,000,000  and operation
AK#32,000,0007T,/ BRERR

AR#32,000,0007T 2E
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g s e
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 RV B AR ZRE w0
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEELA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
R/ A5H HALE HWEAR BRTR
RNEER B 3t % BERER ®R =20) AR/ SRELR FEXK
Chongsheng Coal ! The PRC 80% = 80% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining
SRR ED H RMB107,290,000  and operation
AR ¥107,290,0007 / BRFRR
AE#107,290,0007C iy
Shanxi Ruifeng Pharmaceutical The PRC 100% = 100% RMB1,200,000/ Dormant
Co., Ltd.® h RMB1,200,000 TEXH
il AR¥1,200,0007 /
HEXHERAA AR#1,200,0007T
Xinglong Coal ¢ The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining
FR 20 H RMB100,000,000  and operation
AR %100,000,0007 / BRI R
A& #100,000,0007T 2E
Hongyuan Coal " The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining
REREED 3 RMB100,000,000  and operation
AR#100,000,0007T / BRFARR
AE#100,000,0007T 2E
Succeed International Ltd. Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Investment
B BIRR AR 2 Al 3 HKD10,000 holding
10,0007T / RELR
10,000%7T
Maxton International Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Dormant
Enterprises Ltd. 5k HKD10,000 TEx
BERRCEBRARF 10,0007,/
10,0007T
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B RS HR AR BT

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

20 R AR 2 RE m)

The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERERLL
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
R/ A5H HALE HWEAR ERTR
RNEER Lt B BN ®R =20) AR/ SRELR TEXH
Zhuhai Henggin New Zone The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Hengfa Commercial Service H RMB10,000,000 HERK
Co., Ltd. ? AK%10,000,0007T /
WEREHREEEE AR%10,000,0007T
FRBBER DA
Zhuhai Henggin New Zone The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Lifa Commercial Service H RMB10,000,000 SHER K
Co., Ltd. " AR#10,000,0007 /
KERENEIEEG AE#10,000,0007T
FRBER DA
Zhuhai Henggin Hongyi The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
Industrial Development F RMB100,000,000 i3
Co., Ltd. AR,/
KERERRER AR 100,000,000
BERBRAAD
Super Grace Enterprises British Virgin 100% = 100% USD50,000/ Goods transport
Limited (“Super Grace”) Islands USD50,000  and logistics,
Super Grace Enterprises RERIHE 50,0005,/ and charter hire
Limited ([Super Grace |) 50,000(7T HmE&HRIR
AREMEE
Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/ Goods transport
(“Oriental Wise”) Islands USD50,000  and logistics,
Oriental Wise Group Limited RERTHE 1375,/ and charter hire
([Oriental Wise |) 50,000%7 BEMERKMT
AREMEE
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BA R AR MY E
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 AB AR ZIRE @
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Proportion of ownership interest
BREEELA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
R/ A5H HARE HWERR BRTR

RNEER B 3t % BERER ®R =20) AR/ SRELR FEXK
Qinfa Chartering Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/ Goods transport
Qinfa Chartering Limited Islands USD50,000  and logistics,
ERBEXHE 1%L,/ and charter hire
50,000%X7T HEmE&BRR
AREMEE
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/ Goods transport
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
ERRTHE 1370,/ and charter hire
50,000%7T EmE& LR
AR EMHE
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Goods transport
Limited 0 HKD10,000 and logistics,
BERREMERRAF 10,000#7T,/ and charter hire
10,0008t AREHRDR
AREMEE
Liberal City Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/ Goods transport
Liberal City Limited 0 HKD1,000  and logistics,
1,00087T,/  and charter hire
1,008 AmEHRDR
AREMEE
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/ Goods transport
Perpetual Goodluck Limited e HKD1,000  and logistics,
1,000%7C,/1,000/7C  and charter hire
AmEH kIR
AREMEE
Harbour Well Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/  Goods transport
Harbour Well Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
EBEAHE 1%L,/ and charter hire

50,000%7T HEmEBHLIR
NEREMEE
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B RS HR AR BT

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

The Company (continued)

20 R AR 2 RE m)

ARQTF #)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRERERLL
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ Principal
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiaries registered capital activities
B3/ s S 1 HALNE HWEAR ERTR
AR LB Lt B BN wE =20) AR/ SRELR TEXH
Merit Sino International British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/ Goods transport
Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
EERARERDT RBRLHS 1275,/ and charter hire
60,000(7T Bm&EH IR
UK EMHAE
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Goods transport
Co., Ltd.? 3 RMB5,000,000  and logistics,
KEx% AR®5,000,0007t,/ and charter hire
MERRRF AK#5,000,0007C  #mER RN
NREMHEE
Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Ltd. (™ The PRC 60% - 60% RMB577,333,000  Terminal under
(“Zhuhai Port”) H (2013: RMB569,000,000)/ construction
KERBABARRRD RMB739,163,600  and provision
([%ER%]) AR®577,333,0000,/  of port service
(Z2—=%: BRRER
AR#569,000,0007T) B O R
AR¥739,163,6007C
Zhuhai Henggin Coal The PRC 60% = 60% RMBO/ Dormant
Exchange Center Co., Ltd. © H RMB50,000,000 EEET
WERERRRZZHR L AR/
BRRA Y AR #50,000,0007
Shanghai Qinhe Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
Co., Ltd. ® h RMB10,000,000 EEXHB
HERNBSERAR O AREOT,/
A& #10,000,0007C

(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic

companies.

(ii)

owned enterprises.

(iii) This entity was established in the PRC as a sino-foreign equity
joint venture enterprise.

These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign-

(ii)
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The Company (continued)

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings are secured by the Group’s equity interest in
Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong
Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and
Oriental Wise (2013: Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi
Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal)

(Note 28).

The following tables list out the financial information
relating to Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal
and Zhuhai Port, subsidiaries of the Company which have
material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRSP E

20 R B AR 2 RE m)

QT (@)

MN_ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 AEEZ5t
BRITEERASENEZRER - EHEK
¥ SAEE EERE - RREE - AN
J& % - Super GraceMOriental Wise (Z &
—=fF: FEXRER HEMEE FAK
¥ SAKE HEREFERTEEE) AR
RREZEHER (MI5E28) -

TREFFEERE - BAKE SHTEER
wEER (RAREBEAIEHEE (3
ERER]) NRBAR) BBENMEER
A T2ITHERRE R HETMARE
R ZAHEHE

Xingtao Coal 582 i) 4. 3%
2014 2013
—E—mE —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
As at 31 December R+=—A=+-—8H
NCI percentage FEVE I 2R L B 20% 20%
Non-current assets EMBEE 4,311,820 4,207,502
Current assets MENEE 2,767,847 1,634,244
Current liabilities wRBAE (3,651,469) (2,095,073)
Non-current liabilities JEREAE (881,997) (1,063,185)
Net assets BEFE 2,546,201 2,683,488
Carrying amount of NCI I FIERAREE 349,988 393,603
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1t—HLFE
Revenue U #5 180,840 369,894
(Loss)/profit for the year FER (ER),/ %R (218,075) 121171
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2m| (E8),/ W AssE (218,075) 121,171
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DEZIFEHIERE (BER), & F (43,615) 24,234
Cash flows used in operating activities K& EFFAE LR (363,983) (39,303)
Cash flows used in investing activities KEEREHTARE R (163,137) (307,125)
Cash flows generated from financing BB EBRRESR
activities 445,000 480,211
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B IR R M T

20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 R B AR 2 RE w0

The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Fengxi Coal TP ES
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
As at 31 December R+=HA=+-—8H
NCI percentage xR Dt 20% 20%
Non-current assets EREEE 2,369,934 2,104,761
Current assets MENEE 669,527 294,524
Current liabilities wBBE (1,390,191) (820,813)
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (343,978) (335,580)
Net assets BEFE 1,305,292 1,242,892
Carrying amount of NCI R AR E A 387,150 393,252

During the year ended 31 December BE+t-AZ=+—-HLEE

Revenue W= 218,829 279,358
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(EBR), &= (30,511) 165,639
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2| (E8),/ WAL (30,511) 165,639
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DEEIEIER S (B18), &5 (6,102) 33,128
Cash flows generated from operating KBTS SR

activities 326,625 257,592
Cash flows used in investing activities & EBFMAEL R (323,812) (267,847)
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B R R B 5
20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 20 R AR 2 RE m)
The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Chongsheng Coal RAHE
2014 2013
—E-HmEF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
As at 31 December R+t=ZHB=+—H
NCI percentage EERER A D 20% 20%
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,223,813 1,993,290
Current assets MENEE 1,239,734 229,034
Current liabilities mENEE (1,760,580) (604,238)
Non-current liabilities JERBALE (330,003) (317,524)
Net assets BEFE 1,372,964 1,300,562
Carrying amount of NCI PR = BREE 298,188 300,712
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1t—HLFE
Revenue W #5 168,509 227,968
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (EB), %R (12,623) 124,192
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (E518),/ WA 4258 (12,623) 124,192
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI AEEEIEERER 2 (BER),mH (2,525) 24,838
Cash flows generated from operating KEEBFSIREN
activities 157,424 264,383
Cash flows used in investing activities ~ REESFTRAR SR (257,156) (264,609)
Cash flows generated from financing BEEFFFIR SN
activities 100,000 =
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 R B AR 2 RE w0

The Company (continued) b /NETNE))
Zhuhai Port A K
2014 2013
—E-HmEF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
As at 31 December R+t=ZHB=+—H
NCI percentage EERER A D 40% 40%
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,884,134 1,610,540
Current assets MENEE 114,751 126,714
Current liabilities mEEE (417,794) (457128)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (1,041,185) (711,126)
Net assets BEFE 539,906 569,000
Carrying amount of NCI PR = BREE 215,962 227,600
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1t—HLFE
Revenue W #5 40,479 -
Loss for the year FNEE (37,186) -
Total comprehensive loss 2 TH EEERE (37,186) =
Loss allocated to NCI DEEEIEERER 2 EE (14,971) -
Cash flows used in operating activities K& EBFTAE SR (99,310) (59,040)
Cash flows used in investing activities & EBFMAE LR (90,109) (514,710)
Cash flows generated from financing BEESAMSE SR
activities 162,605 572,218
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B RS ER R T =
21 INVENTORIES 21 ZE
The Group
REME

2014 2013

—E—-EF ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETTT
Finished goods UK 314,337 357,616
Goods in transit R EY - 30,805
Fuel B 12,018 12,009
326,355 400,430

Provision for inventories amounted to RMB35,650,000
(2013: RMB8,012,000) were made against those finished
goods with net realisable value lower than carrying value as
at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s inventories

with carrying amount of RMB229,756,000 (2013:
RMB224,000,000) were pledged for interest-bearing bank
borrowings (Note 28).

22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

R-_ZE—NE+_-_A=+—BEHA#EH
FEEREAEMNEK RTRTEREEA
R #35 650,000 (ZE—=F: ARK
8,012,0007T) ©

MN-EBE—NE+-_A=+—8  A&=EEA
BEAARK229,756,000T (ZE—=%F: A
K#224,000,00070) < FEE R BIRITE
EEE R (F15E28) ©

22 EWE SRR RERERE

The Group
KEH

2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 R R K E W R & 1,312,139 2,751,290
Less: impairment B ORE (43,147) (51,947)
1,268,992 2,699,343

(a) Ageing analysis
All of the trade and bill receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year. The Group’s exposure to credit
and currency risks related to trade and other receivables is
disclosed in Note 34.

(a) BRER DT

FERKE SRR LEREERMN —FA
Wm e REBBEEWE ZERNEBKREES
BHEEREEEREENH IS -
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B IR R M T

22 BB SIRFAREWEE @

(a) BRIE 24T (@)
AEBREWE SRR K EREE (FOBR R
EFE) NERERDITAT

22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)
(a) Ageing analysis (continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables (net of
impairment loss) of the Group is as follows:

The Group
rER

2014 2013
—E-ImF —F-—=F
RMB’000 RMB000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Within 2 months M1E AR 519,102 1,629,483
Over 2 months but within 6 months M {E A LA 1B @S E A 271,261 642,999
Over 6 months but within 1 year NEA L BB E—F 285,078 55,946
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA E BT BB E 192,386 470,915
Over 2 years B3 f 1,165 -
1,268,992 2,699,343

BERFEAEEMNBER BEFNER
MBATNRES  ~2EEETERTERP
N FO0EGOK (Z T — =4 : 0860X)
H{EEH] -

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from 0

to 60 days (2013: 0 to 60 days) depending on customers’
relationship with the Group, their creditworthiness and past
settlement record.

FRER TR B R BRI BERTE -

The ageing is based on the invoice date and net of provision.

(b) B E 3 ARFRE
FARKE ZRFREREESIT

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The movement in provision for impairment of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

The Group
rEH

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January ®n—A—H 51,947 -
Reversal of impairment losses VEREY Ei=E e (9,011) -
Impairment loss recognised B HERBREEE - 51,947
Exchange differences MEH =R 211 -
At 31 December R+=-ZA=+—H 43,147 51,947
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22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

The above provision for impairment losses of trade
receivables represents provision for individually and
collectively impaired trade receivables of RMB43,147,000
(2013: RMB51,947,000) with a carrying amount of
RMB43,147,000 (2013: RMB51,947,000). The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to a customer, which
did not make any settlement during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

(c) Trade and bill receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and notes receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRSP E

22 W E 5 BRE R A A (a0
(b) BWE 3 RFURE (&)

L ERESERRREEEREGRERE
AR®E43147,0000 (ZE—=F : AR
51,947,0007T) Z @RI & £ EREEKE 5
IRAARY43,147,000 (ZE—=F: A
R #51,947,0007T) ° & Bl & B & FE I BR 3K
FEEREBEE T NEN_T—Z=ZF+—
A=+—BLFERREETEAERZ —F
EFEHERA -

WEBEEWE S RARERRE

b 4 {8 1| 2k 25 [B) 4% VR RR (B B FE ML B 5 R ok I
R R RER DA T

The Group
rEHE

2014 2013
—E-mEF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired I 6 BR SlOR (B 612,214 1,529,483
Less than 1 year past due BHR DR —F 653,562 698,945
Over 1 year past due AR —F 3,216 470,915
1,268,992 2,699,343

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not

been a significant change in credit quality and the balances

are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

3 4 760 A 54 Rl (B #Y FE A AR R B4 HA 3F 402 49
CHNEZEPAR -

BHERRBENEYARKES £ EAREE
T%Eﬁ%ﬁ’]i@&%ﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁ*g}iﬁ%% o B
R BEEERSBARZFERIRA
TE%?%{% AREELEEVERLEAES
REERIDAR BRI BB E o AN B I 8 5 5%
%%ﬁ%#wﬁﬁcﬂﬁ?ﬁﬂuu 0
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B IR R M T

22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)
(d) Transferred financial assets that are not

(e)

derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain bill
receivables accepted by banks in the PRC (the “endorsed
bills”) with a carrying amount of RMB14,452,000 (2013:
RMB39,000,000) to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such endorsed bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the endorsed bills and the associated trade
payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the
Group did not retain any rights on the use of the endorsed
bills, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the endorsed
bills to any other third parties. The aggregate carrying
amount of the trade payables settled by the endorsed bills
during the year to which the suppliers have recourse was
RMB14,452,000 (2013: RMB39,000,000) as at 31 December
2014.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2014, the Group, endorsed certain bill
receivables accepted by banks in the PRC to certain of

its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due

to such suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate

of RMB166,189,000 (2013: RMB235,000,000). The
derecognised bills had a maturity of one to six months at
the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders

of the derecognised bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “continuing
involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating
to the derecognised bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised
the full carrying amounts of the derecognised bills and the
associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s continuing involvement in the derecognised
bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
derecognised bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the derecognised bills are not
significant.
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22 BB SIRFAREWEE @
d) XAEZ2RIERACZCEHESHMEE

(e)

RZZE—NE+-—A=+—8  "&EEBEE
HEAR®14,452,000 (ZE—=F: A
R #39,000,0007T) &= B35 A IR 178 H /Y
ETREWEERSETHE THERS (B8
Bl NEBEERNZEEHEBCRNES
R (B8] EFERE A5ENREBHE
BAIMORBRMEMR  BEZESEREDN
BHORR At ANEBEEXTERERSE
EEMNEEREEAREEENEEENES
B 5% r25ETHBREBEAZES
EZENEMERN  BEHE  ER2AEE
EZEHBTEMNEME=F - RERNUE
EERBEEBCHEREERENENE SR
RR-_E—NF+-_A=+—HHEREAE
BARE14,452000L (ZE2E—=F: AR
#39,000,0007T) °

TERIBRZCERTREE

R-ZT—NE+-_A=+—8 K"EBHE
FEBERRITALMNETREREESETH
ETiEr WA EEEMNZEHEERER
“AE A ANRH166,189,0007T (ZE—=4 :
AR#235,000,00070) ZENE FEER o 48
IFERZEERREHREE —E/NEA E
H o MIBFRBRRBEZHETE @ WETPBIER
RITELY  RUIBRZEBZBREEHEAE
EfBERE ((HESH]) -EFRAE K
SEEERRIBRZER ZBABD AR
RElH o At NEEZHARIEHER TR
BRZEBERIEEENE SRR - AEBEH
BLEZRITERZEBZHERBAREE
ZER IR EBEZATHRRESRERR
HEEHE -EFRA AEERELHAKE
BRZEBEZ ARBTTEK o



22 TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)
(e) Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in

their entirety (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of
the derecognised bills. No gains or losses were recognised
from the continuing involvement, both during the year or
cumulatively. The endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

(f) Trade and bill receivables that are pledged

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade and bill
receivables with carrying amount of RMB85,239,000 were
pledged for interest-bearing bank borrowings (Note 28). No
trade and bill receivables were pledged as at 31 December
2014.

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRSP E

22 BB SIRFAREWEE @
(e) TRRUIBRAZCHEHEESRHEE &)

(f)

BE_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE K
SEYARNERR IR RIEE AERE
s RER - NREBERFRNRRFHERE
RFBE2ENEMRELEE - BETNF
AFIGIEL

BIEECZERESRAREREE
R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H  KEBREH
BEAE ANR¥S5,239,000T 2 BN E 5 R K
ERERE R BRITEEELEE (T
28) c R-E—MME+_—_A=+—08 &
EIREWE SRR N EWEE -

23 AR E B U AR

The Group The Company
rEH R F]
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-OF —T—=F ZF-0OF _T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARET T AREBTT ARBT T
Deposits and prepayments for R—HEE AR 2 ERm 2
interest in an associate (Note (i) Be RIBERK
(PYEEG)) - 5,688 - -
Other deposits and prepayments  HE iz 4é R IafTBE 182,874 711,993 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B~ B 5 IR
(Note (i) (FEEG)) - - 534,049 1,304,088
Amounts due from non-controlling  FEUIEI% A& I& B8 7k 18
shareholders 530,198 622,327 - -
Other non-trade receivables E M IEEINE SR 200,363 194,220 - -
Less: Impairment (Note (iii)) B ORME (BEEEGD) (49,974) (7,838) - -
863,461 1,526,390 534,049 1,304,088

Deposits and prepayments for equity investments mainly
represent prepaid consideration and deposits for interest in
an associate.

(i) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and are repayable on demand.

AR E 2 d RIAN RN E R IERMNKE
MR —fEER R 2 SR -

(i)

(i) BARFASEEN  RENRERE
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B RS HR AR BT

23 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(iii) Impairment of prepayments and other receivables

The movement in provision for impairment of prepayments

23 TSR R HMt EE YW BR X ()

(iil) TN RRAR R E At FE U RRSK 2 R ME

F T8 1 PR 3R B L At B MK R 5 2 R (B B

and other receivables during the year is as follows: BT
The Group
TEH
2014 2013
—2-MmE ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥ETT
At 1 January n—A—H 7,838 -
Impairment loss recognised R REER 42,136 7,838
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 49,974 7,838
The above provision for impairment losses of prepayments it iﬁ\bﬁ AR R B HL b B R BR R 2 BB )%5 Té
and other receivables represents provision for individually and BEEREEARKL974000T (— =
collectively impaired prepayments and other receivables of I F: AR MQBC%S,OOOTE) 2 )C'7|J & #
RMB49,974,000 (2013: RMB7,838,000) with a carrying amount 150 3 {65 ) 38 11 e % J& L O M B e 15
of RMB49,974,000 (2013: RMB7,838,000). The individually R #49,974,000L (ZF — = & AR i
impaired receivables mainly relate to prepayments and other 7, §8_QQO ) o MBI BIRUE 2 FE R B 5k 22 5
receivables which the directors of the Company consider NN L E‘ /B 5&4&@ HEEHY
that the chances of collection/utilisation of the outstanding &R (R A TR AR B A R AR SR A A -
amounts are remote.
=h
24 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 24 EEFERK

Bank deposits of RMB497,129,000 (2013: RMB1,983,604,000)
as at 31 December 2014 were pledged to banks to secure
certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings
(Note 28) and general credit facilities.

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

RZE—NE+ZA=+—08 " RITEZA

R #497,129,000T (ZE — =% :

AR®

1,983,604,0007T) EEFFIRITIEAELAEE
ETERETEE (MiE28) —REEE

& o
25 RERREEEY
() RERBREEEYESE :
The Group The Company
rEE AAF
2014 2013 2014 2013

—B-NF —T-=fF —B-NF —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETE AR®BTR ARBTT

Cash at bank and in hand

IRITMFHERE

53,864 483,310 1

67
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R B 5
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continueD) 25 HERBELEEY @
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) RBIAIEBIBREKSETEHME,(FTA) B
generated from/(used in) operations: E2HER
2014 2013
—B-0NF —T—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR%¥Tr ARETT
(Restated)
(geE5)
Loss before taxation BRELRTE B (1177,656)  (14,605)
Adjustment for: NG S IEEL TR
Depreciation for property, plant and Yz - BB MR EITE
equipment 15 176,603 178,231
Amortisation of coal mining rights W TR BT A B 16 43,407 59,252
Amortisation of lease prepayments GEN=S AN £ 17 140 140
Provision for inventories FERE 21 35,650 8,012
Finance income B A 7 (50,519) (37,348)
Finance costs EURID RN 7 575,287 573,762
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWB AR 2 EE 6 162,585 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZEEIE
equipment 8 - 116,059
Impairment losses on property, plantand  #1% - &= MR EREEE
equipment 8 18,674 84,500
Impairment losses on prepayments and & B8R 7k & E At FE U BR FORE B 18
other receivables 8 42,136 7,838
(Reversal of)/impairment losses on FEWE SRR (BE),REEE
trade receivables 8 (9,011) 51,947
Impairment loss on interest in an associate 7 —fEIE# & A B2 2 B (E B 1 8 19,333 -
Equity-settled share-based payment L 45 DARR () A ETE RS 3K
expenses 8 483 2,230
Share of loss of associates 2R E A A EE 18 11,269 3,093
Property, plant and equipment written-off #13 « /= N & i EH 8 48 -
Changes in working capital: BEECEE) -
Change in inventories FEEH 38,463 97,677
Change in trade and bill receivables and  FEUE 5 BR 5% & FE U SR 15 LA IR T8 1+F
prepayments and other receivables AR SR R L i LA BR R 1,303,788 530,260

ENESENX  BNEER
His SRR E D)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations &&EBFTE (FiA) BE

Change in trade, bill and other payables
156,938 (2,096,385)

1,347,618  (435,337)
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B IR R M T

26 TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of the Group is

26 ENEZRRARENRE

AEBEMNE SRR MENRENRE DT

as follows: N
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—mE —_F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Within 1 year —FUR 1,001,631 1,478,057
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F L E B EAMRE 46,107 111,711
Over 2 years but within 3 years MEL BB EBA=F 393 -
1,048,131 1,589,768
27 OTHER PAYABLES 7 H A ETBRFX
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-WE —T-=F —B-NF —T-=
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥ETR ARETT
Current BN HA
Receipts in advance FEUkFRIE 49,572 315,637 - =
Accrued expenses JEETR X 229,823 173,445 - =
Amounts due to subsidiaries JESTBT B A | M FIE
(Note (i) (BF3EG)) - = - 760,989
Other payables A AR X 1,979,306 1,897,605 5,212 24
2,258,701 2,386,687 5,212 761,013
Non-current EIR
Other payables H A FE T BR X 95,782 131,549 - -
2,354,483 2,518,236 5,212 761,013
()  The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free (i) fgﬁﬂjf; BARNKIEAERE £ NAER
and are repayable on demand. ERIERE
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B R R M EE
28 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28 s ERITHEE
The Group
KEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —EF—=%F
Notes  Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
Mz  ZEIHA AR®Tx ZHA ARBT T
Current ENHA
Secured bank loans ﬁ%ﬁiﬁfﬁﬁ%%ﬂ (i 2015 3,424,188 2014 5,471,329
Unsecured bank  EEFIRITEK
loans (ii) 2015 514,872 2014 236,936
Current portion of FEENERAIKIFERTT
non-current B R BNEAE o
secured bank
loans (iii) 2015 713,325 2014 727,211
Current portion of  FERIHAMEIKIRERTT
non-current B ENEAE D
unsecured
bank loans (i) 2015 81,720 2014 47721
4,734,105 6,483,197
Non-current JEBNEA
Secured bank loans AR TTER (iii) 2016-2026 2,677,796 2015-2026 2,253,325
Unsecured bank  EEIBIRITE K
loans (iii) 2016 240,000 2015-2016 321,581
2,917,796 2,574,906
7,651,901 9,058,103

(i)  Current secured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging
from 5.10% to 9.00% (2013: 1.30% to 9.50%) per annum as at

31 December 2014.

i) R=—=— m¢+ A=+—8  BfHAaEKE
M F5.10%E9.00% (=T — =

BT ERIEN

F 1 1.30%%9.50

%) EFRIRER -
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B RS HR AR BT

28 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

(ii) Current unsecured bank loans and bank advances bear
interest at rates ranging from 2.09% to 8.50% (2013: 1.69% to RMITE K

8.70%) per annum as at 31 December 2014.

(iii) Non-current interest-bearing bank borrowings (including

current portion of non-current interest-bearing bank

borrowings) as at 31 December 2014 bear the following

interest rates:

2014 20183
—E2-—MmF =H==F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREETTT
(1) 30% premium on the per annum interest (1) HFBEARBITHARAFEHRES
rate quoted by the People’s Bank FRR EF30% ([FHE
of China in respect of five-year ARBITEFHEERE])
borrowings (“6-year interest rate
of PBOC”) 340,000 340,000
2 USD best lending rate plus 0.5% (2) ZERHEBEEEFNEI0.5% - 128,740
(3) 20% premium on the 5-year interestrate  (3) R ARFITREHEER R
of PBOC +F%20% 635,000 750,000
(4) 5% premium on the per annum interest rate(4) B ARBRITATRHAB AF
quoted by the People’s Bank of China with PA EFF= F)¥5%
terms longer than five years 1,083,510 722,238
(5) 5-year interest rate of PBOC (6) HEIARRITRFIEER® - 280,000
(6) 30% premium on the per annum 6) HFBRARRIT=FHEEF
interest rate quoted by the ME E)F30% ([FEAR
People’s Bank of China in respect of SRIT=FHEERNE])
three-year borrowings (“3-year interest
rate of PBOC”) - 8,333
(7) Fixed rate: 8.32% (7) BEEFIZE : 8.32% - 150,000
(8) 3% per annum over higher of 1 month (8) —EAABBRITRERER
HIBOR and the Hang Seng Bank’s BARITEEKAMEH
cost of funds BREMSF3% - 6,696
©) 38% premium on the 3-year interest 9) HBEAREBIT=FHEERX
rate of PBOC £I%#38% 585,000 595,000
(10)  13.82% premium on the 3-year interest (10) HBEARBIT=FHEERX
rate of PBOC +£I#13.82% 285,000 300,000
(11) 4% per annum over higher of 1 month (11) —EABEBRITRAEFRER
HIBOR and the Hang Seng Bank’s BARITERKAMEH
cost of funds BEEMNTFL% - 7,862
(12) 413% per annum over Raiffeisen Bank (12) Raiffeisen Bank International
International AG’s cost of fund AGE & AMEEL13% 36,720 60,969
(13) 5% premium on the 3-year interest (13) HBEARBIT=FHEER X
rate of PBOC +£%5% 159,700 -
(14) 3-year interest rate of PBOC (14) FREARRIT=FHF= 587,911 -
3,712,841 3,349,838
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28 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings are secured

8T EBITHEE @

PRSP E

AEBZABRRTEBEATIEEFLE

by the following assets: #
The Group
rEH

2014 2013

—E-IF =%

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE AR®T T ARETT

Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRE 15 4,395,220 2,303,929

Coal mining rights B IR BRI 16 4,633,632 4,676,147

Lease prepayments HEBMERER 17 5,353 =

Inventories 3 21 299,756 224,000

Trade and bill receivables FEUE 5 Bk TR N R IR 15 22 - 85,239

Pledged deposits 2 AE R 24 448,462 1,763,847
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s interest-bearing bank R-ZZE—NF+A=T—8 "' Ax&EBZ&

borrowings are also secured by the Group’s equity interest in
Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong
Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and
Oriental Wise (2013: Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi
Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal).
As at 31 December 2014, interest-bearing bank borrowings
of RMB4,535,747,000 (2013: RMB4,171,368,000) were
guaranteed by the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Company and/or related parties (Note 37(b)).

The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings were
repayable as follows:

BRITIEETAAREREEXR

BEIR - Bk

B SAKE FEEERE REEE -
M BE 2 « Super GraceMOriental Wise (=

=%

EXREER

BB L 3

)/% @ﬁ

¥ SEAKE- @iﬁ%kﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%) 9 A%
REEZERIB c R E—WmE+=—A=+—
H - AR#4535,747,00000 (ZE—=4:
AR#4.171,368,0007T) 25t BRITEEH
ARR) - ARRETHBRAR R, KEEER
REER (BIFE37(b)) ©

AEBENERITEERTIIHRER

The Group
rER

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Within 1 year —F R 4,734,105 6,483,197
QOver 1 year but within 2 years —F P\ FETBBMRE 1,952,795 871,597
QOver 2 years but within 5 years MEL BT EARF 304,737 951,251
Over 5 years FFEUE 660,264 752,058
2,917,796 2,574,906
7,651,901 9,058,103
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B SRR MIRE
29 ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 20 FHIRREEH
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFIT
At 1 January Rn—A—H 81,869 76,728
Interest charge on unwinding of WERRZFEAXS
discounts (Note 7) (B&E7) 5,224 5,141
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—fERB AR (MFE32) (12,400) -
At 31 December Rt-—A=+—H 74,693 81,869
30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 0EX - RERBRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EREBH B E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEEIH DR ERN Y KRR R
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated R EEREEHER - ARAERERDD
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes RENREELNEEFBERINAT :

in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
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B R R B 5
30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 0EXR - ERERERE @
(CONTINUED)
(a) Movements in components of equity (continued) (a) EREBD BB (&)
The Company RAF
Perpetual
subordinated Share-based
Share Share  convertible  Contributed ~ Exchange compensation Accumulated
capital premium  securities surplus reserve reserve losses Total
XAR HRBAER -
REx  BRBRE TEREx 0 SAB®  ERRE  <MeRE  ZiER Gl
Notes RMB’OOO RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fitz ARBTT  ARETL ARETR ARETR ARBTn AR®TR  ARETR
Note 30}b{ Note 30(d)8 Note 30éc) Note 30(d)(w{ NoteSO(d)(lv{ Note 30(d)(vg
KE30(b)  MHE30(d) HE30(c) MY&E30(d)(vi)  HE&E30(d)(iv FﬂE30(d)(v
1 January 2013 RZE—=E—H-H 176,266 376,260 156,931 658,719 (45,989) 11,890 (38754) 1,295,323
Total comprehensiveloss ~ FR2EERLAE
for the year
Loss for the year ENEE = = = = - = (8,704) (8,704)
Other comprehensiveloss ~ E12EEE
Foreign currency translation  SMEREZE
differences = = = = (18,283) = = (18,283)
Total other comprehensive loss Eft2AE AR - - = - (18,283) - - (18,283)
Totalcomprehensiveloss ~ ZEBELE = = = = (18,283) = (8,704) (26,987)
Transactionswithequity ~ EEBREEAZRE
shareholders, recorded REREETIR
directly in equity
Shares issuedinrespectof  FLMARAK SRR
scrip dividend 30(b)(vit) 265 1,757 = = = = = 2,022
Dividends declared and paidin AEEE ERRIEA
respectofthe currentyear MR & 30(d)if) = (16,439) = = = = = (16,439)
Dividends declared and paid BEERR SRR
in respect of the previous year R & - (49,566) - - - - - (49,566)
Distribution relating to TTﬁﬂxh%"ﬁﬁaE’J
convertible securities Nk 30(c) = (4,634) = = = = = (4,634)
Fauity-settled share-based %Eﬁuf*”ﬁ”uﬁx{ B
payments ERHHR 300 = = - - - 2,230 - 2,230
Total transactions with equity Eﬁ%ﬁ?&ﬁﬁfi?&%
shareholders 8% 265 (68,882) - - - 2230 - (66,387)
At 31 December 2013 and m_ef;
1 January 2014 +-B=+-BRk
“S-ME-A-H 176,531 307,378* 156,931 658,719* (64,272)* 14,120 (47.458) 1,201,949
Total comprehensive ER2ERA /(BB
income/(loss) for theyear 414
Loss for the year NER - - - - - - (12,276) (12,276)
Other comprehensive income  Ef1 2EHA
Foreign currency translation  SMEHEZE
differences - - - - 2117 - - 2117
Totalothercomprehensive A2 EMAEE
income - - - - 217 - - 217
Total comprehensive 2ERA /(BB
income/(loss) &% - - - - M7 - (12,276) (10,159)
Transactionswithequity ~ EEREEAZRS °
shareholders, recorded RERE RS
directly in equity
Distrioution relating to iﬁi—[ﬁﬁﬁg’(%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘\]
convertible securities Pk 30(c) - (4,628) - - - - - (4,628)
Equity-settled share-based ?ﬂ&ﬁu#%mﬂ
payments eI 30(c() - - - - - 483 - 483
Share options lapsed BAGRE 30(dv) - - - - - (6,334) 6,334 -
Totaltransactions with equity EBRREEALRS
shareholders &% - (4,628) - - - (5,851) 6,334 (4,145)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-E
T-A=t-H 176,531 302,750% 156,931 658,719* (62,155)* 8,269% (53,400)¢ 1187645

*  These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of

RMB854,183,000 (2013: RMB868,487,000) in the statement of

financial position.

* ZERESER
854,183,0007T (= &
868,487,00070) Z & °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR R M T

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

0EXR - ERERERE @

(b) Share capital (b) A&
The Group and the Company REBERA T
2014 2013
“E-mE 3=
No. of shares Amount No.of shares Amount
| £ e 28
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
itz ARRTR ARETT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each BRAEBI0ETHERR (i) i) 20,000,000,000 1,763,000 20,000,000,000 1,768,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid EER DRARAR
At 1 January i) zd= 2,078,413,985 176,531 2,075,120,000 176,266
Shares issued in respect of serip dividend —— SEMRK S 21TEIR L (vl - - 3,293,985 265
At 31 December RTZA=1-A 2,078,413,985 176,531 2,078,413,985 176,531

() The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 4 March 2008 with an authorised share capital of
HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of par value
HKDO0.10 each. On 4 March 2008, a share of the Company
with par value of HKD0.10 was allotted, issued and fully
paid to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as the
initial subscriber, which was subsequently transferred
by Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited to Mr. Xu
on the same day. On 12 June 2009, Mr. Xu transferred
this one share to Fortune Pearl International Limited
(“Fortune Pearl’, the ultimate holding company of the
Group).

(i) Pursuant to a reorganisation on 12 June 2009 (the
“Reorganisation”), 999,999 shares credited as fully
paid were allotted and issued to Fortune Pearl, in
consideration for the acquisition by the Company
of the entire equity interest of Qinfa Investment, an
intermediate holding company of the Group.
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(i)

ARa R —EENE=ANBERSE
S - JEERAR380,0008 7T
% /3,800,0000% & A% M 150.107%8 7T 1Y
e RZFEE/NF=HMH ' Codan
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited ({E
RUITRER) BREERBET-REER
0.108 TH AR R E KD - MCodan
Trust Company (Cayman) LimitedE &
REABHHEEETREE - RZZEZTN
FRATZB  BREEBEFEN K
BRHEZETLREERERAF ([BE] -
AEEZKRIERAT]) ©

BER-_ZTZAFA+_HBHHNEA
([E#]) > 999,9990% I 17 A BR 7] & &4
B BERBITTER  EAEARQTK
BRBEE (KEE—HPEERAR)
P EPRRAERRAE -



30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
passed on 12 June 2009, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HKD380,000 to
HKD2,000,000,000 by the creation of an additional
19,996,200,000 shares of HKD0.10 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
passed on 12 June 2009, 749,000,000 ordinary shares
of HKDO0.10 each in the Company were issued at

par value on 3 July 2009 by way of capitalisation of
HKD74,900,000 (equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from
the share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

On 3 July 2009, 250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10
each were issued at a price of HKD2.52 per share

under the Initial Public Offering and the International
Placing. The proceeds of HKD25,000,000 (equivalent

to RMB22,042,000) representing the par value,

were credited to the Company’s share capital. The
remaining proceeds of HKD605,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB533,429,000), before the issuing expenses, were
credited to the share premium account.

On 22 July 2009, the underwriters of the International
Placing exercised the over-allotment option for the
issuance of 37,500,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each
at HKD2.52 per share. The proceeds of HKD3,750,000
(equivalent to RMB3,305,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HKD90,750,000 (equivalent
to RMB79,987,000), before the issuing expenses, were
credited to the share premium account.
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B R SRR R
30X - HERKRE @
(b) B&AS (40
(iii) BARNBIE—IRER_ZEZENLFENNA

(iv)

+_HBBZEERZR ANER
19,996,200,000/% & & E1E0.10/8 T Z
%D - AR FREEMZAAH 380,000/
TTi€ % 2,000,000,000/8 7T °

BRARRE—BRER_ZSEZTAFENRA

+_HBRBZEBRAER BAB
ARABBRMHPRERAT EWEKRDE
& BR #74,900,000% 7t (B & BN A B
#66,039,0007T) BEIEE X+ KX R A
749,000,000 FAXEE0.10/8 A 8
MR -—ZTTAF+ A =-HIRAERT -

‘<_7 TAFELA=H" BEHXARH

EMERESKZER2528THE
15( % 17250,000,000/% & A% T 1H0.1078
rc 2 & B - FT 13 7K T825,000,000/8

7T (B E B A R #22,042,0005T) (58
HE) sFARRBIZBAA - HAB
X 78605,000,000% 7t (FHE R A R #&
533,429,0007L) - EHBRETHRI 2
Al u‘l’AHXTD/ﬁnEEEW

RZEBEFNF+HAZ+T=H  BEERE
ENBHEETFERERERE UK
2.527% JT & B #& % 1737,500,0000% &
REENOB T2 EBIRKMD - FTE
X JE3,750,0008 ;L (B & R A R ¥
3,305,0007T) (JEEE) 5T AXAQ A Z
PR AN o EfRFT1S 5K IE90,750,00078 7T
(FHENARK79,987,0007T) © £
BITHZ ZA 0 st ARG IREBEREA °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR R M T

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Share capital (continued)

(vi) On 8 April 2011, 60,000 share options under the Pre-IPO
Option were exercised for the same number of shares
at an exercise price of HKD2.52 per share (Note 31(a)).
Allissued shares have been fully paid. The proceeds of
HKD®6,000 (equivalent to RMB5,000) representing the
par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HKD145,000 (equivalent
to RMB122,000) were credited to the share premium
account.

(vii) The extraordinary general meeting held on 30
September 2011 approved the bonus issue of one share
for every one existing share held by the shareholders
whose names are on the register of members on 10
October 2011. As a result, the issued share capital
of the Company increased from HKD103,756,000
(equivalent to RMB91,479,000) to HKD207,512,000
(equivalent to RMB176,266,000) through capitalisation
of share premium of HKD103,756,000 (equivalent to
RMB84,787,000).

(viii)On 19 July 2013, the Company issued and allotted
3,298,985 shares at an issue price of HKD0.77 per share
in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2012.

As a result, during the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Company’s share capital and share premium were
in aggregate increased by approximately HKD329,000
(equivalent to RMB265,000) and HKD2,207,000
(equivalent to RMB1,757,000), respectively.
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0EXR - ERERERE @

(b) B&AS (40
Vi) RAZZE——FWWANEB X FHEE

A & P #E 18 T60,00010 B8 % 1 1% & IR
2528 2 THEEEITE - NREER
B8 2ikm (15E31(a)) - FTEE BT
MDEH R - FT1S 5 IE6,0007%8 7T (18
ENARMS,0007T) (FEEE) 5FAEXR
A IR AR o H 8% AT 15 5T 145,000 7T
(HENAERE®122,0007T) 5t ARMD %
BER -

VilRZE——FENA=+THETHRER

RIAGSCHERR -_ZE——F+A+H
HIBREMzBREFE —REFR
DEEREIT — RARREITEITAR -
it - B il E A% 15 % E103,756,000
BT (188 B A R #84,787,0007T) -
KRR\ ZE %17 A B103,756,000
B (FBE RN A K #91,479,0007T) 1
N E207,512,0008 T (HHE R AR
176,266,0007T) °

Vil R=—E—=F+t A+ 1B A2AmE

2T —HF+=—A=+—HIEFEEZ
REA B IR TEFR0.77BTEIT R
it 353,293,985 A% 1D °

At REE-FT—=F+=-A=+—
AIEFE  AARBRARRKRDRED B
& HKEIN#1329,0005 T (FHE R AR
265,0007T) %&%2,207,000/ ¢ (42 & B
AER#1,757,0007T) °



30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(c)

(CONTINUED)
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued convertible
securities to Fortune Pearl with a value of HKD194,700,000
(equivalent to RMB157,872,000). The direct transaction
costs attributable to the convertible securities amounted to
RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the option of
the holder of convertible securities into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time after 31 December 2012 at the
initial conversion price of HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the
Company. While the convertible securities confer a right to
receive distributions at 3% per annum, the Company may, at
its sole discretion, elect to defer a distribution pursuant to
the terms of the convertible securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity date and are
redeemable at the option of the Company at 100% or 50% of
the principal amount of the convertible securities each time,
on any distribution payment date at the face value of the
outstanding principal amount of the convertible securities
to be redeemed plus 100% or 50% (as the case may be) of
distributions accrued to such date.

As the convertible securities have no contractual obligation
to repay its principal nor to pay any distributions, they do not
meet the definition for classification of a financial liabilities
under IAS 32. As a result, the whole instrument is classified
as equity, and respective distributions if and when declared
are treated as equity dividends.

The Group had not elected to defer distribution payments
for the year ended 31 December 2014 of HKD5,841,000
(equivalent to RMB4,628,000). Distribution payment

for the year ended 31 December 2013 of approximately
HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,634,000)
had been fully settled at 31 December 2018.
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(c) KRR TR 25

RZE——F+_A=+—H KXRA#I%
1T{B1E A194,700,000% 7T (HHE RN AR K
157,872,0007L) Z A AR ESTFTERE -
RBRELFEENEERIERAARE
941,0007T °

AR EAAIN - E——F+_-_A=+—H
BT R B B ESEE ARE
BRBABARRNRILEBR  VIXHBRERER
ARNRERT1.658 T o BE ] AR E HF I
FHEF A WA EF3% 2 5 kEE - ARBMIA]
EEEERBURRES 2 IEZEEETR S
K ©

BB SLESEAE  JHARFEES
IR A AR B H A SR 2 100%850% F A
D - WMERDIRFBES B A TER AR
BRBAHEETASEEES MMAHERE B S
ZE WD IREE Z2100%350% (18 F 1550 M
JE) °

HRATHREE S EEAEERAS RN
EADRKBZHERE  RETTFEEERES
AAERERAHEMBERMNATE
bt 2FZBRIADSRARER  ME
DIKRENE KR IERESRRERIE

AEBVEERBECESEE _—_T—NF+=
A=+—BLFEKND 4 5KIE 25,841,000
Bt (B E R AR#46280005T) © & 2
T ZHF+ A=+ BLEFENSA
X IH 495,841,000 L (FHE RN AR K
4,634,000T) ER=ZE—=F+=A=+—
BRSER -
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(d) Reserves
(i) Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
passed on 12 June 2009, 749,000,000 ordinary shares of
HKDO0.10 each in the Company were issued at par value
on 3 July 2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the share premium
account upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each in the
Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share under

the Initial Public Offering on 3 July 2009. The excess of

the proceeds totalling HKD605,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB533,429,000) over the nominal value of the total
number of ordinary shares issued, less certain listing costs
of HKD49,562,000 (equivalent to RMB43,699,000) incurred
in connection with the issue of the share capital, amounting
to HKD555,438,000 (equivalent to RMB489,730,000), were
credited to the share premium account.

An additional 37,500,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each in
the Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share on 22 July
2009 pursuant to the over-allotment option related to the
International Placing. The excess of the proceeds totalling
HKD90,750,000 (equivalent to RMB79,987,000) over the
nominal value of the total number of ordinary shares issued,
less certain listing costs of HKD 10,259,000 (equivalent to
RMB9,045,000) incurred in connection with the issue of
share capital, amounting to HKD80,491,000 (equivalent

to RMB70,942,000), were credited to the share premium
account.

On 8 April 2011, 60,000 shares of HKD0.10 each in the
Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share as a result

of the exercise of vested options arising from the Pre-IPO
Option (Note 31(a)). The excess of the proceeds totalling
HKD145,000 (equivalent to RMB122,000) was credited to
the share premium of the Company. HKD48,000 (equivalent
to RMB40,000) has been transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium account in

accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(l)(iii).
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(d) R
(i) RtpaE

BEARAATIM-—RER-_ZEZAEA+=-H
BBZEERZR @ EBBAR BN A
RFT_EW & B 4% B % 74,900,000 7T (48
BN AR®66,039,0007T) BEEAKR - AR
7)749,000,0000% & X F1H0.107% T Y & i@
R =TT NF+ A= HIZEEET -

MN-ZZEZAFELA=0 ARQFEEH
AR E R E IR2.528 T B 1% B 1T
250,000,0000% & A% ® 180.10/% 7T 2 & i@
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Reserves (continued)

(i)

(i)

Share premium (continued)

Pursuant to a written resolution of the directors’ meeting
passed on 23 August 2012, the Company declared a

special interim dividend of HKD41,502,000 (equivalent to
RMB33,748,000). The amount was out of the share premium
account.

At a meeting held on 22 March 2013, the Board of Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK3 cents which could be
satisfied by allotment of new shares of the Company,
credited as fully paid, by way of scrip dividend, with an
alternative to equity holders to elect to receive such final
dividend (or part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.
On 19 July 2013, the Company settled the final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2012 by cash payment of
HKD59,717,000 (equivalent to RMB47,544,000) and issuance
3,298,985 new ordinary shares at an issue price of HKDO0.77
per share (equivalent to RMB2,022,000) (Note 30(b)(viii)). The
excess of the proceeds totalling HKD2,207,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,757,000) was credited to the share premium of the
Company.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the directors’ meeting
passed on 29 August 2013, the Company declared a
special interim dividend of HKD20,784,000 (equivalent to
RMB16,439,000) (Note 30(f)). The amount was out of the
share premium account.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries
of the Company and the amount of share capital of the
Company transferred and issued to Fortune Pearl in
exchange for the entire equity interests in all members of
the Group as part of the Reorganisation.
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B IR R M T

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(d) Reserves (continued)
(iii) Reserves

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable
to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain entities within
the Group are required to allocate certain portion (not less
than 10%), as determined by their Board of Directors, of
their profit after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to the
statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liguidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset accumulated
losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

Specific reserve — maintenance and production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group is

required to transfer an amount to specific reserve for the
maintenance and production funds and other related
expenditures based on coal production volume and revenue
of shipping business. The movement of specific reserve is as

0EXR - ERERERE @

(d) @4 @
(iii) & &
EERHES

RIFSNEBE R REANEBTERM - K
SEBETNETERANESSRERTE
AR RAUNEE THREREN (KRR
10%) BtERES ((RERBE]) BEE
& REEEEMEANL0% A LE

FEERMBE A TANIK - HELRBFRERR
AR IRARRE P B AR I A TR &1 7] AR 8
RETEH RN BEREARNSE HTTRARIBRS -

BIRHE - EREEES
RETEEHERTE AREEAREBERREE
EMERBWE - #—ERBRATAE R
RERENEEESAREMABRAX - &
TRFERHERNT

follows:
The Group
REE
RMB’000
ARET
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—HA—B2&% 42,760
Provision for the year FREE 281,507
Utilisation for the year FRENA (49,525)
Balance at 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-A=+—HBHK
1 January 2014 —E—NFE—-A—HBZ&EH 274,742
Provision for the year FNEE 103,661
Utilisation for the year FAEA (70,157)
Release of reserve upon disposal of S — R B A 518 8 [0 1
a subsidiary (59,778)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-EBE—NE+_A=+—B2Z&&% 248,468
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Reserves (continued)

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2(d).

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the value of
employee services in respect of share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Option and Share Option as set out in Note 31.

(vi) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net asset value of Qinfa Investment
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation and the nominal
value of the share issued by the Company in exchange.

(vii) Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share
premium account are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date

on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2014 was RMB249,350,000
(2013: RMB259,920,000).
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages

its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of debt
to equity ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines debt as
total interest-bearing bank borrowings, and equity as total
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

The debt to equity ratios as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
were as follows:

0EX - ERERE @

(e) EAXERE

AEBEREAZ BZBENRERNEERE
WBBEBREFEQEEELE  UREEBE
RBKFREZERMREEBANRERSE
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= B BKF B RGP E AR 5 2R 2 4 BR M AR
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g - RIEAEBEBERRE R BRTE
ERw MBERRER/ANRRERTE A
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2014 2013
i ki —F_=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M EE
30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 0EXR - ERERRE @
(CONTINUED)
Dividends (f) BB
Dividends paid to equity shareholders attributable to the FRIEM THRSFEEANRE :
year are as follow:
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
No interim dividend declared and paid in ZN4E & 3 8 = ik &R < o BRAR =,
respect of the current year ZE—=F : GREBRBW)
(2013: HK1 cent per ordinary share) - 16,439
No final dividend declared and paid in @7 & E I 5k &R R EIA% S
respect of the previous year =5 GREAERIEN)
(2013: HK3 cents per ordinary share) - 49,566
- 66,005

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 December
2014.

At a meeting held on 22 March 2013, the Board of Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK3 cents which will be
satisfied by allotment of new shares of the Company,
credited as fully paid, by way of scrip dividend, with an
alternative to equity holders to elect to receive such final
dividend (or part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.

On 19 July 2013, the Group settled the final scrip dividend
declared in respect of the previous financial year by cash
payment of HKD59,717,000 (equivalent to RMB47,544,000)
and issuance of 3,293,985 new ordinary shares at HKDO0.77
(equivalent to RMB2,022,000).

ARAREFAITEREREE T —HF+
“A=THUEFEZEARSR -

E-TE—=F=A-+-_B8ETz2€z I
BESHRRARHABREIBW - ZFRHBE
BERBEABRREZ L MERFEAR
BARIEBRRRZARRFKZ F IR
o REEFEANITRERNERSIEAS
Pk EB D AR HAAR B AR EilERl 28 2 B (p o

RZE—=FtA+NLHBH AEEBB
X 43R £©59,717,0008 7T (M8 & WX A R #&
47,544,00070) M3%0.77%8708173,293,985
i@k (FHE R AR?2,022,0007T) /Y
FRAEZFAR E—RFEMERIKBEY
RE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS

(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions
passed on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option”) whereby

an executive director of the Company, who resigned as an
executive director of the Company but remains the position

in the Group during the year, and 25 employees of the Group

(the “Grantees”) were granted the rights to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option is 8,400,000 shares which were granted on 12 June
2009 with the subscription price of HKD2.52 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option has a
vesting period of one to three years commencing from the
Listing Date and the options are exercisable for a period
of 10 years. The Company has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the option in cash.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows:

3N EREREFUROD/ERNIRK

(a) BER PR ER B RES S

REE-BKRR_-_ZFTNAFAAAT_AAESB
MEEARBRR  AARRMERAFEEH
BREASS ([BRAMBEANBRE]D &
o 1BARRFATES (FADBEARA]
HATES BNEAKRETEBRNEER) kA
SHE25%EE ([ARA]) BERTABAR
AR HORER o

B E XA SR ERER DR
BEHETERIT TRITONRNDEAHE A
8,400,000 * MHER =_ZEZNF A +=
BIEE @ RIBEAER2.528TT °

BOHRBAXCRAESABREM R LR
BEEEHAE LT AL —Z==F M
BTN T FHRATTE - ARFLEE
TSN E B ENR B O E R IEARE -

(i) SRBREMNERRRIFFENT

Number of Contractual

options Vesting conditions life of options

BREN

BREHE SRR BRER

Options granted to the Grantees 8,400,000 30% on both of the anniversary of the Listing Date, 10 years

—-on 12 June 2009
BT E B M RE
—-RZBZNFAATZH

40% on the third anniversary of the Listing Date 10%
TTRBRE-RBFRE_RFIHARI0% -

FHRBEE=BFR40%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED N RESBEHIURGBERNTR @

PAYMENTS (conTinuED)
(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BEXRAMRERNBRESTS @)

(i) BER DS BRENEE R IEF

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows:

ITEENT -

2014 2013
—ZE-F —E-=F

Exercise  Number of Exercise ~ Number of
price options price options
T BREHA IfRE BREHE
HKD °’000 shares HKD 000 shares
BT T BT T
QOutstanding at the beginning of the year 4] A17{E 1.26 13,600 1.26 15,200
Lapsed during the year FREK 1.26 1,600 1.26 1,600
Outstanding at the end of the year FIRHARITE 1.26 12,000 1.26 13,600
Exercisable at the end of the year FERA T 1.26 12,000 1.26 13,600

During the year, no share option (2013: Nil) under the Pre-
IPO Share Option was exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one share for every one
existing share held by the shareholders whose names are
on the register of members on 10 October 2011 (Note 30(b)
(vii)), the exercise price of the Pre-IPO Share Options was
adjusted from HKD2.52 to HKD1.26, and the number of the
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at 10 October 2011
was adjusted from 7,800,000 to 15,600,000 thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 December
2014 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of
4.5 years (2013: 5.5 years).

RER - BEEBRAFEENBREERTH
ERBERRERTE (ZT—=F : §) -

HRBER-ZE——F+ A+ BRIIRRAM
MBCREF A — IR A R 3% — AL BE
TTEATALAR (BIEE30(b)(vi) » BXAFEE
RIEBRENITEEH2.52BTTHER.26/8
T MR ZF——F T A+HARKRITENE
RAFIEE R EREZ A H7,800,00017 3
#/315,600,00017 °

R_ZB—MNFE+_A=+—H HRTEE

RN A 3% B BRI RE Y DA 1S FsR A 40 HB
RALEE (ZZE—=4%F :55%F)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (conTinuED)

(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued)
(iii) Fair value of Pre-IPO Share Options and assumptions

The fair value of service received in return for Pre-IPO Share
Options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of Pre-IPO Share Options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted is measured
based on the Binomial Model. The contractual life of the
Pre-IPO Share Options is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Binomial Model.

N EREBEFURDGA/ERNTR @

(a) BRAHREAERESE (1)

(i BEXAHZEEBERENA AERER
B B XA 3 S BB AR RE i R B AR S A
AE - H2REEREE XN AR ERER
AR EZE EREBXAAFRAEESAE
R G A A ERE - B R 5K E
= BRAFEERBRENS LDHR A
BT EAER - IRAITTHERTERE W
AZBEAER o

Granted on

12 June 2009

R-BEBAEF

AHT=H

&

Fair value at grant date RIRL BEIN AR HKD7,650,0007% 7T
Share price before bonus issue AR EEATRIAR B HKD2.527 7T
Exercise price before bonus issue AR TR TEE HKD2.527 7T
Expected volatility TEHR i@ 56%
Expected option life TE AR B AR A EARR 10 years®F
Expected dividend yield rate TE AR AR B as = 1.50%
Risk-free interest rate F [ B 7| & 3.029%

The expected volatility and expected dividend yield rate are
based on the average volatilities and dividend yield rates

in the similar industry. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.
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31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (conTinuED)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole shareholder’s
written resolutions passed on 12 June 2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon
exercise of all options which then has been granted and
have yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not,

in the absence of the shareholders' approval, in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. Unless
approved by the shareholders, no option may be granted to
any person which if exercised in full would result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options already granted or to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
share option) in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of such new grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the board of
directors of the Company, which must not be more than 10
years from the date of the grant.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB AR

N EREBEFURGA/ERNTR @

(b) fB AR AT &I

REE-BKRR_-_ZFTNAFAAAT_AAESB
MERRZRE  ARARMDRA BB
aHEl ([mRsEstd]) -

RITTEAR 35 B8 A =t 8 AN 2 B (] KA
BEFEERE RN BARARITENMEER
REMAIERTHRSRNEE - £ERE
BRAEBRT AT TFEBIRERT
P tn 4R B HI30% © FRIFEAIRHLAE - BRI
HEBTEEERARAZHREBREE A
(BfE%ZA) p2E A BEE MZA LT REX
HTEOZBERE (BRETE - BFHER
RITEREE) & 2ERERTRHTH
THERNEEEEEFTREBREEA ZC
BT BEN % AITFRZALTREER
1 o

FERCHE T 8178 T e BB A vl AR IR R A pE T &
BFERRARPEZTSE T HEARERTT
& - MARMMES XL A HE TSEE10
ﬂz o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS R R IEE
31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED N RERLZEURAPAERNTR @
PAYMENTS (conTinueD)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) EARFESTE (2
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) BEBRENGERRFEGOT ¢
follows:
Number of Contractual life
options Vesting conditions of options
BREHER EERYG BRENSHHR
Options granted to employees 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years
—on 17 January 2012 on both of the first and 104
BT E BB E second anniversary
—-RZT—=—F—A++tH of the grant date
RIRH BB R40%

RIBFHBEHEE—X
F_HAFHE30%

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) BRENE B RINEFHTFEENT :
share options are as follows:

2014 2013
—E—mE —F—=
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BREHE 1T1E(E BREHE
HKD ’000 shares HKD 000 shares
BT T BT T
Outstanding at the beginning FHARITEE
of the year 1.50 14,822 1.50 18,898
Lapsed during the year FRRH 1.50 5,929 1.50 4,076
Outstanding at the end of the year &R ARTTlE 1.50 8,893 1.50 14,822
Exercisable at the end of the year 4R A] F1T{E 1.50 8,893 1.50 10,375
During the year, no share option (2013: Nil) under the Share REA - HERZERETSIDHBHITE
Option Scheme was granted or exercised. TERE (ZF—=F : &) -
The share options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had RZF-—FE+ A=+ —HBHRTENE
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7 years Rt 2 Pt PR e HRAR7E (ZF —
(2013: 8 years). =F 1 85F) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR i o
31 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED N EEREEURMAEROTR @
PAYMENTS (conTinueD)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FEARRESTE ()
(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions (i) EREN I ABEREE
The fair value of service received in return for share options RHBREMBIRNRBAAE  H2RE
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share REBRENAAEGE - ERXDBERED
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share A AAERE —EABREEE SEESS
options granted is measured based on the Binomial Lattice 2 BRENSOHRIAEXTANHE A
Model. The contractual life of the share options is used as BEf o IRAITTEMTEEE M A =I5 = B iR
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are Bl o
incorporated into the Binomial Lattice Model.
Granted on
17 January 2012
—E—=fF
—HA+tH
R
Fair value at grant date REL BN ARE HKD11,642,000/% 7T
Share price & B HKD1.50% 7T
Exercise price 1T (E HKD1.507% 7T
Expected volatility TEHR 1@ 55.309%
Expected option life Te AR R A EARR 10 years®F
Expected dividend yield rate T8 A AR B as 211%
Risk-free interest rate 48 Ja iga 1) =R 1.507%
The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of EHE IR T ER =B 0] B L&A 7 89 K
three comparable companies. The expected dividend yield FELH o FTBHIIE B W R K I E N = 0] &t
rate is based on the average dividend of three comparable WARIHEAKRESE - TEESISEEE
companies. Changes in the subjective input assumptions A AR BEETEKEATE o

could materially affect the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

32 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY N2 HE—HHERF

The Group

On 16 December 2014, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with a company (the
“Purchaser”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group has
agreed to sell the entire of its equity interest of Ruifeng
Coal, an indirect owned subsidiary of the Company, at an
aggregate consideration of RMB80,000,000 as agreed by
the Purchaser (the “Disposal”). The completion date of the

Disposal was on 29 December 2014 (the “Completion Date”).

Ruifeng Coal is principally engaged in coal mining and
operation in the PRC. Details of the Disposal are included
in the Company’s announcements and notices dated on 16
December 2014.

The carrying amounts of assets/(liabilities) of Ruifeng Coal
as at the Completion Date are as follows:

rEE

W_ZE—ME+-A+/"H KEBHE—
MAR (TEF]) T RpEZERZE ([ZH
&) BEZHZE ASERENULEFR
= 2 ER B AR¥80,000,0007T HE XA
A —EEENB AR KREEE DR AERS
(HEBE]) - HEFHE2TKBBHAZET
—ME+=-—F-+AR ((EXEH]) - A
HETEZRPBRNEFRERKCEHTE - 54
PEZEEFBEHERARRBHAT—
ME+—- A+ B2 AERBE -

WEKEENR TR B EE (8F) REE
e

Notes RMB’000
FitEE ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment M - BEKERE 15 322,791
Coal mining rights B R BRI 16 294,361
Inventories "TE 4
Trade receivables FEWE 5 B8R 289,814
Prepayments and other receivables TE AR R 3 B B A e U AR 3R 16,656
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 8
Trade payables FERTE S RN (17,296)
Other payables HAth FETBR 5K (401,063)
Tax payable FERFIIR (177792)
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIR1EZRER 29 (12,400)
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHRBRE 19(b) (41,064)
Net assets of Ruifeng Coal at the HEEERTH AR 2EEFE

Completion Date 274,019
Non-controlling interest FEFE R (31,434)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FWB AR ZEE 6 (162,585)
Total cash consideration e ERE 80,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEREREELEZFRERA

of Ruifeng Coal
Cash consideration HeRE 80,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRE KBS EEY (8)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEmREEEE 2FHRBR

of Ruifeng Coal 79,992
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33 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Company

At the reporting date, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks with respect to general
banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the
Company of approximately RMB8,000,352,000 (2013:
RMB8,637,999,000). At the reporting date, no provision for
the Company’s obligation under the financial guarantee
contracts has been made as the directors of the Company
considered that it was not probable that the repayments of
the borrowings would be in default.

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and
currency risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
businesses. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices used by
the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
bill receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customer operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the reporting date, 49.71% (2013: 17.59%)

of the total trade and bill receivables was due from the

five largest customers within the coal business segment.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not provide
any guarantee which would expose the Group to credit risk.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB AR

33U BERELN

b/ /N

RIER AR EETHBRRERZ
—mRIBITIEEH ARES,000,352,0007T (=
T— =4 : AR¥38637,999,000T) M&
FRITRILRAER - RBREBR - HRAR
AESERATAURLBEREEER 2B
Mo WA ERRNR R BEERENZER
ATIRREME -

cREREERANE

AEESELREBBRETHEYEER R
g NMEXREBER  ANEEEHNZF
e\ e LA Ko 7K 62 [ B 5% S L e BT R R ) B 7S
e B IR BR MAE R - FHEER T o

FERER

AEBZEERRTIERBEREZENRR
FEWRIE -

EEECEMEERER  LWIRFEKERE
ERERRR AEEHMEERBER—

REFESRNEPETEERMG

AEEABRMNEERBEIEZRSRARFHNE
SR MERPREMETESIBRRTZE -
EHit - TERAEEERZFFHEHEREKE
e BERERBED - RKEH B
Wf%ﬁm&%%ﬁ% BEEFR49.71% (=
— =% :17.59%) INEBEREEDERAKN
XEFEBE HaREFERREASEMEEL
REERGEVRMRARAZY] - REER
AREE 7 EER BRI SR TRIER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

(b) Liquidity risk
Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, but the
borrowings are subject to approval by the parent company’s
management. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with any lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting date) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

B ERMEREERAAE @

(b) RBE TR

AEBARBENEEEREATRERESE
2 EEEEANGEAREERELRE - K&
BeBRAEMERERDESTRREE
STERRREZRE BN - NEREER TR
Aol kBT EZSRMBB2BEEAEE
SRE  UENEREHZRBHESHER

TRANAREZFNTESRABNRHRER
ZRSBEHIEE - ARZIHATIREOR
FRAGRE (BRERAONERATRZH
BN HHAER - RIRRERAERZH
R 8E) URAKEA AN R RF A

| A
=T H o
Rl 7

The Group
A5E
Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-Z-NE+-A=t—-HLEFE

Total Withinone  More than one
Carrying undiscounted yearor yearand less More than
amount cash flow ondemand than five years five years
AR —E£Rg —£#&
REE ReRasm REX BEER AFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBT T ARBT T ARET T
Current B &R
Trade and bill payables ERESEFRENRE 1,048,131 1,048,131 1,048,131 - -
Financial liabilities included 5T AEAERERFZ
in other payables SRARE 2,209,129 2,209,129 2,209,129 - -
Interest-bearing bank STERTEE
borrowings 4,734,105 4,996,444 4,996,444 - -
7,991,365 8,253,704 8,253,704 - -
Non-current FFENER
Financial liabilities included &t AE &R BRFR 2
in other payables SRBE 95,782 121,200 - 80,800 40,400
Interest-bearing bank FERTEE
borrowings 2,917,796 3,465,589 - 2,649,402 816,187
3,013,578 3,586,789 - 2,730,202 856,587
11,004,943 11,840,493 8,253,704 2,730,202 856,587
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR B ERMEREERAAE @
VALUES (conTinuED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REES R (5)
The Group
AEE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-=F+-_A=+—HLFE

Total Withinone  More than one
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  yearand less More than
amount cash flow ondemand than five years five years
AR —FR% —F%
REE HenesR BEX BRER RERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARBTn ARETR AR%Tn

Current EN A
Trade and bill payables BB SRR EREER 1,589,768 1,589,768 1,589,768 = =
Financial liabilities included &+ A E A 8RR 2

in other payables SRARE 2,386,687 2,386,687 2,386,687 - -
Interest-bearing bank STERITEE
borrowings 6,483,197 6,754,298 6,754,298 = =
10,459,652 10,730,753 10,730,753 - -
Non-current FEEN
Financial liabilities included 5 AE AT ERFTZ
in other payables SEAR 131,549 164,415 - 103,815 60,600
Interest-bearing bank FTERIIEE
barrowings 2,574,906 3,326,435 = 2,176,643 1,149,792
2,706,455 3,490,850 = 2,280,458 1,210,392
13,166,107 14,221,603 10,730,753 2,280,458 1,210,392
The Group had net current liabilities of approximately REFBR -_E—NE+_A=+—H2Z2KrH
RMB5,278,281,000 (2013: RMB3,834,912,000) as at 31 BEFELNARYS,278,281,0007T (ZF—
December 20714. The liquidity of the Group is dependent on = : AR¥3,834,912,0007T) - NEEZ
its ability to implement the measures to improve the Group’s B MEMEFEB T .2(c) Pt 2 16
immediate liquidity and cash flows as described in Note MREAREENRESRBUERRES R
1.2(c). N e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR B ERMEREERAAE @
VALUES (conTinuED)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI= =B
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AEBZHFERBREERBFTBIRITEE -
interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at RA N EREEMEREAZBEXAEER
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash ARASRERMNERR KA R ENEE
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk % BIEEEEZASENEERETINT
respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored (i)

by management is set out in (i) below:

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FZ=HHR
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TERFINAEEZFERTEERNHRERZ
Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings at the reporting IR -
date:
The Group
S ]
2014 2013
—Z-mE —T-=F
Carrying Carrying
Effective value Effective value
interest rate BREE  interest rate AREE
per annum RMB’000 per annum RMB’000
EBREFE ARETz ERFANX  ARETE
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AERITEE 4.80%-8.70% 3,867,099 3.90%-9.50% 4,740,795
Less: pledged deposits B BEBER 0.35%-3.00% (400,914) 0.35%-3.08% (1,939,706)
3,466,185 2,801,089
Variable rate borrowings: AENEEE !
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRBIEE 2.09%-9.00% 3,784,802 1.30%-8.70% 4,317,308
Less: pledged deposits B BERER - - 0.01% (43,898)
3,784,802 4,273,410
Total net borrowings HEEFE 7,250,987 7,074,499
Net fixed rate borrowings as EEFIREEZENL
a percentage of total net borrowings BEEFENEIL 47.80% 39.59%
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinueD)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in the interest rates of variable rate borrowings
prevailing at the reporting date, with all other variables
held constant, would increase the Group’s loss after tax by
approximately RMB35,139,000 (2013: RMB28,082,000) and
increase the Group’s accumulated losses (decrease the
Group’s retained earnings) by approximately RMB35,139,000
(2013: RMB28,082,000) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax and consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had been applied to
re-measure those floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the reporting date. The impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2013.
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(c) RZEREE @)

(i) BBREDH
”*“ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%ﬂ%hT C AR H Al

'''''' 2 FI| & F“‘Eﬁﬂ?%%ﬁiﬂ/?ﬁ%mm%
2 GEeEREE_T-NE+-_A=
+—BLFEZAEEBRFREEERIEMY
AR#¥35139,000c (ZE—=F: ARK
28,082,0007T) ALK E RETEEIE N (K
EERERFIRLD) 89 ARS5,139,0007T
(ZZ—=%F: AR#¥28,082,0007T) °

ElSRE D IEANRE ZBRBLR BB AR
ERBAREEZARES  ERERRME

HEHNBENEKEL  YEHAREHAE
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MEXHWFRICREEL G - RS
R —F— = FHRNEEET -
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PR R AR P

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (conTinuED)

(d) Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.

All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must

take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions
are the rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of
China that are determined largely by supply and demand.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through purchases and borrowings that are denominated

(d) S5 ELRR

in USD, while all the other operations of the Group are
mainly transacted in RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect
the RMB value of purchase costs of commodities that are

denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure at

B 48

EE B

BEME -

B ERMEREERAAE @

ARBAIAEBHLERING - IAESRAR
BOINERX ZUBBEBTEARRITREM
R B BINE BT o
RANEXSTEARRITAMAOEE - %
FERTZHEKETE - AEERSMNERR
TEREUETINENBEREE A%
BFEEMEBEEIR2UARBETRS - &
N HER mERBR AN AR

SNERZ 5 Fit

TREFMEEANGEIAEIAEESLR

the reporting date to currency risk arising from recognised & MELNEERSEEHNIEEEAINY
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than BEGHE  AMEEANEERR
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
The Group
PN
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T=F
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
in USD in HKD inUSD in HKD
DErsE  WBRsE  ETEE WETEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTr AREFTT AR%T:E
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 33 - 61 533
Trade and bill receivables [N E ZRR R EREE - - 54,488 -
Trade and bill payables ENE SRR RENERE - - - -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE - - = (14,557)
33 - 54,549 (14,024)
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses (2013:

retained earnings) that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the reporting

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB AR

beHEAREERALE @
(d) SMEREE ()

HNEE BURAE AT

TRINFAEEZRHRER R RTER
(ZF—=%F: FREEN) ARHREBERY
AREEE) (AEEARILEH AT EARR)
MELZSEE)  DHRKREMCRERZEHT

date had changed at that date, assuming all other risk o
variables remained constant.
The Group
S ]
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%F
Decrease/
(increase)
Decrease/ in loss
(increase) after tax and
Appreciation/ inloss Appreciation/ increase/
(depreciation) aftertaxand (depreciation) (decrease)
in foreign accumulated in foreign in retained
exchange rates losses exchange rates profits
BBl R EE
REZEER mb/(3Em)
EXAE RHEE  EXAE/ RRBEF
(@) ®WP/(Em) (@) ®mP>/(Em)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
usD ETT 5% 2 5% 2,046
(5%) (2) (5%) (2,046)
HKD BT 5% - 5% (755)
(5%) - (5%) 755

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ loss after tax and equity

measured in the respective functional currencies, translated

into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign

exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting date,
including inter-company payables and receivables within

the Group which are denominated in a currency other than

the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations into the Group’s presentation currency and other

investments. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2018.

EREINZ D MERBRIARE S ERNZ
AUER R E SR (A2RAN B
BEBZEXRE B ARE) 2 NFERH
‘EBBENMERZARSHTE -

FRESTBRRINEER 2 ZFHDARERN
AEASEMFAL N ®E B £ A EER
SNERBR 2R TR > BREERNUIEET
EH 2R EHE 2 BN RERK -
S T B K SN R 2 B TS HR R B X
REEZZ2NEBREMBREMEE 2=
BeoOMHEAR_T—=—FHRNEE
#1T o
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

(e) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The Group classifies all its financial assets and financial
liabilities as loans and receivables and financial liabilities at
amortised cost respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013
except for the following financial instruments, for which
their carrying amounts and fair value and the level of fair
value hierarchy are disclosed below:

beHEAREERALE @

(e) WHEARBEIIRNEHMEER BB

[NRE

AEBE#MEEMEERE BB ED Bz
HRADBRERRERERLEREE -

AEBZKAREEKXAARNEH T AR
FEHE BER-_T—NEER-_FT—=4F1
“AZ+—BHHNRAAEDRITK  HERTX
HEMAAREAERARBEURARBESRK
TR g T AR

The Group

A &N
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
R=Z-ME+=A=+-H
BRATERFANAAE

Carrying
amounts at Fair value at
31December 31 December
2014 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-Z-MOE RIZ-0OF
=8 +=AR
Er=FZ Er=FZ
BREE ARE £ B =R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T ARET T ARBT R ARBT R
Financial liabilities included &t AEH:ERBRFR
in other payables ZEHEAR 95,782 96,625 - 96,625 -
Interest-bearing bank SERTEE
borrowings 2,917,796 2,820,760 - 2,820,760 -
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

(e) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E e

beHEAREERALE @

(e) WHBRAABEIIRNEMEER BEH

DRE @)

The Group
EH
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into
RZZE—=F+_A=t+—-H
BEUTERGTENDAE

Carrying
amounts at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2013 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZT—=F RZT—=F
TZA +ZA
= =g =t—-RAz
REE AnE E— E-Mm F=R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial liabilities included &t A fthE{TERFR
in other payables JERBE 131,549 130,881 - 130,881 -
Interest-bearing bank FERTEE
borrowings 2,574,906 2,411,907 = 2,411,907 =

Valuation techniques and inputs used in level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair values of the financial liabilities included in

other payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings are
estimated as being the present values of future cash flows,
discounted at interest rates based on the annum interest
rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China as at the end of

the reporting period adjusted for the Group’s own credit risk.

£ R AR EFFECERANGEERTMEAE

AFARMENER R E BN BRITE
E2nrENEERRERASRNEAE R
R ERKIBEHEARRITARFNXG]
ERNEFE - IR AREARGHEENE
TLAGHE o
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35 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At each reporting date, capital commitments outstanding

35 EAREIE

REBREH  XARREGES M BERKRELBE

not provided for in the consolidated financial statements HIRBITEARELT :
are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment I E N 281,312 374,588
Interests in an associate (Note (i) R—EEE ATz (K1EEG)) 6,509 14,153
(i) The Group was committed at 31 December 2014 to invest in () RZFE—MOEF+_A=+—H xEE&H
Paragon Coal which amounted to approximately Australian &R Paragon Coalzfﬁgﬁf{ﬁéﬂ 300,000

dollars (“AUD”) 1,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,509,000) (2013: AUD2,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB14,153,000)).

36 OPERATING LEASES
(a) Leases as lessee

At each reporting date, the total future minimum lease

JC (F,?'éch) (& R4 A R %6,509,0007T)

4_153 0007T)) °

36 KEHE
(a) YFE%EK#HAZ#HE

=% : 2,600,00087T (HHERARE

ERER  AEERBE A RBELEHEY

payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating M%%&fﬂ“f&“ﬁﬁﬁ H BB ERBELERE
leases in respect of properties and vessels are payable as R
follows:
2014 2013
—E-AmF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥EF T
Within 1 year —F R 16,593 11,845
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFH 12,299 28,499
28,892 40,344
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 OPERATING LEASES (conTinuED)

(b) Leases as lessor

The Group leases out its vessels and an area with Ruifeng
Coal mine under operating leases during the year and

the future minimum lease income under non-cancellable
operating leases in relation to vessels (2013: vessels and
an area with Ruifeng Coal mine) are as follows. During the
year, the Group disposed the entire of its equity interest in
Ruifeng Coal, which also leased out an area with Ruifeng
Coal mine as at 31 December 2013 (Note 32).

BB AR

6 XEHE @

(b) EREHBEAZAE

AEBNFARBEEHEHHEEMM LG
RERERNEE  MRESIBUERNEE
HEFBMM (T —=F: W kInEAK
XERNEE) WARKERERADT -
EAEW K’élﬁﬁ%fﬁﬂﬁii\%ﬁﬁﬁ%
CImEREBERENEESR —T-=F1
;ﬂ_—I— EIF‘WI\MTH(W.:BZ)

2014 2013

—F-mF B

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Within 1 year —FA 40,252 138,884
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FEERFEUR 7136 137,500
Over 2 years but within 3 years MFEAEEB=FIAR - 137,500
47,388 413,884

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain transactions with
Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa
Industry”), Tongmei Qinfa and Mr. Xu during the year. Mr. Xu
is the shareholder of Qinfa Industry and Fortune Pearl, the
ultimate controlling party of the Group.

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the
above related parties for the year are as follows:

(a) Related party transactions
Recurring transactions

IVHEELRS

AEBFANEREERBHEXEEERA
(T=zEX]) Hk%’t‘?ﬁ&ﬁé?ﬁitf"f%:f:
RP  RELERFBREXRAEEREER
TERHR -

AEBEFANE REETNZZHBFOAT

() BESXR S

REMRS

Transaction amount for the  Balance outstanding
years ended 31 December as at 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEE Rt+t=RA=+—~H

ZRZEE ZARBERE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mE —T—=F ZE-NF —_FT—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETRT AR®BTR ARBTET

Sales of coal

- Tongmei Qinfa
Purchase of coal

— Tongmei Qinfa
Operating leases expense to

- Qinfa Industry

SHE R

- AREE
BRAB B IR

— ER=RE
RERHHNT

—REREX

615,452 188,339 - 29,191
362,929 876,240 252,007 84,501
- 403 - 403
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BRI M AT

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuep) ITMELRS m

(b) Guarantees provided by related parties (b) FEEFREHNER
2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
(Restated)
(&&&E5)
Guarantees of interest-bearing bank RAERHE R RBRED
borrowings and bill payables FTRRITEERENEERER
provided by Mr. Xu and his close
family members 5,852,000 4,278,341
Guarantees of interest-bearing bank —fI AR E IR R AR T B IRTT
borrowings and bill EEREMEZEER
payables provided by
a key management 200,000 50,000
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) BREEEBALME
Key management personnel are those persons holding AREBEEATIREEXEAEZEREHRS - 1B
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, BRESAEEEHNEOREEZAL
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly (BREARAESR) BEREEEBEALZMHE
or indirectly, including the directors of the Company. Key LU
management personnel remuneration are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Directors fee EE Yok 3,153 2,989
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & « 28 K EYEF 12,489 8,136
Contributions to retirement benefit RINEFIFT SR
schemes 54 128
Discretionary bonuses BETEAL 420 11,039
Share-based payments LARS (7 2 ERER A 5k 161 1,565
16,277 23,857
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EA SRR MY L
38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW 38 el AR ERAN KT E] B RS 5T B PR B 7%
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HEEARE D BRG T BEF#E
== [—1
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT BERE
YET ADOPTED
The Group has not applied the following new and revised NEE WM T 5|2 BB KRR % F
IFRS, that have been issued but are not yet effective in these EMRERZ ] RIS T BIFR B fS R 5
financial statements. 2K
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 B8R 2 &%
WEHEEEX
IAS 19 Amendments Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1July 2014
B & 5t R 195% ERRREAMEE  EEMHX —ZE-—MFE+HA—H
CEHEN)
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle 1July 2014
B BR B 7% ¥ 5 22 Bl 2 A& AT SR BREER T TFE T _FRHECFE —ZE-MmE+A—H
U
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
BB B 75 ¥ 5 2R Bl Z A& AT ERABREEN T ——FE-F - ZFERIFE —ZE-MFELA—H
B
IAS 1 Amendments Disclosure Initiatives 1 January 2016
B & s ERIE 15 (BFTAR) HEERTE —ET-R"¥—-A—H
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Classification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016
Amendments Depreciation and Amortisation
R ERE 1R MEER HREREONTE REHETTEN SR —ZE-R¥—HA—H
SETHERIFE38R (BT A)
IAS 16 and IAS 41 Amendments Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1January 2016
SREFtERSEI6R R B RE  AENEY —ZE-ARF¥—HA—H
BEEAIE 415 (BFTAR)
IAS 27 Amendments Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1January 2016
B & ERIE 275 (BRI AR) BUMBHRROERE —ZE-XRE—-HA—H
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 1January 2016
Amendments Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
B BHREERFE10H L REELNEBERASSEEFEANEELEITIA —ZE-R¥—-A—H
& At AE RIS 2857
(BFTA)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M AT

38 (& RER AV FT BT I &RAE 5T BRI PR B 7%
WEERREBDAERG T BT
BRAE @

38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (conTinueD)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEHR 2 RFER
e AN

1 January 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Investment Entities:
IAS 28 Amendments Applying the Consolidation Exception
I A B 75 e 5 2E R S5 1 055 - REER : RALRAE ARGIINE —E—RF—-HA—H
B B 75 R 5 R B 58 1 259% %
BIPR et 2ERI B 285% (1BF]A)
IFRS 11 Amendments Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

WA EEBRANGTRIENA —F—NF—A—H

1 January 2016

BUBR B RS R 2RISR 11 55%
(UBETA)
Amendments to IFRSs

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle 1January 2016

BIBR A 5 s 2R R 2 (B RT
IFRS 14
BIBR W 75 i s RIS 1455

IFRS 15
I3 B B 7S R 5 XE A1 55 1 5557

IFRS 9
B B 75 ¥ o R I BB O 5%

BB SR E R - E——F 5 - T —O4F
RER 2 F 2

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

—E—XRF¥—HF—H

1January 2016

EEELERAE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

BEP &K

Financial Instruments
I A

—F—RF—H—H

1 January 2017
—ZT—+5—A—H

1January 2018
—E-N\F—-H—H

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the impact of these changes.

The Group has not early adopted the above amendments
and new standards. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of these amendments
and new standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements except for the following:
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38 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (conTinueD)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have

an impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. Further information about the
impact will be available nearer the implementation date of
the standard.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will

apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to

be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
The Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and
is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB AR

&) R BR AR B FT 5] I AR 15 5T B B B 7%
WEERREBDTERL T BT
BRAE @

EFRRI M ELEAER SMTA
R-ZF—WFLA BEReEIZESR
HERPFBREEANEIRNRERAE - K2
BTAEANMABRERER —EARBEEK
St RIS 395k I 2 B0 55 AT AR AN B B R B 75
HEERIFN - ZERISIADENFTE - K
BEREPEENHRE - AREEYE -
T—N\F— A — BRERANBERM % REEL
F95% - NEB AN BRI 5 EERIE
IRKHARBEREENDBLGTEELY
8 FRTENE - PERBRNEIZE
B E e B BRH -

BB R EERE155 BFEFEHAW
W=

BRI RS B E 155 Ry —AHFN RS
BX BEAREBEFANEENKZE - B
BRI IS REERF 155 - SRR
ERENRSBEATFEZEYRREME
BEESHNRESEER - B ERELER
FIHEMNRA AT ERERRFZREFMR
AL o« ZERTRSIABZHEERE
ERBERT  BESFRKREEE  BRET
BT  TRBEZHANEERBERE &
BRI B AR B X R AT ER - %K
Bl HS B A BB B A s 5 2RI B T AT A RS IR
ERRNETE AEEEHN T —tF—
A—BERMBEBR Y %R £ E155% - B Al
FFERMBEEG B REENFEIHNT
2,
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39 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Fortune Pearl, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

40 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.
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